



(508) 362-3828 • Fax (508) 362-3136 • www.capecodcommission.org

Minutes

Meeting Cape Cod Commission East Wing Conference Room • 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630

May 2, 2019

The meeting was convened at 3:00 p.m., and the Roll Call was recorded as follows:

Town	Member	Present
Barnstable	Fred Chirigotis	Present (arrived at 3:10 p.m.)
Bourne	Richard Conron	Present
Brewster	Elizabeth Taylor	Present
Chatham	Tom Wilson	Present
Dennis	Richard Roy	Absent
Eastham	Joy Brookshire	Absent
Falmouth	Charles McCaffrey	Present
Harwich	Jacqueline Etsten	Present
Mashpee	Ernest Virgilio	Present
Orleans	Len Short	Present
Provincetown	Cheryl Andrews	Present
Sandwich	Harold Mitchell	Present
Truro	Kevin Grunwald	Present
Wellfleet	Roger Putnam	Present
Yarmouth	John McCormack, Jr.	Present
County Commissioner	Ronald Bergstrom	Absent
Minority Representative	John Harris	Present
Native American Rep.	David Weeden	Present
Governor's Appointee	Michael Maxim	Absent

The Cape Cod Commission Meeting was called to order on Thursday, May 2, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. in the East Wing Conference Room, Barnstable County Complex, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA. Roll was called, and a quorum was established.

Chair Harold Mitchell welcomed and introduced Stephen Mealy who was recently appointed as the Bourne Representative to the Cape Cod Commission.

Stephen Mealy said he has served on the Planning Board and Board of Selectmen in the Town of Bourne and his professional experience is in mechanical engineering.

SUMMARY OF ACTION TAKEN

- **Minutes**: The minutes of the April 4, 2019 Cape Cod Commission Meeting were approved with 13 votes in favor and one abstention (Stephen Mealy).
- Public Hearing—Vineyard Wind Connector: Following presentations, public testimony and discussion the Commission voted unanimously to close the public hearing. The Commission then voted to adopt the draft written Development of Regional Impact (DRI) decision as recommended by the Hearing Officer and grant DRI approval for the Vineyard Wind Connector project subject to the conditions set out in said decision.

■ TRANSCRIPT OF THE CAPE COD COMMISSION MEETING ATTACHED

Attached is the transcript of the May 2, 2019 Cape Cod Commission Meeting prepared by Linda L. Wesson, Professional Court Reporter/Stenographer. The transcript includes:

- Public Comment by Chris Powicki
- Approval of Minutes of the April 4, 2019 Cape Cod Commission Meeting
- Executive Director's Report
- Public Hearing: Vineyard Wind Connector Project

■ NEW BUSINESS: Topics not reasonably anticipated by the Chair more than 48 hours before the meeting.

No new business was taken up.

A motion was made to adjourn at 5:15 p.m. The motion was seconded and voted unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Elizabeth Taylor Secretary

List of Documents Used/Presented at the May 2, 2019 Meeting

- May 2, 2019 Cape Cod Commission Meeting Agenda.
- Draft meeting minutes of the April 4, 2019 Cape Cod Commission Meeting.
- Draft Development of Regional Impact Decision on the Vineyard Wind Connector Project.
- PowerPoint presentation on the Vineyard Wind Connector Project prepared by Vineyard Wind LLC.

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS CAPE COD COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARING:

VINEYARD WIND CONNECTOR

HELD ON THURSDAY, MAY 2, 2019

ORIGINAL

This transcript is prepared by Linda L. Wesson, Certified Verbatim Reporter and Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, held at the East Wing Conference Room, Barnstable County Complex, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, Massachusetts, 02630, commencing at 3:00 p.m.

CANAL COURT REPORTING
15 Lakewood Road
Sagamore Beach, MA 02562
(508) 888-4676

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

APPEARANCES

Cape Cod Commission Staff:

Ms. Kristy Senatori, Executive Director

Mr. Jonathan Idman, Chief Regulatory Officer

Barnstable, Fred Chirigotis

Bourne, Stephen Mealy

Brewster, Elizabeth Taylor, Secretary

Chatham, Tom Wilson

Falmouth, Charles McCaffrey

Harwich, Jacqueline Etsten

Mashpee, Ernie Virgilio

Orleans, Leonard Short

Provincetown, Cheryl Andres

Sandwich, Harold Mitchell, Chair

Truro, Kevin Grunwald

Wellfleet, Roger Putnam

Yarmouth, Jack McCormack, Jr., Vice Chair

Minorities, John Harris

Native Americans, David Weeden

P-A-R-T-I-E-S

- Mr. Nathaniel Mayo, Vineyard Wind
- Ms. Kate McEneaney, Vineyard Wind
- Mr. Theodore Barten, Vineyard Wind
- Mr. John Arruda, Vineyard Wind
- Mr. Charles McGlaughlin, Esquire, Town of Barnstable
- Mr. Chris Powicki, Brewster Resident
- Ms. Marjorie Thearle, W. Hyannis Port resident

HEARING

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Ladies and gentlemen, I'd like to welcome you to the April 4 meeting of the Cape Cod --

MR. JACK MCCORMACK, JR.: May 2.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I'm sorry; May

2 meeting -- I'm looking at minutes prior -- May

2 meeting of the Cape Cod Commission.

I'm going to take a moment and announce and speak to the members of the Commission. We are still working on the new system we have in front of you. We're going to be using the voting for two reasons today. One will be for the roll call. So when we do the roll call, what I need you to do is when Elizabeth calls your name, say you're present but also at that time push the green lit button on your machine and that will tell us -- that will register you as being present.

We'll use it for one more time that would be if there's a decision to be made on the Vineyard Wind and at that time I'll discuss that. But for right now, that's how we're going to be doing the system, and I'll be checking the

machine to make sure everybody's registered.
Keep in mind, also, that if a member comes in
late, I will be announcing that member. I will
be taking a minute to announce that member as
present so it goes into the public record and
they don't have to vote into the machine. It's
still a learning curve; we're still learning, you
know, getting all this down, so please stay with
us and we'll get through it, I promise you.
Roll Call
CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: So at this
time, we'll start with roll call and, remember,
when Elizabeth calls your name at that time you
will hit the button, flashing button on your
machine and that will register you as being
present. Thank you.
MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Barnstable, Fred
Chirigotis.
MR. FRED CHIRIGOTIS: (Arrived after
roll call.)
MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Bourne, Stephen Mealy.
MR. STEPHEN MEALY: Present.
MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Welcome.
MR. STEPHEN MEALY: Thank you.

1	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Brewster, Elizabeth
2	Taylor. Present. Chatham, Tom Wilson.
3	MR. TOM WILSON: Present.
4	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Dennis, Richard Roy.
5	MR. RICHARD ROY: (Not present.)
6	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Eastham, Joy
7	Brookshire.
8	MS. JOY BROOKSHIRE: (Not present.)
9	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Falmouth, Charles
10	McCaffrey.
11	MR. CHARLES MCCAFFREY: Present.
12	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Harwich, Jacqueline
13	Etsten.
14	MS. JACQUELINE ETSTEN: Present.
15	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Mashpee, Ernest
16	Virgilio.
17	MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Present.
18	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Orleans, Len Short.
19	MR. LEONARD SHORT: Present.
20	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Provincetown, Cheryl
21	Andrews.
22	DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: Okay. I'll be
23	difficult because I don't see green; I see
24	yellow, so I hit that?

1	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes.
2	DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: No, it's the
3	yellow one.
4	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Sandwich, Harold
5	Mitchell.
6	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Present.
7	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Truro, Kevin Grunwald.
8	MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: Here.
9	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Wellfleet, Roger
10	Putnam.
11	MR. ROGER PUTNAM: Here.
12	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Yarmouth, John
13	McCormack, Jr.
14	MR. JACK MCCORMACK, JR.: Here.
15	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: County Commissioner,
16	Ron Bergstrom.
17	Commissioner BERGSTROM: (Not present.)
18	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Minority
19	Representative, John Harris.
20	MR. JOHN HARRIS: Here.
21	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Native American
22	Representative, David Weeden.
23	MR. DAVID WEEDEN: Here.
24	MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Governor's Appointee,

Michael Maxim.

MR. MICHAEL MAXIM: (Not present.)

MS. LIZ TAYLOR: We have a quorum.

much. So everybody's button was steady, so that means that you voted. Thank you, very much.

At this time, I'll open the microphone for public comment. This will be for anyone that would like to make a comment. And while I'm opening that up, I'm going to take this opportunity to also welcome our new member of the Commission, Mr. Stephen Mealy from Bourne. Congratulations and welcome.

MR. STEPHEN MEALY: Thank you, very much.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: If you'd like to take a minute to introduce yourself to the Commissioners, you will hit the button down below. Your mic will go red and that means you're hot and ready and you can go with it.

MR. STEPHEN MEALY: I'd just like to say thank you for having me as a representative from Bourne. My background is technical; I'm an engineer by trade, and I served on both the

planning board and member and chairman in the 1 Town of Bourne as well as the Board of Selectmen. 2. So I've got some background and experience, and I 3 hope to contribute to the decisions here, and 5 thank you, all, very much. Thank you and CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: 6 And we already know that you've taken 7 welcome. an appointment on the upcoming DRI Committee, so 8

thank you for that.

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Public Comment

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: At this time, we'll start with any public comment.

MR. CHRIS POWICKI: Hi, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Introduce yourself to the Commissioners, please.

MR. CHRIS POWICKI: Chris Powicki from the Town of Brewster. I'm here speaking today on behalf of representatives or on behalf of 350 Cape Cod. And a month ago on April 1, 350 Cape Cod submitted a petition to the Cape Cod Commission including signatures for more than 300 people calling for amendments to the Cape Cod Regional Policy Plan. The petition was entitled,

"Petition to Focus the Cape Cod Regional Policy Plan on Addressing Climate Change." It was submitted under a County ordinance that allows citizens to petition before or on April 1 each year. It was submitted with more than 300 signatures.

And the last we heard from the Commission, I believe, was a week after the petition was submitted was that we would get a date for when the required public hearing would be held. And so I'm here today asking if there's an update on that; when the public hearing will be held?

Thank you.

2.2

2.3

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I'm going to let our Director respond to you, sir.

MR. CHRIS POWICKI: Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. KRISTY SENATORI: Thank you. And we have been in touch. Certainly, we were in receipt of the petition. Unfortunately, it was not filed properly; however, we have been in touch. We've been certainly aware of and cognizant of the climate change efforts, and spent a significant amount of time amending the

Regional Policy Plan during your last update of that plan, which was just approved a few months ago.

So as Mr. Powicki did identify, we did -- we did offer to host a public session on climate change, and we will be doing so and we are organizing internally around that and will have a date soon.

MR. CHRIS POWICKI: If I might respond, Mr. Chair?

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Go ahead.

MR. CHRIS POWICKI: The petition was filed in a legitimate way consistent with the language in the ordinance. It was not incomplete. There are different ways to interpret the one sentence that's in the applicable ordinance.

Our position is that the petition was filed in a timely fashion. More than 300 citizens are asking for a public hearing on this, and we would like the Cape Cod Commission members to consider this petition, to respect the will of the citizens, and to call a public hearing as required. Thank you.

1	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you.
2	Anyone else? Seeing none. I'll close off the
3	public comments at this time.
4	Approval of Minutes
5	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: And now we'll
6	go back to the approval of the minutes. These
7	are potential approval of the Cape Cod Commission
8	Minutes for April 4, 2019. You all received a
9	copy. If there are no changes or amendments
10	needed to be made, I'll take a motion to accept
11	those as written.
12	MR. JACK MCCORMACK, JR.: Move they be
13	approved as written.
14	MR. TOM WILSON: Second.
15	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I have a motion
16	and a second as written. All in favor, say,
17	"Aye."
18	COMMISSION MEMBERS: Aye.
19	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Any opposed?
20	Any abstentions?
21	MR. STEPHEN MEALY: One.
22	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: One abstention.
23	Thank you. So the minutes carry.
24	(Minutes passed.)

Executive Director's Report

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Now we'll go to our Executive Director's report with Kristy.

EXEC. DIR. KRISTY SENATORI: Thank you,
Mr. Chair. I, too, would like to welcome Stephen
Mealy who is our new representative from the Town
of Bourne, so we welcome you to the Commission.

MR. STEPHEN MEALY: Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. KRISTY SENATORI: It's not Is it on now? There we go. Thanks. working. And also while we're providing some updates, I just wanted to recognize and congratulate several of our staff members that will be retiring. you recall, there's an Early Retirement Incentive Program being implemented at the County level and five of our staff members are going to be leaving us on May 15. And so I just wanted to recognize them, so if you don't mind standing. So Patty Daley, who is our Deputy Director; Sharon Rooney, our Chief Planner; Gail Hanley, our Commission Clerk; Lev Malakhoff, our Senior Transportation Engineer, and Scott Michaud our Hydrologist. combined they have 127 years of experience with the Cape Cod Commission, and so we wanted to

thank them for their service.

1.0

(Applause.)

EXEC. DIR. KRISTY SENATORI: So I want to thank them for their service and commitment and dedication in all their years at the Commission.

The County did host a retirement party for all of the retirees across the County last week. We'll also be having a retirement lunch -- (microphone issues) -- we will also be having a retirement lunch at the Cape Cod Commission office for our staff on May 15 at noon, and I wanted to make sure that that invitation was extended to the members as well so that you're welcome to join us.

We are currently advertising for several positions; the Cape Cod Commission Clerk and the Chief Planner positions are open positions at the Commission at the moment.

This year's OneCape Summit will be held on July 29 and 30. For the second year, we'll be down at the Wequassett Resort in Harwich. We have issued a "Save the Date" for that and more information will be shared as an agenda is set.

We anticipate opening registration for that event towards the end of May.

We are anticipating our new website to be up and running by the end of this month as well, so stay tuned for some more information about that, but it should be a more user-friendly website and should have all the information available that you need to access for the Commission.

I also wanted to identify for you that the 2019 update to the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy was issued for public comment on Friday. That is a 30-day public comment period that will close on May 26, and that is available on our website and open for comments from the general public and anyone interested in providing feedback on that draft document.

The Regional Transportation Plan is also in the process of being updated, and we anticipate that going out for public comment for a 21-day period around the May 20 timeframe.

And then, lastly, we have an update on the 208 Progress Report that was submitted to

both DEP and EPA at the last -- at the end of April. This report also included compliance reports for all 15 communities for the first time. We'll be issuing those compliance reports to the 15 communities for their review and feedback. They're in draft form. We anticipate doing that sometime within the next few weeks.

And, so, that's all I have today.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you. Let the record also show that we've been joined by Fred from -- the Barnstable representative.

MR. FRED CHIRIGOTIS: Thank you.

Public Hearing Vineyard Wind Connector

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you. At this time, we're going to move forward with the Public Hearing on the Vineyard Wind Connector. This is a hearing continued by the hearing officer from an April 9, 2019, hearing on the following project for which the Cape Cod Commission is conducting Development of Regional Impact review.

The project is the Vineyard Wind Connector. The project applicant is Vineyard Wind LLC. The project location is the Town of

Barnstable with offshore export cable landing at Covell's Beach, Centerville, and onshore export cable terminus at substation in Independence Park in Hyannis. The project description is construction and operation of the portion of the Windyard, excuse me, Vineyard Wind Connector project located within Barnstable County, which project is intended to connect to and serve the proposed approximately 800 megawatt Vineyard Wind offshore wind project. The project includes without limitation offshore export cables located within Barnstable County waters, the onshore duct bank, and associated onshore export cables located within and under the existing rights-of-way and the proposed onshore substation.

2.0

2.3

Anyone wishing to testify orally will be welcome to do so and written comments may also be submitted at the hearing. At this time, I will start with the applicant's presentation to the Commission. Please.

(Getting PowerPoint to work.)

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: Okay. Well, if this will suffice, I think we can work off the slightly suboptimal visual there. My name is

Nathaniel Mayo. I'm with Vineyard Wind, Manager of Development and Policy, also Provincetown resident, so the project hits close to home as one that Barnstable County's involved in.

Joining me are a number of members of the staff here as well as Counsel from Foley Hoag and Kate McEneaney with Epsilon Associates will be giving the second half of the presentation. There are a number of other experts of various elements of the project that we brought in the event that you've got questions.

So, just to start, we're very -- this is a really exciting venue for us to be. We're permitting in a really broad range of agencies and venues at the state, federal, and local level, but this really feels to many of us like a very Cape and Islands centric project. So this is really one of the more appropriate venues for us to be discussing the project, its merits, the technical aspects of it and, of course, making landfall on the Mid-Cape is something, I think, we all as Cape Codders involved with the project are really -- we feel really happy about.

But the dialogue that's gone on with

regulators has been really well encompassed with the Commission staff over the past several months. We've gotten a strong image that the Commission's charge as well as the Cape Cod's charge really fits with the fundamentals of this project and the elements of the project.

The connecting of local interests with regional, with national, with global is always a struggle when we look at climate change and clean energy projects. This has project local impacts and local benefits, but we're also taking about a much broader global concern. And the Commission really does a great job in their charge of bridging that gap at least at the local to regional level. So that's our shared task. That's where Vineyard Wind is. That's where the stakeholders that we work with are, and that's where I think the regulators, including the Cape Cod Commission are.

You know, the hard work begins after the policies are written and Vineyard Wind comes here through a matrix of federal and state and local policies and regional policies that have allowed us to pursue more efficiently and with

more proper review clean energy projects and offshore wind, especially which we know has had a complicated history in the region.

2.3

So to the specifics, our proposal is an offshore wind facility that's going to reduce Massachusetts carbon load by 1.6 million tons per year. It's the equivalent of taking about a third of a million automobiles off the road with just this one project. It's important to the Cape, of course. We're at the nice edge of climate change issues, and this is our opportunity to do our part, and we recognize that we have to do it right, just as much as you recognize we have to do it right.

Environment is our economy here. We say that to everyone from off-Cape, and it's important that those interests are held in the greatest stead as we pursue these projects. And we think our work with the Commission and the permitting work that we've done exemplifies that.

And, most importantly, our contribution to clean energy, our contribution to new energy, offshore wind is our resource. The resource in our region, Southeastern Massachusetts, Southern

(508) 888-4676

New England, its offshore wind, that's what we have as our unique contribution to this puzzle of solving climate change. So that all fits with the charge that we all share.

This DRI comes, as I'll show a little bit later, through two years of permitting and project refinements that have led us to a clear picture of what we're proposing and what we're going to be building. And we're excited to discuss the project as in follow-up with your questions after we give our presentation and we look forward to it. So I'll go through a brief overview of the project and we can certainly follow up with questions after the presentation.

So we're here because of a number of aspects of state and federal policy. The Commonwealth passed the Global Warming Solutions Act about 11 years ago mandating carbon emissions. In the context of that, the federal government was engaged in a multiyear stakeholder process bringing everyone to the table to determine where we can responsibly site offshore wind. And our lease area chosen by BOEM on the Outer Continental Shelf is one of the products of

that long process.

2.1

2.3

Lease areas were given up for auction by the federal government, and Vineyard Wind was one of two original authorities of a lease that they bid on through a competitive auction in 2015 when the project really began in earnest.

about a year later mandating expansion of renewable resources into the grid including offshore wind. We submitted our project plans in 2017. We filed for state and federal permits.

And in 2018, just under a year ago, Vineyard Wind was selected in order to bid to sell electricity from offshore wind to the Commonwealth. In 2019, what brings us here, is we received final certification from the state on our environmental review allowing us to seek regional and local permits.

So a brief overview of the company; we're New Bedford based, a lot of local and also global talent and there's a nice mix of that. We draw on the resources of some international partners who have experienced the bulk of offshore wind development in Europe. There's

4,000 turbines spinning off European shores. And from that technical side and also the financial side, there's a great deal of expertise and capacity there. And then we are really over the past several years cultivated by meaningful partnerships that I'll go into a little bit later.

1.4

The essence of the project at 30,000 feet where this is perhaps, you know, 30 miles is an 800-megawatt wind farm. That's roughly about enough power for 400,000 homes located 35 miles south of Cape Cod, about 15 miles south of the islands.

The export cable will run through
Muskeget Channel and across Nantucket Sound and
make landfall at Covell's Beach in Barnstable.
The run from Covell's Beach to the substation in
Independence Park where we will connect to the
grid is about 5.3 miles, all underground from the
turbines, essentially, to the substation. Again,
it's located in Independence Park next to the
existing Eversource substation.

So, talking about partnerships, this has been the result of a lot of collaborative

planning. We have a lot of meaningful endorsements and relationships that have crafted the project in a meaningful way. Local, regional, and national groups and some of them would highlight, in addition to our outreach that we've been undergoing for the past few years, numerous appearances before nonprofit boards in addition to community forums, widely publicized, office hours, open houses in Barnstable and other parts of the Cape. We also expanded into new media to try and reach beyond just traditional print media and word-of-mouth and postings to really try and capture the community and make sure that we were getting all the input we could.

2.3

And crucial to this was a Host

Community Agreement that we were able to arrive
at with Barnstable. Barnstable is sort of the
main host of the infrastructure for Vineyard Wind
onshore. We had extensive and broad ranging
discussions with town staff over many months.

Some of the highlights of that Agreement:
protecting the town's interest, providing the
town with benefits and also establishing a
partnership with the company, seasonal

construction restrictions avoiding, obviously, 1 the summer months working in Covell's Beach, 2 especially. We call it the human migration is 3 one of the many time of year restrictions we deal 4 with, so limiting our work to outside the peak 5 season to minimize disruption. Extensive 6 discussion about design standards for 7 containment. You know, we're on the sole-source 8 aguifer. It's not lost on anyone. This is the 9 most prized resource on land. So we've worked 10 out standards within the HCA that we think will 11 set a standard for other electrical 12 infrastructure development beyond Vineyard Wind. 13 Not a small measure, \$16 million in supplemental 14 payments and that's in addition to substantial 15 property tax revenues that the town will receive 16 over the life of the project. And that 16 17 million is a fully unrestricted amount of support 18 that's going to be given to the town throughout 19 the course of the project's operation and the 20 town has -- in a while thereafter made the 21 dedication towards the Water Stabilization Fund 22 for that funding, but it's the town's prerogative 23 24 as to where those funds go.

Repaving and rehabbing the Covell's area after construction. We're also going to be installing a bathhouse or funding the town to build a bathhouse which is on their capital plan to provide some community enhancements in the area where we'll be working.

2.3

I'll go quickly through project
benefits. I know it's been in the filings that
we've submitted to you, but local revenue as
mentioned before. Infrastructure investments to
try and anchor this industry in southeastern
Mass., which will result in jobs not only on the
South coast and South shore but also the Cape and
Islands.

A commitment to marine animal protection both through our agreement with national eNGOs on construction to protect the North Atlantic Right Whale, and in addition to that as part of our bid, \$3 million to support innovations in Right Whale and Marine Mammal Protection. The idea being to get some things integrated into the system so that monitoring and protections can be advanced.

Climate change benefits we've

discussed. Significant ratepayer benefits. The DOER came out with a study establishing that against a baseline. This will result in actually some savings for Massachusetts ratepayers.

Improved grid reliability.

1.4

Massachusetts or, excuse me, Cape Cod, it's been a one-way street for electricity. It comes from the mainland and comes out to us. This utilizes that infrastructure and injects a significant amount of power at the edge of the grid. We've got a Resiliency and Affordability Fund that Barnstable, as a partner community, will be a beneficiary. Its \$15 million, a million dollars a year for resiliency projects including battery and storage, the idea being some measure — battery storage for emergency shelters and those kind of emergency events. And then, of course, in following with the many years of work that's been done at the state level to enhance our climate change and clean energy efforts.

So, quickly, about the project's development, excuse me, the project's sort of progress. It's really into three parts: an offshore component, an onshore component, and the

substation component, the transmission component.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

So if we follow here, the installation will be done by a hydro-plow or jet plow, which is the upper left. That's a prescribed minimally invasive technique for fluidizing the sea bottom in a narrow trench and allowing the cable to settle there. Our routing has been the result of extensive, you know, years of survey of the sea bottom with an array of technology that I wouldn't bore you with but it's been pretty extensive.

You see in the center there the image of the cable-laying vessel, the vessel that trails and distributes the cable. Important to our efforts here, horizontal directional drilling will be used to transition from the ocean to the That ultimately is going to the parking shore. lot, setting ourselves back from the beach a bit, drilling down below an arc, and ultimately reaching about 30 feet of depth at the tide line. So Covell's Beach is an accreting shoreline generally, so fewer concerns about erosion. But that notwithstanding, putting the cable to sufficient depth virtually eliminates any

possibility of human impact in that shore side area. It arrives on the offshore, you know, after a thousand foot of HDD, so also outside the swimming environment.

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

You see a little picture of an example cable. Two of those will be installed and that is what can carry the electricity to the grid.

So onshore, it really begins to resemble a traditional public works or construction project. Roads are opened, trench is dug, conduit is laid, encased in cement, covered over and then cable is pulled through various duct banks, which is in the upper right there at various intervals. The expectation's about one to 200 feet of progress per day, and these parts of the project don't need to happen in a single succession. Different areas can be worked at different times and, again, obeying seasonal restrictions knowing that our traffic constraints are a lot higher in the summer. There's also additional traffic management procedures and plans that are worked out comprehensively.

You can see the route from Craigville

Beach Road, Strawberry Hill, Wequaquet, Phinneys, Attucks Lane and then into Independence Drive. This is ultimately what the project will look like throughout the communities. A couple of manhole covers to access some of those junction boxes in between runs of conduit. This is actually an existing cable, one of half a dozen that comes to the south side of the Cape, and this one is the more recent cable that feeds

Nantucket with their power; there's three others from Falmouth to the Vineyard.

. 1

1.0

So the substation in Independence Park, we've talked about the containment elements associated with the Host Community Agreement.

You can see to the north of that example schematic, the Barnstable Switching Station, so we are able to bring the power to shore, step it down and process it appropriately and then connect into the grid there. And then you can see the mockup of the substation as it will be viewed from the parking lot in Independence Park.

So, I wanted to go quickly into the permitting process. I don't have to belabor this too much, but we've got a major -- main federal

process which involves the consultations and approval of numerous federal agencies and then two threads of state review, both the MEPA process, the Mass. Environmental Policy Act process which leads down to the regional and then the local level and then the Energy Facilities Siting Board. We've received a tentative approval from the EFSB and expect final approval very shortly. We've worked through the MEPA process and received final Environmental Impact Report which, again, that was finalized in February and that allowed us to pursue regional and local permits. Host of agencies, I don't need to get into too much but you can imagine the typical players, those devoted to endangered species, DEP, DMF, Division of Marine Fisheries, and at the federal level everything from Coast Guard to FAA to National Marine Fisheries.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

I would also want to note that sort of the project timeline, you know, it started a couple of years ago, and our goal is to begin construction this year. And it's an important goal because it means that the benefits of the project both locally, to the town, regionally,

and as well as statewide and nationally in terms of our climate goals can be achieved more quickly. So we've really enjoyed working with the staff to make sure that we were comprehensive and I think we've largely arrived there. We look forward to your questions.

2.0

I'm going to introduce Kate McEneaney to discuss some of the specifics as it relates to our DRI application.

MS. KATE MCENEANEY: Good afternoon.

It's a pleasure to be here. My piece of the puzzle is to discuss the standards of approval for a Development of Regional Impact, a DRI, and to address how the project meets those standards, and you, all, are familiar with those standards, but it's consistency with Regional Policy Plan, that's the 2019 Regional Policy Plan, relatively new; consistency with municipal bylaws and planning documents, and a weighing of the benefits and the detriments.

We have a very substantial record on this case, and the Regional Policy Plan and the Local Comprehensive Plans and the Bylaws are quite extensive. I'm going to synthesize all of

this information for you in about five or six slides. So, here we go.

I want to just start by taking a step back and looking at the Barnstable County Growth Policy as stated in the Regional Policy Plan. The Growth Policy is sort of a mission statement for the plan and the entire planning effort undertaken in the Regional Policy Plan. And the Regional Policy Plan says of that Growth Policy that it aims to "Support the vision for the future of Cape Cod as a place of vibrant, sustainable, and healthy communities and a protected natural environment."

And we say, "Yes," yes to that idea.

The project will fit perfectly with this vision for Cape Cod. It will bring -- it will be the first project to bring renewable wind energy online at a commercial scale, as Nate mentioned, that powers over 400,000 homes. It will do that and replace power and offset 1.6 million tons of carbon dioxide. And we propose to do that in a way that not only protects but enhances the resources of the Cape. How? That's next.

So the Regional Policy Plan addresses a

complex and interrelated and dynamic human and natural environment by breaking that down into three categories, and that's Natural Systems, Built Systems, and Community Systems.

2.2

So I'd like to start with Natural
Systems and this covers water resources, ocean
resources, wetland resources, wildlife and plant
habitat, and open space. So how does the project
address these resources? How does it protect
these resources?

First of all, through the Host

Community Agreement with Barnstable, as Nate

mentioned, the Vineyard Wind project will provide

a new funding source for this Water Stabilization

Fund to the tune of \$16 million. The site also

will be constructed with a secondary containment

system that's above industry standards. So that

containment system is primarily for the

dielectric fluid that is -- that will be used on

the site that is necessary for the operation of

the site. This dielectric fluid is a coolant and

an insulator and it's much like mineral oil in

terms of its characteristics. So there will be a

secondary containment system that provides a

redundancy to make sure that there's no chance that this dielectric fluid will make its way into the environment.

2.3

There's no permanent impacts to wetland or our species habitat with this project. And the project is proposing a comprehensive suite of protective measures or Best Management Practices during construction to make sure that all impacts are avoided and minimized, and this includes a Benthic Habitat Monitoring Plan that's pertinent to the offshore piece, the marine piece, and erosion control plans, as may spill control plans, as well as many other protective measures, and those are detailed in our application.

Moving on to Built Systems, these relate to community design, coastal resiliency, capital facilities, transportation, energy, waste management. Again, this is a really significant source of renewable energy, 800 megawatts, and that will make the regional grid more reliable. It also addresses, importantly, the considerations of coastal resiliency.

So here we have a project that not only presents a design that is perfectly consistent

with the coastal resiliency design standards but also actually addresses the inherent problem behind global warming and climate change that, I think this is well stated in the Regional Policy Plan, touches every aspect of life on the Cape or will touch or has already touched.

The siting of the project is contact sensitive from a planning perspective and, again, we have a very robust suite of Best Management Practices to ensure that there will be no impacts to any of the other infrastructure systems, such as the transportation systems, and that includes Traffic Management Plans that will be developed with Barnstable, DPW, and the police.

Finally, Community Systems addresses cultural heritage, economy, and housing and this project will provide new substantial funding for education and training. It will be a new source of jobs, a new industry in the region. There's no impact to cultural resources. The Department of Energy Resources has assessed that there will be a significant savings to ratepayers from the project, and also the Host Community Agreement establishes a significant source of revenue for

Barnstable -- for the Town of Barnstable.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

To address the substation specifically for a moment, it is proposed on a 6.3 acre parcel of land. This was -- the parcel is part of the former Cape Cod Times property off of Independence Drive; I'm not sure if you're familiar with that. It is within the Industrial Park. It is, from a siting perspective, we feel it's well sited. It's adjacent to the existing Eversource substation that's just south of the highway there and also adjacent to the existing overhead utility right-of-way. It is within a designated Industrial Activity Center, that's a Cape Cod Commission designation. And I'll just elaborate on that; the Industrial Activity Center is defined as lands containing industrial uses that are suitable for future industrial activity as well as emerging industries. So that's a good fit.

And there is containment to protect groundwater -- let me back up. The site is also located within a Wellhead Protection Area and to acknowledge that and make sure that the groundwater resources are absolutely protected.

I mentioned that there's an above-industry standard containment system planned. And Vineyard Wind has been working closely as well with the Town of Barnstable on that.

2.2

Performance Measures; there are nine performance measures listed in the Regional Policy Plan. I won't go through them all. I will note that the project has either no impact or a positive impact to all of these measures. And the reasons that I think it's important to mention that is in most cases with development, we assume there's a trade-off between -- with development and some of these critical resources, these yardsticks to measure these critical resources. In our case, that trade-off is not there in some cases so we have a positive impact. So stuff like BioMap habitat and nitrogen loading, we have no impact there. Sorry, hold on. It's not done yet.

Finally, the final piece is consistency with local planning and, importantly, benefits versus detriments. The project is consistent with the Local Comprehensive Plan, DCPC, and Municipal Bylaws. The Zoning, in terms of the

Bylaws, zoning is addressed in part through the state siting process, which is the Energy Facilities Siting Board and Department of Public Utilities, and that is also addressed in the Host Community Agreement as well.

Finally, benefits versus detriments.

Nate had an entire slide on benefits. We could talk for 45 minutes, I think, just on that slide.

The benefits are significant and they are long lasting. There are environmental benefits. We mentioned 1.6 million tons of carbon dioxide annually, that's about 325,000 cars off the road — the equivalent of. So environment, we can't say that enough.

Economic benefits in terms of bringing this new and emerging industry to this area, jobs, funding for job training, and scientific research as well with the Marine Mammals

Innovation Fund and, also, some of these go towards Community and building community here on the Cape and in the region. And, specifically, some of these funding streams are going towards scientific organizations and higher education -- institutions of higher education.

In terms of the detriments and thinking about that weighing that happens at the Commission level, the detriments are temporary and minor. Some of the things that we think about are temporary potential for traffic congestion, for example, while the cables are being installed within the roadway, and those are things that we think can be managed and putting a lot of effort into making sure that we're coordinating with the town and abutters on that.

So we feel that the benefits far outweigh the

detriments on this project.

Finally, we are also really cognizant of, given the importance at all these different levels of this project, the project's schedule, and we're hoping to be under construction this fall and, hopefully, through the Barnstable Conservation Commission, maybe even this spring. So we're lining up all of our ducks and we've got the Siting Board coming in and MEPA, so we're on full throttle. So we appreciate the Commission's piece of that and also want to just say how much we appreciate working with the staff on this project which was, I think, maybe unique for them

and a lot -- this huge record, so we just really appreciate all the work that they've put into it.

And with that, I appreciate your time and I look forward to the discussion, and our project team is here if we have any questions that you would care to refer to us, we'd be more than happy to address those. So that is all. Thank you.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you,

Kate. At this time, we'll have Commission staff
hearing offering their presentation. Jon Idman.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair, members of the Commission. For the record, Jon Idman, your Chief Regulatory Officer. I just want to state that the applicant has prepared -- there are some unique regulatory provisions for projects like this, and the applicant has prepared a statement that those on the development team, the Vineyard Wind Development Team, have given their testimony today under oath.

A DRI hearing was held on the project on April 9. I served as a hearing officer for that hearing. This project is subject to the

State's Energy Facilities Siting Board jurisdiction and also DRI jurisdiction and, thus, is subject to certain special procedural provisions such as the one I mentioned under the Commission's regulations.

2.2

2.3

Of note, these regulations expressly allow for the use of hearing officers to hold hearings for these substantive hearings for these energy-related projects which are also subject to Energy Facilities Siting Board review.

Staff has prepared a draft decision.

Those regulations call for a report and recommendation being made by the hearing officer to the Commission. And what I'm providing to you today is the report which is contemplated under the regulations, and my recommendations are contained in the draft DRI decision, which has been distributed to the board and also made available to the public online.

This was a complicated project. There was a lot of review with it, so I just want to recognize some of my colleagues who had a greater level of participation in it: Jessica Wielgus, Heather McElroy, Scott Michaud, Tim Pasakarnis,

Steve Tupper, and I want to give kind of an extra special call out to Kristen Clothier, who's my regulatory colleague in the Regulatory Department who put in a significant amount of work on this project.

1.3

When we had this hearing on April 9, it was pretty well attended. There were 20 or 30 public attendees at the hearing, approximately nine people provided testimony. Some of those provided written comment. All who spoke and gave direct testimony, oral testimony at that hearing spoke in favor of the project.

All these written comments, which we have received to date, are in your member materials as well as contained online. There have been a few letters we received over the past few days. They are contrary to those comments we received early in the process. There were in opposition to the project. I'll let you make your determination after you review those but, frankly, they were a little off-base with the project that's directly before the Commission. They're a little broader than that, and they actually came from letter-writers who are outside

of our jurisdiction. But without me giving any further color, I'll let you review those and you determine how much weight or credibility you want to give them relative to your review.

The applicant's PowerPoint presentation from the April 9 hearing is also contained in your materials. You'll notice a guest here today, a transcriptionist who's taking a verbatim transcript, that's another special provision within these regulations. We also have a transcript that was available to you and to the public in your materials from April 9 as well.

The draft decision which has been prepared is based on the application materials that have been submitted by the applicant, public testimony, and written comment letters that have been provided and staff's analysis as well as my own observation as a hearing officer of that April 9 hearing.

This decision also takes in large part from certain proposed findings and conditions that were referenced in a staff memorandum that was prepared for that April 9 hearing which, again, is in your materials and also contained on

2.2

1 the website.

1.8

2.0

Essentially, the recommendation that's contained in that draft DRI decision to the Commission is to grant DRI approval for the project subject to the conditions in that draft. The draft contains all the findings and conditions necessary to approve the project given the standards of DRI approval set out in the act and regulations without limitation findings concerning the consistency with the Regional Policy Plan, consistency with municipal development bylaws, and findings about the relative probable project benefits and detriments.

I want to make a point of emphasis here too because of the complexity of the project. As you've heard some reference to, the project overall actually represents some features outside of Barnstable County jurisdiction. There's an overall wind project with a connector that ultimately will terminate in Independence Park in Hyannis. However, the Commission does not have direct jurisdiction over those elements located outside Barnstable County.

So, essentially, what the Commission is looking at in terms of the project is the offshore export cable located in Barnstable County waters, and that cable as it arrives on land at Covell's Beach traverses north, northerly in Barnstable, and ends up in Independence Park and then connects to the grid. That entire landbase cable is in the Town of Barnstable. It kind of brings me to another thought the Commission

staff has had in reviewing the project.

1.3

with that Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act process for which Commission staff provided a number of comments. Commission staff was pleased to see that some of our recommendations especially concerning the land-based cable route were taken into account and, in fact, at first there was a proposal to have alternative routes, one which would go through Yarmouth, one which would go through Barnstable. Commission staff's positions is that the one through Barnstable had fewer impacts on various resources and, in fact, that is the project or part of the project you see before you, and Commission staff was happy to

see that change based on some of its comments through the MEPA process.

2.2

2.3

All those MEPA filings, by the way, including the Commission's comment letters are contained in your materials -- you'll hear this as a refrain today, as well as located on the website.

Getting to some of the other standards for DRI review in terms of municipal development regulations, there's kind of another unique feature of this project. In terms of local zoning matters as allowed under Massachusetts General Laws, the zoning matters have actually been deferred to the DPU and then to the EFSB to issue certain zoning exemptions and the town consented that.

So, essentially, there will be no zoning reviews over the project in the town. The zoning reviews have been consolidated in the EFSB docket consolidated with other matters, like the actual request to construct the project which the EFSB has a direct jurisdiction over.

In terms of the RPP itself, as you know, there were 14 goals in the 2019 RPP and

corresponding objectives with those goals as well as corresponding methods and the Technical Bulletins which clarify certain of those goals and objectives. Essentially, all but two of those goals apply to this project. The two that didn't apply were housing and waste management, but some of the things that you would think would apply wetlands, coastal resiliency, ocean resources, open space all applied in this given case. And you'll find finding relative to those in the decision in, I think, relative detail.

1.

There's also an appendix to the decision which, basically, gives a checklist about which of the goals and objectives in the Policy Plan actually applied to the RPP Consistency Analysis in this given case.

I guess I also want to make a general point too that if we look at some of the reasons why there was a significant change in the way the Commission did the 2019 RPP versus predecessor versions of the RPP, I think this was a really good test case for that because in any given project there will be positive and negative effects or impacts with that project, and it's

incumbent on a review board like the Cape Cod Commission to have abilities to reconcile those potential positive and negative impacts, and that's exactly what this RPP allows the Commission to do, and I hope you see that reflected in the findings and conditions in the draft decision.

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

In order for -- I think it's been helpful for me to think about this project to separate it into kind of three parts, at least the project that the Commission is looking at. The offshore export cable and the landing at Covell's Beach in Barnstable, kind of the long stretch of cable which is located under paved roadways in Barnstable, and then that substation component which is located in Independence Park. And really throughout staff's emphasis, I don't know if this surprises you or not, has actually been on the substation up in Independence Park. I think you saw the matrix of how many federal and state project partners there are when you saw the earlier presentation, that actually, I:think, assists Commission staff and assists the Commission because there's a great deal of

emphasis on reviewing the project out in the near shore and offshore areas. And some of these state, of course, state and federal agencies have a technical expertise that really helps the Commission in its review as the applicant worked with these state agencies to come up with ways to minimize, avoid, or mitigate impacts within those ocean resources: fisheries, marine mammals, etcetera.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

1.6

17

18

19

20

21

22

2.3

24

Within the middle portion of the project, if you will, which is the cable underneath the road -- public rights-of-way in the Town of Barnstable, to be honest, there were It was very well sited. a few concerns. under paved right-of-way. As you see with some of the figures in the application, there were very few resources located in that area. weren't historic resources, wetlands resources, etcetera, so that kind of long stretch of cable under roadways was well sited and, essentially, as being -- if there are any impacts, they are temporary transportation impacts and they'll largely be handled through individual Transportation Management Plans for certain

intersections or stretches of roadway that have been already worked on extensively with the town and that our staff has reviewed relatively extensively as well.

So in terms of a point of emphasis of what Commission staff spent I think most of its efforts on especially in terms of review of the RPP and consistency with the RPP is the substation. And this is a perfect example of having to reconcile certain positive and negative impacts or effects of a project. This area up in Independence Park is an Industrial Service and Trade Area with the Commission. It is also an industrial area with the Town of Barnstable, that said, it's also Wellhead Protection Area. So by me telling you that, you can already see some of the maybe inherent conflicts that need to be reconciled.

Along with substations also come up -come with the need to use something called
"dielectric fluid," which is essentially a
coolant, and in the parlance of the Cape Cod
Commission's Regional Policy Plan, it's a
hazardous material. So, obviously, to reconcile

mitigation response. And the strong mitigation response that's been provided here is to provide a very risk-conservative approach towards containment. And the applicant is also providing \$16 million through a Host Community Agreement they've entered into with the Town, and the Town has agreed to direct all those funds to a Water Stabilization Fund the town has provided, which will be used to study and, ultimately, develop a new water supply areas in the Town of Barnstable.

Some other kind of issues to reconcile in terms of the substation is an issue associated with Open Space. So, again, it's an Industrial Service and Trade Area. There is a switching station directly north of this new substation, so in that sense it's relatively well sited but, again, there's a Wellhead Protection Area, and the area proposed to be cleared is several acres. Naturally forested area helps to protect Wellhead Protection Areas. So, again, a conflict point in how do we reconcile that. It's being essentially reconciled through not only the payment through the Host Community Agreement but also through a

commitment that the applicant has made since that April 9 hearing to provide 5.9 acres of open space through a potential combination of methods, and that's the last condition you'll see in your decision. That Open Space commitment can be done through payments in lieu, an actual restriction of land, working with the Town to direct some of those Host Community Agreement payments to the restriction of open space. But, none the less, the applicant has committed to provide open space protection to mitigate for that loss of tree cover in the Industrial Service and Trade Area, which is also a Wellhead Protection Area.

1.0

2.0

2.2

The last kind of conflict point that staff spent some significant time with relative to the substation is community design. So the same refrain I've made here, this is a substation. It's in an Industrial Service and Trade Area, but also directly abutting to the east of the proposed substation site is a utility easement and abutting that is a residential community. So you see a conflict point there. You have a relatively industrial-type use within several hundred feet of a multi-family

residential use. The mitigation response to that is to keep a relatively substantial buffer, a commitment to keep a relatively substantial buffer along Independence Park, a 30 foot buffer along the easterly side of the new substation where it's available and doesn't interfere with the utility easements, and then provide landscaping in concert with the town to appropriately mitigate visual impacts associated with, especially the northeasterly side of that substation.

That northeasterly side of the substation also proposes to have a noise and visual barrier as well, primarily for noise but will also provide a direct visual barrier to looking into and see some of the substation equipment at that proposed substation.

Kind of moving on to the next significant sort of undertaking that staff had in terms of the DRI standards of approval is this concept which is probably the Commission's greatest level of jurisdiction is over the relative probable benefits of a project versus the probable detriments associated with a

2.2

2.3

project. The recommendation in this decision, again, it recognizes some particular probable benefits and some particular probable detriments, but the recommendation of the decision is ultimately that the probable benefit of the project is greater than its probable detriment.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2.0

21

22

23

24

I think you've already heard some of the suggested benefits and detriments and I'll kind of direct you to the section of the draft decision which speaks to those things but, roughly, the benefits are associated with furthering the Global Warming Solutions Act in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the facilitating the reduction in greenhouse gas emissions, the sort of economic impacts with not only this project but the economic prospects associated with the renewable energy sector. And then the payments to various funds and programs that you'll see referenced in the decision are running the gamut from this Host Community Agreement, we spoke about, all the way to providing infrastructure programs which would provide seed money for battery storage projects on Cape Cod, which is an emphasis of the states of and also definitely is an important component to the generation of renewable energy in order to store that energy and improve resiliency in the particular area to use that energy when other energy is — energy sources are in greater demand, and then I think another great benefit is in this Host Community Agreement with this approach to containment and other matters.

In terms of -- there are some recognized detriments, and I think the applicant was pretty straightforward and honest suggesting some of these detriments themselves, and many of them I've gone over with you today already. They are detriments, potential detriments associated with the substation. I will note interestingly that they're also occasioned, all these identified detriments are also occasioned by strong mitigation actions, for instance, the clearing of land in the Wellhead Protection Area for the substation is occasioned by the commitment to provide 5.9 acres of open space protection through a combination of different available methods.

I want to go through a number of

conditions in the decision. Those are always 1 sometimes kind of the most telling feature of a 2 particular decision. You can imagine given the 3 nature of this project, I can as I've seen it 4 evolve through working through the MEPA phase and 5 then to now, it's a constantly moving project and 6 there's this incredible matrix of different permitting that's required at the local, 8 regional, state, and federal level. So you can 9 10 imagine that the plans we got in some cases were relatively conceptual because the project could 11 only be planned to a certain level given some of 12 the changes that will be made with a project of 13 this scope. So it's important to recognize in 14 this decision that there are approved project 15 plans but there are instances with some of these 16 approved project plans that they're recognized as 17 conceptual in nature, and there are specific 18 plans referenced and the conditions of the 19 20 decision that we expect to receive in final or 21 updated form with greater information. And many of those plans are related again to the 22 They are things like final design of : 23 substation.

containment, final landscaping plans for the

24

substation, final, if you will, architectural renderings or elevations for the substation itself.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Another very important condition deals with requiring the applicant to continue to pursue all its obligations under the Host Community Agreement with the Town of Barnstable. I'll take kind of a side note to say that Host Community Agreement is kind of an unusual feature in my experience in permitting, and it's a great feature to have because many of those things that you normally try to address and preserve and protect through your permitting had been accounted for and addressed with a contractual relationship with the town, the town of which probably is at a greater susceptibility to suffer some of these impacts most directly which the Commission is in charge of mitigating, minimizing, or avoiding.

There are a number of other conditions related to the applicant continuing to work with both the town and state agencies on those Traffic Management Plans or other transportation issues referenced in those conditions. Potential impact

on fisheries was an important consideration in the decision, and the applicant has worked with state agencies and made strong commitments towards a fisheries monitoring and monitoring of other ocean resources. I'll direct you to the last condition again which deals with the Open Space commitment.

And, finally, we've spoken about dielectric fluid as a hazardous material at the substation; the applicant is ultimately required to give an inventory of any other materials which constitute hazardous materials under the Cape Cod Commission's Policy Plan and Technical Bulletin, and to the extent that there are additional materials revealed have to develop a management plan including potentially some additional required containment to address the other hazardous materials that may be identified in that final inventory.

So I will -- I'll say in closing to you that I know after having conversations with the applicant that they believe that there are certain exigencies, I think, that they would like to obtain permits as soon as they can. This

decision would allow you to essentially approve the project subject to the conditions in the decision accounting for all the required findings that are required under the Commission's enabling regulations given the DRI Standards Review.

But I also want to let you know that there is no absolute requirement that the Commission has to do this day. You have plenty of time in your public hearing period if you see fit to have additional hearings or meetings on this project recognizing that this is a big complicated project and you may need time to digest that.

So with that, I would be happy to take any questions as they might arise today, and I'm sure my colleagues in attendance would as well. Thank you.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you, Jon.

At this time, we'll start with -- if the

Commissioners have any initial questions? Yes,

Charles.

MR. CHARLES MCCAFFREY: Two areas in the decision that I would like a little more information on. One is the sea-level rise and

the fact that the applicant analyzed historic accretion. My concern is that future sea-level rise could substantially mitigate if we have under a rapid sea-level rise scenario, four feet of sea-level rise by 2050 say that can very much change what the situation is at Covell Beach.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: That's true. I mean I can answer your question. I think what I would like to do now is kind of defer that substantive question to the applicant and then maybe after discuss with you why we think the information that was provided is at least consistent with the Commission's Technical Bulletin and RPP objective relative to this.

MR. CHARLES MCCAFFREY: Okay. My second question is probably the same kind. The trenching offshore will disturb benthic habitat. What evidence is there that even though it's quite limited, what evidence is there that benthic habitat would restore itself in the area of the trenching?

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: Yeah, I would like to defer that to the applicant first to get the substantive answer, and then maybe after that's

answered discuss why Commission staff thought that the mitigation actions referenced in the application were appropriate.

2.1

2.2

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Good afternoon.

My name is Ted Barton. I'm an environmental engineer by training and principal at Epsilon Associates, and I've been working with the Vineyard Wind team for the last two and a half years on this project.

Let me start with the benthic question first. So, this is a subject that has come up at pretty much all levels of the project review, federal, state, as well as the regional. The first place we kind of look for an answer on this is to look at cables that have already been installed in Nantucket Sound and similar waters using similar installation techniques. So those include both of the Nantucket cables, which are each roughly 25 miles long and more recently a cable over to the Vineyard which is about five miles long. All of those were installed using a jet plow technology which leaves a very narrow trench in the seabed to do the installation.

More recently, we looked at pretty extensive

monitoring that was done for the Block Island cable and this was done by both the proponent and by BOEM, the federal agency responsible for that.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

In all of these cases, the post installation monitoring that was done and it was done extensively for both the Vineyard cable and the Block Island cable show that first the disturbance was, in fact, very minimal, a few feet of width. And, secondly, that the seabed restored to its natural topography very quickly with a matter of a few weeks. There will, as you pointed out, be some short-term disturbance to the benthic organisms themselves, so one of the things that we've committed to primarily via the state and federal permitting is a Benthic Habitat Monitoring Plan, and that is being finalized as part of our state permitting, the 401 Water Quality Certification and, basically, we're going: to have to go, after installation, go back and do some pretty specific testing, grab samples and benthic analysis to basically show the state and the federal agencies that, indeed, the habitat has restored as we believe it will. And if for some reason that does not happen, there are some measures in that to restore some of at least larger benthic organisms, shellfish and the like.

1.

2.3

So we think there's a good track record out there that shows us in these waters that the cable can, in fact, be installed with very minimal habitat damage and that that situation restores itself quite quickly.

So let me go to your first question which was sea-level rise, certainly something that I think is top of mind for pretty much everybody that's been involved in the project.

So we did look -- we looked carefully at Covell's Beach to get an idea of historically is the beach -- is it stable; is it eroding; is it accreting? And, in fact, it is accreting. I don't have the figure memorized but it was something to the tune of about 150 feet of accretion over the last century or thereabouts. So, that's certainly a positive thing.

The physical installation that we'd be conducting at Covell's, as Nate went through in his presentation, uses HDD. So the cable is placed at a depth of roughly 25 to 30 feet below the water at its maximum depth. It's in

It terminates in a concrete vault that conduits. will be buried under the Covell's Beach parking lot and then that continues into a duct bank that will go through the streets. All of that is designed to operate in a wet environment if need So it could be something much less dramatic than sea-level rise. It can be just ordinary storm flooding; it can be unusual participation events and the like. So the equipment is designed to maintain that, and we believe the design of the installation is sufficiently robust that it will certainly endure even in a significant sea-level rise environment for the 30 to 40 year life of the project.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

MR. CHARLES MCCAFFREY: Thank you.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: You're welcome.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes, Ernie.

MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: You recognized the plow method; however, you haven't mentioned there also could possibly be mechanical trenching, there may be a dredge used, or identifying other possible ways of digging this trench, shallow water cable installation tractor, pre-trenching the boulder removal and replacement and jetting. I'm

a little bit concerned on, one, you only mentioned that you've got to plow it in, but yet you've indicated in all these other methods that you're going to use if you have to that, to me, is certainly a concern for disturbing the ocean floor.

Next, you haven't brought up anything about, I'm sorry, correct myself. I haven't found any answers for the NOAA questions. I can't find any data that you updated or you answered any of their concerns.

My next question is what is the depth of the cable on land and the width, and what's the termination points of these junctions? Are they 500 feet, 600 feet? I know I should be reading your plan but I have reasons for those questions. And how are these properly protected in the road areas? And I'm assuming you're going to, of course, replace the road and not just the trench. It's quite a few miles of disturbed roadway. So I've got a few questions if you'd like to answer them.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Okay. Well, that was a pretty long list, so I think we'll start

with the roadways and we'll work back. So the cable, as Nate explained in his presentation, goes in a duct bank. The duct bank basically will consist of eight roughly 10-inch plastic They're typically arranged in a two-wide, four-deep form, although depending on where we are in interferences with other utilities that can vary. There's an option to do a four-wide, two-deep variation. But, typically, for most of the road sections it will be either two ducts wide or two conduits wide, four deep. There's a minimum cover requirement of about three feet and the trench itself is going to be two-and-a-half feet wide or so and it will go down allowing for the 3 feet of cover. It will be down at a depth of 7 or 8 feet to the bottom of the trench.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

So the plastic sleeves are encased in concrete and then there's soil or compacted material placed over that. The roads will be restored by -- there will be a temporary patch but then there is provision for full-width repaving of the road. The town of Barnstable was pretty insistent on that and that's the right way to do it. So we've made that commitment.

23

24

There are splice vaults at a spacing of roughly 1,500 feet, it can vary somewhat depending on the number of bends and such in the cable, but typically every 1,500 feet there's a concrete vault that goes under the street. cable is pulled in at one end, and then the next stretch of cable is pulled in from the other end. They're spliced in the vault. There's six cables in total. So the eight sleeves that I described in the duct bank allows for two spares if they're ever needed. This is pretty typical underground electric utility construction. This question came up in some of our other reviews. There are, if memory serves me correctly, something like 30 other cities and towns in Massachusetts where this technology or something very similar is in use for voltages ranging from 46 kV for the Nantucket cables of which there are some buried in Barnstable streets all the way up to 345 kV in places like Stoughton and Milton and the city of There's quite a bit of 115 kV cable as Boston. well. So we're certainly confident that this can be installed properly and operate reliably for the life of the facility.

1.	Questions on that before I go onto the
2	other questions?
3	MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Well, I'm familiar
4	with duct lines. Just one more on your junction
5	boxes, those are concrete?
6	MR. THEODORE BARTON: Concrete, yes.
7	MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: It's a cast iron
8	frame, right?
9	MR. THEODORE BARTON: For the manhole
10	covers above, yes.
11	MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Thank you. I
12	would like to get back to your process, which
13	I'd like to get back to your process where you
14	mention all these other methods that you're
15	probably going to need bringing this cable
16	across. This is a great concern to me. I wish I
17	could comment about the windmills but I won't v
18	because I don't think I'm supposed to. But,
19	anyway, a great concern to me is what you're
20	going to encounter, and this is a long path, and
21	all these other methods are not simply plowing a
22	couple of cables in the ground. So, how are
23	MR. THEODORE BARTON: So
24	MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Let's try and

answer that, but on top of that I'm going to ask you one more. Go ahead.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Okay. So we're transitioning now from -- my first answer was on the land cables, the under street cables; now we're out in the ocean. So, you're right. a long cable route. It's roughly 40 miles from the offshore wind farm itself up through Muskeget Channel, across Nantucket Sound to Covell's Beach. So we started surveying that route about three years ago. We did some preliminary surveys, some sort of single line geophysical and bathymetric surveys to get an idea of the basic characteristics of the sediment. Obviously, we had lots of map charts and other information to start with. That survey, in turn, was used to Then there was an area refine the routes. roughly 800 meters wide surveyed very carefully for the entire length of that route. mapping is a level of detail; it does not appear in this record but it has been submitted as part of the BOEM, the federal record, and it's also been submitted as part of the MEPA and state review efforts. So people have had a chance to

1 look at this very carefully.

So we've characterized not only the obvious like water depth and bottom contours but we've taken vibracore samples along the entire route so we have an idea down to a depth of 10 or 12 feet what the sediment actually looks like. We've used geophysical techniques to take a, basically, take a scan of what the bottom conditions are, and we've done a host of biological surveys as well.

So all that material was used by the engineering team that's going to be responsible for actually installing the cable to figure out where within that 800 meter-wide swath is the best location to route the cable.

So, the long list of potential methods that you see listed there, some of those are preparatory. So if we get in an area where the conditions look pretty favorable but there may be a boulder or more than one boulder in the way, we've described a technique basically to pick up the boulder, relocate it within the corridor but to get it out of the way of the path that we'd like to follow. We're confident that the vast

majority of the installation can be done using jet plow, the sediments are conducive to that. They're uniform; they're relatively soft. The jet plow technique we think will work fine.

Now that said, there are areas where there are stiffer sediments that we have to go through, and there are areas where there are active sand waves primarily in the Muskeget Channel area. So you'll notice that we describe the installation as a burial depth of 5 to 8 feet below the stable sea floor, so that means we have to get through the mobile sand wave and into the stable sediment in order to do the jet plowing. So the dredging was described as one method to, basically, make a temporary notch in a sand wave so that we can then run the jet plow through the stable sediment and install the cable that way and then the sea will restore those dunes.

We've been looking at a variant of a jet plow which is a basically more capable version of the normal jet plow that will allow us to go through the sand waves without the need to dredge in advance. And that looks like the installation technique that we will use well

offshore.

_

The area that is in front of the Commission, the Barnstable County piece of this, which is about seven miles, that we are confident we can use the jet plow technique as we've described.

Lastly, the jetting is something that

-- it's a hand jetting operation and that's used
in very specific circumstances, for instance,
where you bring the end of the cable into the end
of the HDD. You can't run the equipment right up
to the end of the HDD pipes so you use hand
jetting to put the cable to the right depth
there. So we've left some flexibility but the
vast majority of the installation we expect to be
as described with a jet plow.

MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: I just wanted my colleagues to understand a little bit better, I hope. Is there some reason why the NOAA questions were not answered or were they answered? Was there any information passed along regarding their concerns? Can you answer that or would someone else?

MR. THEODORE BARTON: No, I can speak

to that. 'So you're talking about the NOAA letter, the comments --

MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Right.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: -- letter on the

DEIS?

2.2

MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Yes.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Yeah. So, NOAA is a federal agency and within that is the National Marine Fisheries Service, so they're one of several cooperating agencies in the federal review process, which has been going on for the last year and a half.

MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Yes.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: So in the course of that, NOAA and NMFS have made their concerns and questions known. They have been addressed by the BOEM team that is working on the federal MEPA review, so it's sort of like a parallel to MEPA but this is on the federal level. They did, I think, a decent job of addressing the NOAA concerns in the DEIS; however, NOAA had additional questions and those are being resolved as the FEIS is being put together. That document is out for federal agency review as we speak, and

it's scheduled to be made available for public 1 review in early June. 2 So, I think the NOAA comments have been 3 taken seriously by their counterparts in the 4 federal agency that's doing the MEPA review. 5 They're certainly taken seriously by the project. 6 That said, I think it probably is good to bear in mind that they are an advisory agency; they're not a permitting agency, so they can offer 9 comments and those comments are seriously 10 considered but there's a balancing that goes on 11 in the federal review process. And what you may 12 see in that letter is some of that balancing 13 14 process so. MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: To be fair, I live 15 here; I fish here. I love Cape Cod. I love the 16 17 waters; I love the area, that's the reason for my 18 questions. Thank you for doing your best. MR. THEODORE BARTON: You're welcome. 19 CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: 20 21 questions? Yes, Liz. MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Thank you. I just had 22 a few questions about the cable and the more 23

24

benthic questions, so you might as well come back

up again.

1.3

2.0

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Okay.

MS. LIZ TAYLOR: There have been some discussions about cable depth and cables coming back to the surface or not being deep enough.

But in part of the run from the turbine to land, you're not even going to have it buried? It's going to be on the sea floor because you ran into obstructions of some sort? It's going to be buried with I think it was concrete blankets or something? I'm just curious why you have to bury it at all? Is that for storm damage protection?

MR. THEODORE BARTON: So, I'll start with that piece. This is a project that has a physical and economic life expectancy measured in many decades, so we want to make sure that the cable, which there are two cables, which are the essential link between the offshore generation and the onshore grid are installed such that they are protected not only from storms but also from fishing activity, from potential anchor drops, etcetera, etcetera.

So it is accepted and expected normal practice that the cables will be buried, and we

have set a burial, a target burial depth of 5 to 8 feet below the stable sea bed, which is sufficient to protect the cable from that list of There could be, hazards that I just went over. although we expect this to be very limited, there could be instances where the sediments are stiff or rocky and we can't get that proper burial depth. So we will make repeated efforts to get to the burial depth, but if it just proves impossible in short stretches, then we'll use cable armoring to protect the cable. typically, that is placing rocks over the cable. So these could be stones of this size and a swath about 10-feet wide and a couple feet thick is placed over the cable and that provides a similar level of protection to if you're able to bury it.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

What we have told the federal and state agencies is that our objective is to bury every last foot of the cable so that we do not have to use any armoring. But we have, given that it's a 40-mile cable, albeit carefully surveyed, we want to have the flexibility if we do find a spot where we can't bury it to the target depth, we can protect it using other means. So that's

basically the armoring that was described.

1.0

2.3

Another technique to do that is to use something called a concrete mattress, but our feedback from the fishing community is that they would rather see us use rock, not the concrete mattresses because there has been some incidences of gear being snagged on the mattresses which have sort of sharper edges if you will. So our preference would be to use the rock armoring.

MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Okay. Thank you.

There was a lot of discussion about noise issues;

are there any issues with vibration, underwater

vibration issues because I would think the

turbines would produce vibrations which would be

transferred?

MR. THEODORE BARTON: In a word, no, and Jack Arruda may want to speak to this as, well, but vibrations in this kind of equipment, very bad thing. So the turbine operations are monitored carefully and if there is any sign of vibration which can lead to more severe problems, the equipment is shut down until it can be checked. So this is normally very smoothly operating rotating equipment.

MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Okay. Thank you. I just have one last question about economics using local people to install or do the lifetime management/maintenance of the turbines. I assume the company that installs them provides their own maintenance so how are we getting locals involved even if you train them?

2.2

MR. THEODORE BARTON: So I may ask Nate to expand on this, but as you probably know, the company has committed to establishing its operations and maintenance base out on the Vineyard. The initial maintenance will, in fact, likely be done largely by the people who have provided the equipment, but that is intended to be kind of a bridge to being able to train and then use people from the local region to do that work over the 30-plus year life of the project.

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: Yeah, I would add to that, you know, there has been a substantial priority put on local employment both -- both for the community benefit associated with it and for the fact that local knowledge when you work in a marine environment or in a municipal, you know,

Nate.

local environment that those are, you know, you benefit from that significantly.

1.3

To add to that -- so O&M facility is, for the long-term maintenance of the project, is planned for Martha's Vineyard. There will be some additional support services that will be needed to be brought in periodically off-Island. But we have also had a good dialogue with some of the local individuals who come out of Mass.

Maritime, for example, or individuals who are doing -- we have a guy from Bourne that we've been in touch with specifically who's done cablelaying operations for some of the Vineyard work.

Adding to that, there's sort of a twofold set of priorities in terms of getting local talent to be building not just this first project but, perhaps, subsequent projects. The Mass. CEC has done a lot of work to try and provide anchoring for the industry in southeastern Mass.

Additionally to that, Vineyard Wind has made a \$10 million infrastructure commitment.

The idea is we can front load and build some of the resources in New Bedford to support these,

that's going to be an economic draw for the region -- region at large.

1

2

3

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

2.3

24

And I would add to it, you know, folks that I know from Mass. Maritime that I went to high school with are often finding themselves having to go out to the Gulf or the West Coast. This is a burgeoning industry that's going to be available to them.

To add to the technical skill set that our maritime industries have, fisheries on the Cape, Islands, South coast, there is a need for some specialized training associated with transferring your basic and important marine skills to an offshore wind environment, construction or maintenance. We've devoted \$2 million to a wind -- we call the Windward Workforce for workforce investment to actually build that local talent. So we're already working with Cape Cod Community College, Bristol Community College, Mass. Maritime as well, some of the universities that certainly Cape Codders and people in Southeastern Mass. access. It's a benefit to the industry to have local talent and it's also, of course, a benefit to the

1 communities.

MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Thank you.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Anyone else?

MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: Just a follow-up to Elizabeth's question; do you have an estimate as to how many jobs would be generated by this project both during construction as well as operations?

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: Sure. So the operational, you know, the long-term operational is, I think, roughly about 80 full-time jobs to management the operations and maintenance of this first project. That number and the number of about 1,600, I believe, jobs associated with construction, both came from work that we did with UMass Dartmouth. They did an economic evaluation of the projects, labor and workforce benefits. That study was released last spring, I believe.

MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: Another benefit that you cited was improved regional grid. My understanding, and I could be wrong, is that the reliability of the regional grid has more to do

with transmission and distribution of power than it does with generation of power.

1

2

3

4

5

6

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: Uh-huh.

MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: So could you explain how this project is going to improve the grid?

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: I could lean on more technical experts but I could also provide ar anecdote. There was about, what was it, January of last year we had the bomb cyclone that hit. Part of that storm took Pilgrim off-line due to a power line going down. Immediately thereafter, there was a massive cold snap that we all might, unfortunately, remember. That caused the managers to divert natural gas resources to home heating. So natural gas is sort of the fuel that a lot of our electrical infrastructure demands. In doing that, that brought diesel online at Canal. So Canal needed to provide basically emergency power due to that loss. cost ratepayers a huge amount of money, in the tens of millions over just a short period of time.

And in addition to that, for

environmental concerns, the amount of emissions 1 associated with flipping Canal over to diesel and 2 cranking that into the environment for a few days 3 was, you know, jaw-dropping. It was tens of 4 thousands of tons of CO2 in a short time. An 5 analysis was done about Vineyard Wind potentially 6 being involved in the grid when that occurred. The wind resources, as we can all imagine, more robust in the winter. The analysis asserted that 9 Canal would not have had to operate during that 10 time due to the consistent wind resource that was 11 12 going to be pumping wind and energy into the grid on Cape Cod. As you know, our option for 13 generation and bringing power are unlimited. 14 I could, if that doesn't suffice, tap 15 16

some of the other talents behind me to address that.

MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: Well, again, I'm curious because my understanding is that the regional grid draws power from lots of sources. It's not just our local sources.

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: Correct. This quy will have a better answer for you.

MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: All right.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

you.

1.0

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Yeah, and that's true. I mean it is a regional grid for a reason. But both transmission and generation are important to reliability, and I think it's worth thinking about the fact that in southeastern Mass. in general, the Cape in particular, two of the major baseload plants that served that part of the state, Pilgrim and Brayton Point, are no more. So having a significant source of generation that feeds directly onto the Cape certainly helps the reliability. It's not a panacea and it's not the only factor. There still needs to be reliable transmission and the like, but it certainly helps the reliability of power to the Cape.

MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: Okay. Great. Thank you.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Sure.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you,

Kevin.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes, Cheryl.

DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: I'm happy to say

all of my questions have been answered except one

that I think maybe would go to Mr. Idman. They consider the very last condition with Open Space, so there are two questions. One, there's a dollar value listed in that condition, and I was curious how that is developed? How does that number per acre, the dollar value per acre get generated?

1.7

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: That formula is within the Technical Bulletin for Open Space. So really how it's arrived at, and Heather McElroy, help me if I get this wrong, it's the average assessed value of developable but undeveloped open space in excess of two acres in the town.

DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: In that town?

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: Correct.

DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: Okay. So it's town specific.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: Yes.

DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: And that leads to a second question which that I was curious where the land that is to be donated or restricted comes from? And you keep saying a municipality as opposed to the municipality. So will this be in Barnstable or are other municipalities

options?

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: It's not; it's not specific to the town of Barnstable. They could work with — to the extent that Open Space is a regional issue, they could work with a land trust in a neighboring town, for instance. But I think it's more likely if the commitment is made through an actual restriction on land, it's likely that that will occur in the town of Barnstable, but this is not prescriptive as to that issue.

This could also be met by a commitment to use some of those funds under the Host Community Agreement to actually acquire and restrict Open Space. Right now, those funds could be used for that but they're not necessarily earmarked for that. They're earmarked towards a water investigation and development of supplies.

DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: Right, right.

Okay. And so just for clarity, certainly that this kind of issue is not going to be enough for me to withhold a yes vote on this. But based on what I'm reading and hearing, it would be my

preference particularly since the dollar value is related specifically to the municipality that the land restriction and the open space if you're taking it from one, should happen in the same municipality. That would be my bias for obvious reasons. Every town is different in terms of their Open Space, you know.

1.0

2.3

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: If others share your view, that's an easy fix here. We could make that unique to the town of Barnstable. It's just as you see, there are different considerations but it's something the Commission has done for a long time. If there's an open space commitment, it's often done and required to be done in a particular town where the project is located. So if that was the desire of the body, that could easily be modified.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions? David.

MR. DAVID WEEDEN: Yeah, my question just as a matter of transparency, I just want to say that, you know, my office, we do work with Vineyard Wind and have been for a long time on reviewing it, the project, under Section 106, so

my office has been involved throughout the process.

But my question today is more of a statement that I think it was a statement that I disagree with when it was mentioned that the project will not affect any cultural resources. I say this only because there's a significant amount of the project that will be going in the roadway and such and archaeological assets aren't always unbeknown to us. Sometimes, you know, you have to do archaeological studies and because a lot of this project is in the roadway, there's areas that haven't been tested.

So, you know, I would be hesitant to make a blanket statement that the project will in no way affect cultural resources. You know when you do a preliminary desktop review of the project area with a one-mile buffer, there's known archaeological assets that pop up within the Mass. Historical Commission's Listed Inventories. So, you know, some of which are burials habitation sites year round. When you look at predictive modeling and such, you're coming right down along the Wequasset Lake, to

me, would be a flag, that kind of area -- that whole area of Phinneys Lane and such. There could be cultural assets unbeknown to all involved. So I just disagree with that statement, and I wanted to go on record stating such.

2.1

2.2

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: May I respond, Mr. Chair?

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: I agree with you and, actually, I misspoke. There is a finding. It uses the term "known cultural assets." So you're absolutely right. Basically, the information we had is to work off mapping. So to the extent that we're dealing with that road layout, that disturbed road layout, it's true to say there are known assets within the layout. But you're absolutely right, these things could get discovered and that's what populates the state's database, if you will.

MR. DAVID WEEDEN: Uh-huh.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: So I agree with you and misspoke but that language is actually in the decision itself as known assets or resources.

MR. DAVID WEEDEN: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you.

Tom.

1.3

2.2

2.3

MR. TOM WILSON: The dielectric fluid that's used for cooling, is that unique to a wind turbine project or is it a fluid that's normally used in electrical generation? And is there any history of leaks of dielectric fluid in Massachusetts?

MR. THEODORE BARTON: So there's nothing unique about this project in terms of dielectric fluid. Dielectric fluid, which is essentially refined mineral oil, is used in, essentially, every substation, big and small, throughout Massachusetts of which there are several hundred. So it's used in any transformer, any reactive compensation device, capacitor banks, etcetera. So it's a necessary component and it serves both an insulating and a cooling purpose within a transformer.

There have -- and it's used not only in substations but smaller transformers that are mounted on poles. As you go up and down a street, you'll see every, you know, 500 or 1,000

feet. So there is, in fact, some spill history not infrequently. If there's an auto accident and somebody knocks down a pole, the pole transformer comes with it, and when it hits the ground, there are sometimes ruptures of those. So the utilities be it Eversource or National Grid have procedures in place to clean that up and it's a relatively small volume.

2.3

Within substations proper, the equipment is a very robust design so leaks are certainly infrequent but that's why you have containment below them. In the event that there is a problem with the equipment, the dielectric fluid, be it a slow drip or something more than that, it ends up in a concrete sump and it can be cleaned up properly from there.

The whole subject is something that the electrical power industry monitors and studies and pays careful attention to. So there are some pretty lengthy reports from IEEE and others that talk about the causes of potential failures of transformers and means to prevent them. So there's nothing — there's nothing unique about this facility in that regard.

1

MR. TOM WILSON: There was mention of a secondary containment to supplement the primary; could you describe how that works?

4

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

1112

13

1415

16

17

18

1920

21

22

23

24

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Yeah, so the basic containment design that has been developed and this has been kind of a joint effort between the project with input from the town of Barnstable, the town of Barnstable has hired outside engineers to assist them in their review. So the transformer itself is basically a heavy steel vessel with windings inside it and the dielectric fluid is within that vessel. So beneath it, there's a concrete sump which basically is sized to accommodate 110 percent of the volume of the dielectric fluid in the transformer. So if you lost the entire transformer, it contains all of the fluid with a 10 percent margin. Then on top of that the assumption's made that all that happens in the midst of a torrential rainstorm so you have not only the dielectric fluid but you have rain water accumulating in the sump. And, typically, the industry design standard for that has been basically a 24-hour storm, basically a heavy

thunderstorm, so maybe 5 inches/6 inches of rainfall. For the Cape, that was updated recently to a 9-inch storm event which was our original design assumption.

In discussions with the town of
Barnstable, they wanted to see something beyond
that, so their engineers basically recommended as
kind of a belt and suspenders approach to this
that we use the probable maximum precipitation
event which is 30 inches of rainfall. So the
containment is going to be sized for 110 percent
of the dielectric fluid plus 30 inches of
rainwater on top of that at the same time.

So the balance of the system, there's an outlet pipe at the base of the containment, and that has, basically, something called an oil inhibition device in it, which is a series of plastic, special plastic beads, so they allow rainwater to pass through it. But if there is any dielectric fluid or oil mixed with that water, they swell up and seal off the containment so that the dielectric fluid stays put. Those then drain to an oil-water separator that, in turn, drains to a large containment -- I

shouldn't say containment, basically a basin at the south end of the site which its primary purpose is for stormwater retention, but it also serves as a second line of defense, if you will, for the dielectric fluid.

So we think this is a -- it's a very

so we think this is a -- it's a very robust design that goes, as was mentioned earlier in our presentation, it goes well beyond the normal industry standards. A lot of thought has gone into it, and both the project and the town of Barnstable are taking this very seriously. So I think we have a good solid design there.

MR. TOM WILSON: If there were a leak of that dielectric fluid, would it necessitate those nearby wells being immediately shut down or not?

MR. THEODORE BARTON: No, because the whole intention of the system is to make sure that the dielectric fluid stays in the containment sump.

MR. TOM WILSON: Okay. Thank you.

MR. THEODORE BARTON: Sure.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Okay. Len, I'm

1.3

then we're going to close off the questions. So you've got the final question.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

2.4

MR. LEONARD SHORT: Wow. My question - I'm a little confused when you showed one of
the graphics, you showed the boring and it was
down through the beach in the sand and out into
an open body of water. And then you talk about
the fact that everything is going to be
underground; will this cable at any point be
exposed?

The short MR. THEODORE BARTON: Okay. answer, no, and let me explain a little bit about the graphic that you saw. So that was a very simple depiction of the horizontal directional drill, which starts in the parking lot and, basically, follows kind of a shallow arc for roughly a thousand feet. At its deepest point, it's down maybe 30 feet or so, but as it gets out a thousand feet or so from the shore, it comes up to the sea bottom and you, basically, are leaving -- you're placing a conduit. So then you bring the submarine cable as close as you can get to And then the cable is put into the open that. end of that conduit, pulled through to the beach

where there's a splice vault. And then that --1 it's a little hard to do it without a chalkboard, 2 but the point at which the HDD sleeve and the 3 cable come together at the seafloor, that is then hand jetted so that you have five or six feet of 5 sediment below it. So once it's in place, you 6 then, basically, remove -- temporarily remove the 7 sediment from below it so that that sinks into 8 the sediment and is covered at that point. 9 MR. LEONARD SHORT: Thank you. 10 CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: All right. So 11 we'll close questions for now, but we do have 12 another round of questions and comments after 13 14 public comment. Public Comments 15 CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: So, at this 16 time, I'm going to open up the microphone for 17 18 public comments. We'll start with any state or federal 19 20 officials? Seeing none. Any local officials who would like to 21 22 speak?

MR. CHARLES MCLAUGHLIN:

afternoon, Mr. Chairman. Charles McLaughlin,

Good

23

24

Attorney for the Town of Barnstable. I 1 appreciate the opportunity to comment and in --2 since the subject of the very last condition has 3 been raised, we had an exchange with counsel on that matter today, and we just wanted to clarify 5 from the town's perspective that, obviously, as we look to utilize this dedicated fund that will 7 be coming to us in the way of mitigation the opportunity to search out new sites and the like is very arduous for new wellhead sites, etcetera, 10 and it can take as long as five years. 11 don't know at this point where we're fairly -- a 12 fair amount of publicity on the subject lately 13 and we're looking very actively for sites. 14 don't know -- we have not identified any 15 particular properties for acquisition. We just 16 wanted to make it clear that there is no 17 obligation of the town to dedicate these funds in 18 any particular direction and we need that 19 flexibility to find the best opportunity. 20 21

So unless I get hit by a bus or counsel moves on for Vineyard Wind that we just want the record to be very clear that this is a wide open discussion. And when presented with the

22

23

24

opportunity at the time that it arises, the town will certainly weigh it.

1

2

3

5

6

7

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

1.6

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

23

24

I would respectfully suggest in terms, and Mr. Chirigotis may want to comment from his experience on the Town Council, there's always a concern at the council level in our town about taking properties off the tax rolls, which would be accompanied by at least a diminished income for the town when we devote properties to conservation restrictions. And depending on what property it might be that's identified, the council always wants to weigh in on it. I would think that in terms of giving Vineyard Wind the most expeditious and wide-ranging opportunity for a dedication to find land that's appropriate. think we're guite content with leaving that open not only to the Town of Barnstable but to other towns that might have pressing needs. This is a regional project.

on that. The subject has not come up because, again, it's quite premature in terms of our analysis, but I do think it gives everyone the best chance to consider that. So I might make

that simply as an observation and leave it to you to vote accordingly.

1.0

The question -- let me step back for a moment, and as I said last month, the town's extremely grateful to the interaction that we've had from day one with the Vineyard Wind folks.

We learned a lot of lessons from the prior failed project, and I think all of those lessons were employed in the negotiations that resulted in this Host Community Agreement. And I think the Host Community Agreement will act as a standard bearer going forward as more projects are proposed and as these projects inevitably come ashore both in the Commonwealth and outside.

And in terms of setting standards, I'll also make the observation that in conjunction with the last failed project, we spent a lot of time looking at the IEEE Standards for containment and, quite bluntly, it's woefully out of date. And so we're out on the cutting edge here, and my sense without knowing that industry as well as I know other matters, my sense is that what our consulting engineers and even today with Mr. Jack Arruda who's here are about to

accomplish is something that will be certainly a state standard if not a national standard for these types of projects.

4

5

6

7

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

These dielectric fluids are -- the selling point is with due respect to my friends at Vineyard Wind, it's like mineral oil. not unless you're in love with cancer. Massachusetts contingency plan that addresses allowable levels of various chemicals in our drinking wells, drinking water rather in the Commonwealth says that you can only allow, and it's a generic description, I think you may see as a result of, again, something that's getting a lot of publicity and is going to get more, a real thorough review by DEP of trying to create more definitive standards for different types of products. Right now, the generic version of this because it relates to, basically, all oil products it's 1 to 5 million standard. So if you have a 10-gallon spill of dielectric fluids, that translates into a pollution level if evenly distributed of 50-million gallons of water. And so because this site is directly upstream of not only the Barnstable wells but also the Yarmouth

wells and so forth, it's been a real concern to all of us, and Vineyard Wind has been very appreciative and respectful of that concern.

Fire Chief Burke at the Hyannis
District said to us, "You know, the chance of something going wrong is very minimal, but God help us if it does, we lose Hyannis." So we've got to get this right, and I think the work that we have all done and about to complete with a subsequent written agreement on the question of containment will set certainly state maybe even national standards to be used for this type of work done.

Even today, there was a handshake on the subject of, well, what happens, as we had in Wellfleet just last year, an explosive situation on the ground with a transformer failure and you've got, of course, those product spraying all over the place. Today, at the suggestion of our engineers, we've reached at least a tentative oral understanding with Vineyard Wind that three sides are going to be contained by blast walls. The fourth side will have the cooling radiator which is part of the transformer to help in which

usually is the last thing to be destroyed in an explosion there to prevent material getting out. There's an extensive site control design and directive leading to containment on the site so if this gets out beyond the walls.

2.0

So we've given it a lot of thought and very happy to say, I think, with dealing with a difficult push/pull situation, benefit/detriment analysis that we're happy as we can be with what's coming forth.

asked this Commission to consider going forward and it's not directly related, actually one piece of good news added to this mix, is Eversource has their station a couple hundred feet away and it's going to be, obviously, the connecting point to the grid. Eversource has been aware of the town's concerns in all of our hearings and has done their risk analysis and recognizes what a tremendous risk it is to their bottom line if things go wrong at their substation. And so they have voluntarily agreed and we expect to sign the agreement probably tomorrow that Eversource is a going to retroactively retrofit its substation.

next door which is not currently to these standards -- to the standard that Vineyard Wind is adopting. So, again, it's a national model going forward.

I say that Cape-wide because I think
the next place to have this discussion including
in July and among the managers and among the
Selectmen's Associations and like is an
opportunity to discuss what this hazard is, what
it can do to your water source if it, God help
us, something goes wrong and an opportunity to
work I think with Eversource as they consider
what this risk is and how best to protect us all.
So it's a great byproduct coming out of this
project.

Deen very supportive of this project understanding that we needed first to protect ourselves and we've had great response from them. I know the manager spent, as we all did, hours and hours and hours last fall working out this very detailed Host Community Agreement, and I think we can all be proud of and complementary to the Vineyard Wind for having the candor to

1	recognize these risks and address them up front.
2	So, we thank you, and we do recommend
3	your support for the approval of this project.
4	Thank you.
5	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you. At
6	this time, we've had three people sign the sign-
7	in sheet, only one asked to speak, Marjorie
8	Thearle.
9	MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: Yes. Can I just
10	ask a question, two questions?
11	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: If you want to
12	come up to the podium, ma'am.
13	MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: Okay. Oh, I
14	just wanted
15	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Ma'am, I need
16	you to come to the podium, please, and state your
17	name.
18	MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: Marjorie
19	Thearle, West Hyannis Port. I'm within about a
20	tenth of a mile of this project, and I was
21	wondering about communication if the landowners
22	that are being affected by this have been
23	notified because I know a lot of the people
24	I'm a full-time resident, but a lot of the people

are -- this is their second homes on Craigville
Beach Road, Strawberry Hill Road, and I was
wondering if -- I don't know if it's Barnstable
that does it or --

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I'm going to let Jon Idman answer your question for you.

MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: No, I just have one quick -- ask the engineer a question.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: In terms of legal notice for the hearings, yes. We received a certified abutters list from the applicant per our regulations, and we sent out like almost 800 abutters notification forms to everybody within 300 feet of the project. So that means in terms of land, everyone within 300 feet of that land-based route.

MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: Oh, that's good because I live in a community just a hair's breath away and a lot of the people don't read the Times or anything and they don't know about this coming at Covell's Beach. And a couple of the people I did talk to are worried about what that cables emit in the water coming into Covell's Beach, if there's any emissions --

emissions of any kind? 1 CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Ma'am, can you 2 speak into the microphone, please? 3 MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: Is there any 4 kind of emissions coming out of the cables in the 5 water coming into Covell's Beach? You know, I 6 had a lady say, "Oh, I'm not going there anymore 7 because there's going to be radiation," which is, 8 to me, ignorance, but I just wanted to be able to 9 go back and tell them. 10 CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Okay. 11 12 other questions, ma'am? MS. MARJORIE THEARLE: No. Thanks. 13 Thank you. CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: 14 MR. THEODORE BARTON: Just a short 15 comment on the notice also, a similar process was 16 followed for the EFSB process where folks --17 everybody along the route and abutters of the 18 abutters were all notified by mail and there's 19 been a host of other notification processes. 20 But to answer the question on cable 21 emissions, the subject of EMF or electrical 22 magnetic fields was something that in particular by 23

the EFSB looks at quick carefully. We did a

24

modeling study that looked in a conservative 1 fashion at ground-level fields both underwater 2 and on land. For a buried cable like this, there 3 are no electric fields. Those are easily shielded by the conduits and the soil. 5 very low levels of magnetic fields. The modeling 6 that we did for the typical submarine installation, we looked at burial depths of a meter and two meters. At two meter burial depth, 9 the sea floor magnetic field level directly above 10 the cable was something in the vicinity of 30 or 11 40 milliGauss and that compares to a health 12 protective standard that's been established by an 13 14 international group that looks at this of 2,000, so a very, very small fraction of that standard. 1.5 Similar levels above -- directly above the cable 16 as it's buried under the street and specific to 17 the beach, the levels are going to be lower still 18 because the HDD will place the cable down at 19 depths of 15 or 20 feet below the beach. 20 think you can confidently tell your neighbors not. 21 to worry about that subject. 22

MS. MARJORIE THEARLE:

23

24

Thank you.

Thank you.

1

Thank you. . CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL:

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 21

2.2

23

24

MR. NATHANIEL MAYO: I would like to add just one quick thing about the outreach effort because it's among our highest priorities. We mentioned the open houses and forums that we've been having in Barnstable and other towns over the last year and half. In addition to the formal filings we do in terms of abutters which was stipulated by law, we did in some of those forums we worked mailed note cards, do mailings to people, households along the route. in later stages while also in addition to ads in the Cape Cod Times, the Barnstable Patriot, went into media a little bit too, and I think we actually did get a, from a broad demographic, response to us posting ads on Facebook, Google Ads, that kind of thing to go a little further to try to make sure we touch as many people as In addition to that, several possible. appearances before the Town Council in Barnstable to use that medium to get the word out.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you. Never want to stymie, is there anyone here that feels they must speak? I'll open the microphone // up for one last time. Going, going, gone.

All right. So at this time,

Commissioners, any last statements, questions,

comments you'd like to make? Yes, David.

MR. DAVID WEEDEN: I was wondering with all the talk about the dielectric fluids and such if there was going to be around the adjacent area where they're going to require the fluids if there's monitoring wells and if there will be required monitoring intervals to track? Worst-case scenario, I think it's always better to plan for the worse, hope for the best, and, you know, are there monitoring wells to determine if anything has gotten into the water?

MR. JACK ARRUDA: Jack Arruda with

Vineyard Wind. Yes, the short answer is we have

put, as we speak, they're actually installing

those monitoring wells over the last couple of

days. So they'll be three monitoring wells, one

on the north, one on the southwest corner, and

one in the southeast corner at the town's request

and our own request. We'd like to have them so

that we can do post -- pre, post, and if anything

was to happen be able to identify the original

source.

MR. DAVID WEEDEN: Thank you.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes, Fred.

MR. FRED CHIRIGOTIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Briefly, I heard my name and it woke me right up. Just two issues; one is with regard to the last condition, I see it says 5.98 acre area for Open Space restriction, conservation restriction. It doesn't say a single parcel though and that's significant, I think, that it doesn't designate just one 5.9 acre parcel. That's important.

And the Town of Barnstable, I think, all over the Cape given the significant buildout that we have and the unavailability of space and the need for a residential space, I think the idea that we can divide that parcels up where needed, and I think what we really need to be protecting when we do conservation restrictions is our wellheads, you know, zone ones first and look from there.

And the other thing that we considered and at least that I've heard considered, as

Attorney McLaughlin mentioned, is taking

properties off the tax rolls and putting conservation restrictions puts the burden on the existing householders and nobody likes to hear that they're going to be footing the burden and someone else -- and other properties are going to come off; so that's one issue.

1.4

My concern or at least a thought and it may not be appropriate for today, but the route of the cable which goes from primarily Strawberry Hill Road to Phinneys Lane is a very significantly dense residential area. And while the road's open, I would like to be able to hope that the town has the time to be able to encourage the burying of utilities, and I think it's also the main route or one of the main routes we're going to use for wastewater treatment and sewering, so I'd like to be able to see the pipes get in the ground while the road's open all at one time. Thank you.

CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you, Fred. Looking around the room, any -- Jon.

MR. JONATHAN IDMAN: Yeah, can I just make one quick comment about that? That's a really important issue, Fred, that's been

discussed under the Host Community Agreement. 1 It's also the subject of a few different 2 conditions to make best efforts with the town to 3 coordinate infrastructure installation is in the 4 conditions as one of the requirements. 5 think that's responsive to the issue you raised. 6 CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you, 7 8 John. Yes, Len. MR. LEONARD SHORT: Tom, to address 9 your concern about the mineral oil; in Orleans we 10 11 have some permeable reactive barriers, PRBs, which have been installed. And my understanding 12 is that the fluid that is used as mineral oil in 13 the PRB, and we're told that there is no adverse 14 effect and that the mineral oil can be contained 15 16 reasonably well so. Thank you. 17 MR. TOM WILSON: CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Okay. 18 19 time, what I would like to do is take a motion too close the public hearing on the Vineyard Wind 20 21 project. 22 MR. JACK MCCORMACK, JR.: So moved. CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I have a 23

2.4

motion.

1	MR. ROGER PUTNAM: Second.
2	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Second. All in
3	favor?
4	COMMISSION MEMBERS: Aye.
5	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Any opposed?
6	Any abstention?
7	MR. STEPHEN MEALY: Abstention, Mr.
8	Chairman.
9	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes, sir.
10	(Public Hearing closed.)
11	So at this time, what I'm going to do
12	is open back up the computer for us to vote.
13	Thank you. And then on your buttons in front of
14	you, you see a plus, that would be I'm going
15	to read the motion now for you.
16	I move that the Cape Cod Commission
17	adopt the draft written DRI decision as
18	recommended by the hearing officer and grant DRI
19	approval for the Vineyard Wind Connector project
20	subject to the conditions set out in said
21	decision. Can I have a motion?
22	MR. ROGER PUTNAM: So moved.
23	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I have a
24	motion. Do I have a second?

1.	MR. LEONARD SHORT: Second.
2	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you.
3	Voting on the green votes in favor; the yellow is
4	an abstention, the negative red is a vote
5	against. Please vote now.
6	MS. JESSICA WEILGUS: Mr. Chair, could
7	we take this by roll call as well so that the
8	stenographer can have the benefit of knowing what
9	each individual vote is?
10	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: So I will ask
11	Gail to please take a roll call vote also.
12	You've already voted on the machine; we'll leave
13	that open. Once you voted, your light will stay
14	one color and just make sure that's the vote you
15	want to have. And, Gail, if you could do the
16	roll call vote for me, please.
17	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Barnstable, Fred
18	Chirigotis.
19	MR. FRED CHIRIGOTIS: Yes.
20	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Bourne, Stephen
21	Mealy.
22	MR. STEPHEN MEALY: Abstain. Thank
23	you.
24	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Brewster, Elizabeth

. 1	Taylor.	
2		MS. LIZ TAYLOR: Yes.
3		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Chatham, Tom Wilson.
4		MR. TOM WILSON: Yes.
5		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Falmouth, Charles
6	McCaffrey	
7	·	MR. CHARLES MCCAFFREY: Yes.
8		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Harwich, Jacqueline
9	Etsten.	
10	·	MS. JACQUELINE ETSTEN: Yes.
11		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Mashpee, Ernest
12	Virgilio.	
13		MR. ERNIE VIRGILIO: Yes.
14		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Orleans, Len Short.
15		MR. LEONARD SHORT: Yes.
16		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Provincetown, Cheryl
17	Andrews.	
18		DR. CHERYL ANDREWS: Yes.
19		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Sandwich, Harold
20	Mitchell.	
21		CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Yes.
22		MS. GAIL HANLEY: Truro, Kevin
23	Grunwald.	
24		MR. KEVIN GRUNWALD: Yes.

1	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Wellfleet, Roger
2	Putnam.
3	MR. ROGER PUTNAM: Yes.
4	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Yarmouth, John
5	McCormack, Jr.
6	MR. JACK MCCORMACK, JR.: Yes.
7	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Minority
8	Representative, John Harris.
9	MR. JOHN HARRIS: Yes.
10	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Native American
11	Representative, David Weeden.
12	MR. DAVID WEEDEN: Yes.
13	MS. GAIL HANLEY: Mr. Chairman, we have
14	14 votes in favor and one abstention.
15	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I'm happy to
16	say that's what shown on the computer, so the DRI
17	decision passes.
18	(DRI Decision passed.)
19	Other Business
20	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Thank you. At
21	this time seeing the late hour, we do have a
22	little new business I'd like to handle and then
23	we'll take a motion to adjourn.
24	Due to a recent opening, we have an

Τ.	opening now for an afternate on the committee on
2	Regulation and Planning. They meet usually
. 3	before this meeting on Thursdays. If you'd like
4	to be considered for that, please meet me or have
5	a discussion with me, send me an email. I have
6	had one person express an interest, so it will be
7	an alternate position. I'm happy to say that
8	Jackie has stepped up as an alternate into a
9	voting position on that board. So I do have an
10	opening for that.
11	All right? Then any other new business
12	that anyone has? Seeing none. I'm not
13	surprised. I'll take a motion to adjourn.
14	MR. ROGER PUTNAM: So moved.
15	MR. JACK MCCORMACK, JR.: Second.
16	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: I have a motion
17	and a second. All in favor?
18	THE COMMISSION MEMBERS: Aye.
19	CHAIR HAROLD MITCHELL: Any opposed?
20	Thank you and we'll see you next time.
21	(Whereupon, the Cape Cod
22	Commission meeting moved to
23	adjourn at 5:17 p.m.)

CERTIFICATE

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS COUNTY OF BARNSTABLE, SS

I, Linda L. Wesson, a Certified Verbatim Reporter and Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby certify that the foregoing volume is a true and accurate transcript, prepared to the best of my ability, of the Cape Cod Commission Hearing, which was held on Thursday, May 2, 2019, at the East Wing Conference Room, Barnstable County Complex, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, Massachusetts, 02630.

inde L. WessonRIGINAL

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: June 3, 2022

Α

Abilities - 49:2 Able - 24:16, 30:17. 77:16, 79:15, 107:9, 110:24, 112:12, 112:13, 112:17 Above - 34:17, 38:1, 69:10, 108:10, 108:16 Absolute - 60:7 Absolutely - 37:24, 90:13, 90:18 Abstain - 115:22 Abstention - 12:22, 114:6, 114:7, 115:4, 117:14 Abstentions - 12:20 **Abutters -** 40:10, 106:11, 106:13, 107:18, 107:19, 109:8 Abutting - 53:19, 53:21 Accept - 12:10 Accepted - 76:23 Access - 15:8, 30:5, 81:22 Accident - 92:2 Accommodate - 93:14 Accompanied - 99:8 Accomplish - 101:1 Accordingly - 100:2 Account - 46:17 Accounted - 58:14 Accounting - 60:3 Accreting - 28:21, 64:14, 64:15 Accretion - 61:2, 64:17 Accumulating - 93:22 Achieved - 32:2 Acknowledge - 37:23 **Acquire - 87:14** Acquisition - 98:16 **Acre -** 37:3, 86:6, 111:7, 111:11 Acres - 52:19, 53:2, 56:21, 86:13 Across - 14:8, 23:15, 69:16, 70:9 Act - 21:18, 22:7, 31:4, 45:8, 46:12, 55:12, 100:11 **Actions -** 56:18, 62:2

Active - 72:8 Actively - 98:14 Activity - 37:13, 37:15, 37:17, 76:21 Actual - 47:21, 53:6, 87:8 Actually - 27:3, 30:7, 36:2, 43:24, 45:18, 47:13, 48:15, 49:18, 49:22, 71:6, 71:13, 81:17, 87:14, 90:11, 90:23, 103:13, 109:15, 110:17 Add - 79:19, 80:3, 81:3, 81:9, 109:3 **Added -** 103:14 **Adding -** 80:14 **Addition -** 24:5, 24:8, 25:15, 26:18, 83:24, 109:7, 109:12, 109:19 Additional - 29:21, 59:14, 59:16, 60:10, 74:22, 80:6 Additionally - 80:21 Address - 32:14, 34:9, 37:2, 38:5, 41:7, 58:12. 59:17, 84:16, 105:1, 113:9 Addressed - 39:1, 39:4, 58:14, 74:16 Addresses - 33:24, 35:21, 36:2, 36:15. 101:8 Addressing - 10:2, 74:20 Adjacent - 37:9, 37:11, 110:7 Adjourn - 117:23, 118:13, 118:23 Adopt - 114:17 Adopting - 104:3 Ads - 109:12, 109:16, 109:17 Advance - 72:23 Advanced - 26:23 **Adverse -** 113:14 Advertising - 14:16 Advisory - 75:8

Affect - 89:6, 89:16

Affordability - 27:11

Affected - 105:22

Afternoon - 32:10, 62:4, 97:24 **Against -** 27:3, 115:5 Agencies - 18:14, 31:2, 31:13, 50:3, 50:6, 58:22, 59:3, 63:22, 74:10, 77:18 Agency - 63:3, 74:8, 74:24, 75:5, 75:8, 75:9 Agenda - 14:24 **Agree -** 90:10, 90:22 Agreed - 52:8, 103:22 Agreement - 24:16, 24:21, 26:16, 30:14, 34:12, 36:23, 39:5, 52:6, 52:24, 53:8, 55:21, 56:7, 58:7, 58:9, 87:14, 100:10, 100:11, 102:10, 103:23, 104:22, 113:1 Ahead - 11:11, 70:2 Aims - 33:10 Albeit - 77:21 Allow - 42:7, 60:1, 72:21, 94:18, 101:11 Allowable - 101:9 Allowed - 19:24, 31:12, 47:12 **Allowing -** 22:17, 28:6, 67:14 Allows - 10:3, 49:4, 68:10 Already - 9:7, 36:6, 51:2, 51:16, 55:7, 56:13, 62:15, 81:18, 115:12 Alternate - 118:1, 118:7, 118:8 Alternative - 46:18 Always - 19:8, 57:1, 89:10, 99:5, 99:12, 110:11 Amending - 10:24 Amendments - 9:23, 12:9 American - 7:21, 117:10 **Among -** 104:7, 109:4 Amount - 10:24, 25:18, 27:10, 43:4, 83:21, 84:1, 89:8, 98:13 Analysis - 44:17, 48:16, 63:21, 84:6, 84:9, 99:23, 103:9, 103:19

Analyzed - 61:1 Anchor - 26:11, 76:21 Anchoring - 80:19 Andrews - 6:21, 6:22, 7:2, 85:23, 86:14, 86:16, 86:19, 87:20, 116:17, 116:18 Anecdote - 83:9 **Animal - 26:15 Announce - 4:9, 5:4** Announcing - 5:3 **Annually - 39:12** Answer - 61:8, 61:24, 62:14, 66:22, 70:1, 70:4, 73:22, 84:23, 96:12, 106:6, 107:21, 110:16 Answered - 62:1, 66:11, 73:20, 73:21, 85:24 **Answers - 66:9** Anticipate - 15:1, 15:21, 16:6 Anticipating - 15:3 **Anymore - 107:7** Anything - 66:7, 106:20, 110:14, 110:23 Anyway - 69:19 Appear - 70:20 Appearances - 24:7, 109:20 **Appendix - 48:12** Applause - 14:2 Applicable - 11:17 Applicant - 16:23, 41:15, 41:18, 44:15, 50:5, 52:5, 53:1, 53:10, 56:10, 58:5, 58:21, 59:2, 59:10, 59:22, 61:1, 61:10, 61:23, 106:11 Applicant's - 17:19, 44:5 Application - 32:9, 35:14, 44:14, 50:16, 62:3 **Applied -** 48:9, 48:15 **Apply -** 48:5, 48:6, 48:8 Appointee - 7:24 Appointment - 9:8 Appreciate - 40:21, 40:23, 41:2, 41:3, 98:2 Appreciative - 102:3

Approach - 52:4, 56:8,

94:8 Appropriate - 18:18, 62:3, 99:15, 112:8 Appropriately - 30:18, Approval - 12:4, 12:6, 12:7, 31:2, 31:8, 32:12, 45:4, 45:8, 54:20, 105:3, 114:19 **Approve -** 45:7, 60:1 Approved - 11:2, 12:13, 57:15, 57:17 Approximately - 17:9, 43:8 April - 4:3, 9:20, 10:4, 12:8, 16:2, 16:18, 41:23, 43:6, 44:6, 44:12, 44:19, 44:23, 53:2 Aguifer - 25:9 Arc - 28:19, 96:16 Archaeological - 89:9, 89:11, 89:19 Architectural - 58:1 **Arduous -** 98:10 Area - 21:23, 26:2, 26:6, 29:2, 37:22, 39:16, 50:17, 51:11, 51:13, 51:14, 51:15, 52:15, 52:18, 52:19, 52:20, 53:12, 53:13, 53:19, 56:4, 56:19, 61:20, 70:17, 71:18, 72:9, 73:2, 75:17, 89:18, 90:1, 90:2, 110:7, 111:8, 112:11 Areas - 22:2, 29:17, 50:2, 52:11, 52:21, 60:22, 66:18, 72:5, 72:7, 89:13 Aren't - 89:9 Arise - 60:15 **Arises - 99:1 Armoring - 77:11**, 77:20, 78:1, 78:9 Around - 11:7, 15:22, 110:7, 112:21 Arranged - 67:5 Array - 28:9 Arrive - 24:16 Arrived - 5:19, 32:5, 86:10 Arrives - 29:2, 46:4

Arruda - 78:17, 100:24, 110:15 **Ashore -** 100:14 **Ask -** 70:1, 79:8, 103:11, 105:10, 106:8, 115:10 Asked - 103:12, 105:7 **Aspect - 36:5** Aspects - 18:20, 21:16 Asserted - 84:9 Assessed - 36:21, 86:12 Assets - 89:9, 89:19, 90:3, 90:12, 90:17, 90:24 **Assist -** 93:9 **Assists - 49:23** Associated - 17:13, 30:14, 52:13, 54:9, 54:24, 55:11, 55:17, 56:14, 79:22, 81:12, 82:15, 84:2 Associates - 18:7, 62:7 Associations - 104:8 **Assume -** 38:12, 79:4 **Assuming - 66:18** Assumption - 94:4 Assumption's - 93:19 Atlantic - 26:18 Attendance - 60:16 Attended - 43:7 Attendees - 43:8 Attention - 92:19 Attorney - 98:1, 111:24 Attucks - 30:2 Auction - 22:2, 22:5 Authorities - 22:4 Auto - 92:2 Automobiles - 20:8 Available - 15:8, 15:15, 42:19, 44:11, 54:6, 56:23, 75:1, 81:8 **Average -** 86:11 Avoid - 50:7 Avoided - 35:9 **Avoiding -** 25:1, 58:19 Aware - 10:22, 103:17

Away - 103:15, 106:19

Aye - 12:17, 12:18,

114:4, 118:18

В Back - 12:6, 28:18, 33:4, 37:21, 63:19, 67:1, 69:12, 69:13, 75:24, 76:5, 100:3, 107:10, 114:12 Background - 8:23, 9:3 **Balance - 94:14** Balancing - 75:11, 75:13 Bank - 17:13, 65:3, 67:3, 68:10 **Banks -** 29:13, 91:18 Barnstable - 5:17, 16:11, 17:1, 17:7, 17:12, 18:4, 23:16, 24:9, 24:17, 27:12, 30:16, 33:4, 34:12, 36:14, 37:1, 38:4, 40:17, 45:19, 45:24, 46:3, 46:6, 46:8, 46:20, 46:21, 49:13, 49:15, 50:13, 51:14, 52:11, 58:7, 67:22, 68:19, 73:3, 86:24, 87:3, 87:10, 88:10, 93:8, 94:6, 95:11, 98:1, 99:17, 101:24, 106:3, 109:6, 109:13, 109:20, 111:13, 115:17 Barrier - 54:14, 54:15 **Barriers - 113:11** BARTON - 62:4, 62:5, 65:16, 66:23, 69:6, 69:9, 69:23, 70:3, 73:24, 74:4, 74:7, 74:14, 75:19, 76:2, 76:13, 78:16, 79:8, 85:2, 85:19, 91:10, 93:4, 95:17, 95:22, 96:11, 107:15 **Base -** 43:21, 46:8, 79:11, 94:15 Based - 22:20, 44:14, 46:16, 47:1, 87:23, 106:16 Baseline - 27:3 Baseload - 85:8 Basic - 70:13, 81:13, 93:5

Battery - 27:14, 27:16, 55:23 Beach - 17:2, 23:16, 23:17, 25:2, 28:18, 28:21, 30:1, 46:5, 49:13, 61:6, 64:13, 65:2, 70:10, 96:6, 96:24, 106:2, 106:21, 106:24, 107:6, 108:18, 108:20 **Beads -** 94:18 Bear - 75:7 Bearer - 100:12 **Bed -** 77:2 **Bedford -** 22:20, 80:24 **Before -** 10:4, 24:7, 26:10, 43:22, 46:24, 69:1, 109:20, 118:3 Began - 22:6, 46:11 Begin - 31:21 Begins - 19:20, 29:8 Behind - 36:3, 84:16 Belabor - 30:23 Believe - 10:8, 59:22, 63:23, 65:10, 82:15, 82:20 **Below -** 8:19, 28:19, 64:23, 72:11, 77:2, 92:12, 97:6, 97:8, 108:20 **Belt - 94:8** Bends - 68:3 Beneath - 93:13 Beneficiary - 27:13 Benefit - 55:5, 56:6, 79:22, 80:2, 81:23, 81:24, 82:21, 115:8 Benefit/ Detriment - 103:8 Benefits - 19:11, 24:23, 26:8, 26:24, 27:1, 31:23, 32:20, 38:21, 39:6, 39:7, 39:9, 39:10, 39:15, 40:11, 45:13, 54:23, 55:3, 55:8, 55:11, 82:19 Benthic - 35:10, 61:17, 61:20, 62:10, 63:13, 63:15, 63:21, 64:2, 75:24 Bergstrom - 7:16, 7:17 **Best -** 35:7, 36:9, 71:15,

75:18, 98:20, 99:24,

Basin - 95:1

Bathhouse - 26:3, 26:4

Bathymetric - 70:13

104:13, 110:12, 113:3 **Better -** 73:18, 84:23, 110:11 Between - 30:6, 38:13, 76:18, 93:6 Beyond - 24:11, 25:13, 94:6, 95:8, 103:5 Bias - 88:5 Bid - 22:5, 22:13, 26:19 Big - 60:11, 91:14 Biological - 71:10 **Biomap - 38:17** Bit - 21:6, 23:6, 28:18, 66:1, 68:21, 73:18, 96:12, 109:14 Blanket - 89:15 Blankets - 76:10 Blast - 102:22 **Block -** 63:1, 63:7 Bluntly - 100:19 Board - 9:1, 9:2, 31:7, 39:3, 40:20, 42:1, 42:10, 42:18, 49:1, 118:9 Boards - 24:7 **Body -** 88:16, 96:7 **BOEM -** 21:23, 63:3, 70:22, 74:17 **Bomb -** 83:10 Bore - 28:10 **Boring - 96:5** Boston - 68:21 Both - 8:24, 16:1, 26:16, 31:3, 31:24, 58:22, 62:18, 63:2, 63:6, 79:21, 82:8, 82:16, 85:4, 91:19, 95:10, 100:14, 108:2 Bottom - 28:5, 28:9, 67:16, 71:3, 71:8, 96:20, 103:20 Boulder - 65:24, 71:20, 71:22 **Bourne -** 5:21, 8:12, 8:23, 9:2, 13:7, 80:11, 115:20 Boxes - 30:6, 69:5 Brayton - 85:9 Breaking - 34:2 Breath - 106:19 Brewster - 6:1, 9:18, 115:24

Bridge - 79:15

Bridging - 19:14 Brief - 21:12, 22:19 **Briefly - 111:5** Bring - 30:17, 33:16, 33:17, 73:10, 96:21 Bringing - 21:21, 39:15, 69:15, 84:14 Brings - 22:15, 46:9 **Bristol - 81:19** Broad - 18:14, 24:19, 109:15 Broader - 19:12, 43:23 **Brookshire -** 6:7, 6:8 Brought - 18:10, 66:7, 80:7, 83:18 Buffer - 54:2, 54:4, 89:18 Build - 26:4, 80:23, 81:18 Building - 21:9, 39:20, 80:16 **Buildout - 111:14** Built - 34:4, 35:15 Bulk - 22:23 Bulletin - 59:13, 61:14, 86:9 Bulletins - 48:3 Burden - 112:2, 112:4 **Burgeoning - 81:7** Burial - 72:10, 77:1, 77:7, 77:9, 108:8, 108:9 **Burials - 89:22** Buried - 65:2, 68:18, 76:7, 76:10, 76:24, 108:3, 108:17 Burke - 102:4 Bury - 76:11, 77:16, 77:18, 77:23 **Burying - 112:14** Bus - 98:21 Business - 117:19, 117:22, 118:11 Button - 4:17, 5:14, 8:5, 8:18 Buttons - 114:13 Bylaws - 32:18, 32:23, 38:24, 39:1, 45:12 Byproduct - 104:14

C Cables - 17:11, 17:13,

40:6, 62:15, 62:18, 68:8, 68:18, 69:22, 70:5, 76:4, 76:17, 76:24, 106:23, 107:5 Call - 4:14, 5:10, 5:12, 5:20, 11:23, 25:3, 42:12, 43:2, 81:16, 115:7, 115:11, 115:16 Called - 51:20, 78:3, 94:16 **Calling - 9:23** Calls - 4:15, 5:13 Came - 27:2, 43:24, 68:13, 82:16 Canal - 83:19, 84:2, 84:10 Cancer - 101:7 Candor - 104:24 Can't - 39:13, 66:10, 73:11, 77:7, 77:23 Capable - 72:20 Capacitor - 91:18 Capacity - 23:4 Cape - 4:4, 4:8, 9:20, 9:21, 9:23, 10:1, 11:21, 12:7, 13:24, 14:11, 14:17, 16:19, 18:17, 18:21, 18:22, 19:4, 19:18, 20:10, 20:16, 23:12, 24:10, 26:13, 27:6, 30:8, 33:11, 33:16, 33:23, 36:5, 37:5, 37:14, 39:21, 49:1, 51:22, 55:24, 59:12, 75:16, 81:11, 81:19, 81:21, 84:13, 85:7, 85:11, 85:16, 94:2, 104:5, 109:13, 111:14, 114:16, 118:21 Capital - 26:4, 35:17 **Capture - 24:13** Carbon - 20:6, 21:18, 33:21, 39:11 Cards - 109:10 Care - 41:6 Careful - 92:19 Carefully - 64:12, 70:18, 71:1, 77:21, 78:20, 107:24 Carry - 12:23, 29:7

Case - 32:22, 38:15, 48:10, 48:16, 48:22, 110:11 Cases - 38:12, 38:16, 57:10, 63:4 Cast - 69:7 Categories - 34:3 Caused - 83:14 Causes - 92:21 **CEC -** 80:18 Cement - 29:11 Center - 28:12, 37:13, 37:15 Centerville - 17:2 Centric - 18:17 **Century - 64:18** Certain - 42:3, 44:21, 47:15, 48:3, 50:24, 51:10, 57:12, 59:23 **Certainly - 10:19**, 10:22, 21:13, 64:9, 64:18, 65:12, 66:5, 68:22, 75:6, 81:21, 85:12, 85:15, 87:21, 92:11, 99:2, 101:1, 102:11 Certification - 22:16, 63:18 Certified - 106:11 Chairman - 9:1, 97:24, 111:5, 114:8, 117:13 Chalkboard - 97:2 Chance - 35:1, 70:24, 99:24, 102:5 Change - 10:2, 10:23, 11:6, 19:9, 20:11, 21:3, 26:24, 27:20, 36:3, 47:1, 48:19, 61:6 Changes - 12:9, 57:13 Channel - 23:15, 70:9, 72:9 Characteristics - 34:23. 70:14 Characterized - 71:2 Charge - 19:4, 19:5, 19:13, 21:4, 58:18 Charles - 6:9, 6:11, 60:21, 60:22, 61:15, 65:15, 97:23, 97:24, 116:5, 116:7 **Charts - 70:15**

Cars - 39:12

Chatham - 6:2, 116:3 **Checked - 78:23** Checking - 4:24 Checklist - 48:13 Chemicals - 101:9 Cheryl - 6:20, 6:22, 7:2, 85:22, 85:23, 86:14, 86:16, 86:19, 87:20, 116:16, 116:18 Chief - 13:20, 14:18, 41:14, 102:4 **Chirigotis -** 5:18, 5:19, 16:12, 99:4, 111:4, 115:18, 115:19 Chosen - 21:23 **CHRIS -** 9:13, 9:17, 10:17, 11:9, 11:12 Circumstances - 73:9 Cited - 82:22 Cities - 68:15 Citizens - 10:4, 11:20, 11:23 City - 68:20 Clarify - 48:3, 98:5 Clarity - 87:21 Clean - 19:9, 20:1, 20:22, 27:20, 92:7 Cleaned - 92:16 Clear - 21:7, 98:17, 98:23 **Cleared - 52:19 Clearing - 56:19** Clerk - 13:21, 14:17 Climate - 10:2, 10:23, 11:6, 19:9, 20:11, 21:3, 26:24, 27:20, 32:2, 36:3 Close - 12:2, 15:14, 18:3, 96:1, 96:22, 97:12, 113:20 **Closed - 114:10 Closely -** 38:3 Closing - 59:20 Clothier - 43:2 CO2 - 84:5 Coast - 26:13, 31:17, 81:6, 81:11 Coastal - 35:16, 35:22, 36:1, 48:8 Cod - 4:4, 4:8, 9:20, 9:21, 9:23, 10:1, 11:21, 12:7, 13:24, 14:11,

14:17, 16:19, 19:19, 23:12, 27:6, 33:11, 33:16, 37:5, 37:14, 49:1, 51:22, 55:24, 59:12, 75:16, 81:19, 84:13, 109:13, 114:16, 118:21 Codders - 18:22, 81:21 Cod's - 19:4 Cognizant - 10:23, 40:13 Cold - 83:13 Collaborative - 23:24 Colleague - 43:3 Colleagues - 42:22, 60:16, 73:18 College - 81:19, 81:20 Color - 44:2, 115:14 Combination - 53:3, 56:22 Combined - 13:23 Come - 50:6, 51:19, 51:20, 62:11, 75:24, 80:9, 97:4, 99:21, 100:13, 105:12, 105:16, 112:6 Comes - 5:2, 19:21, 21:5, 27:7, 27:8, 30:8, 86:22, 92:4, 96:19 Coming - 40:20, 76:4, 89:24, 98:8, 103:10, 104:14, 106:21, 106:23, 107:5, 107:6 Comment - 8:8, 8:9, 9:10, 9:12, 15:13, 15:14, 15:21, 43:10, 44:16, 47:4, 69:17, 97:14, 98:2, 99:4, 107:16, 112:23 Comments - 12:3, 15:16, 17:17, 43:13, 43:17, 46:14, 47:1, 74:2, 75:3, 75:10, 97:13, 97:15, 97:18, 110:4 Commercial - 33:18 Commissioner - 7:15. 7:17 Commissioners - 8:18, 9:16, 60:20, 110:3 Commission's - 19:4, 40:21, 42:5, 47:4, 51:23, 54:21, 59:13, 60:4,

61:13, 89:20

Commitment - 14:4, 26:15, 53:1, 53:5, 54:3, 56:21, 59:7, 67:24, 80:22, 87:7, 87:12, 88:14 Commitments - 59:3 Committed - 53:10, 63:14, 79:10 Committee - 9:8, 118:1 Commonwealth - 21:17 22:14, 55:13, 100:14, 101:11 Communication - 105:2 Communities - 16:3, 16:5, 30:4, 33:12, 82:1 Community - 24:8, 24:13, 24:16, 26:5, 27:12, 30:14, 34:4, 34:12, 35:16, 36:15, 36:23, 39:5, 39:20, 52:6, 52:24, 53:8, 53:16, 53:22, 55:20, 56:7, 58:7, 58:9, 78:4, 79:22, 81:19, 81:20, 87:14, 100:10, 100:11, 104:22, 106:18, 113:1 Compacted - 67:18 Company - 22:19, 24:24, 79:5, 79:10 **Compares - 108:12** Compensation - 91:17 Competitive - 22:5 Complementary - 104:2 Complete - 102:9 **Complex - 34:1** Complexity - 45:16 Compliance - 16:2, 16:4 Complicated - 20:3, 42:20, 60:12 Component - 27:24, 28:1, 49:16, 56:1, 91:19 Comprehensive - 15:11 32:4, 32:23, 35:6, 38:23 Comprehensively - 29: Computer - 114:12, 117:16

Concept - 54:21 Conceptual - 57:11, 57:18 Concern - 19:12, 61:2, 66:5, 69:16, 69:19, 99:6, 102:1, 102:3, 112:7, 113:10 Concerned - 66:1 Concerning - 45:10, 46:16 Concerns - 28:22, 50:14, 66:11, 73:22, 74:15, 74:21, 84:1, 103:18 **Concert - 54:8** Concrete - 65:1, 67:18, 68:5, 69:5, 69:6, 76:10, 78:3, 78:5, 92:15, 93:13 **Condition -** 53:4, 58:4, 59:6, 86:2, 86:4, 98:3, 111:7 Conditions - 44:21, 45:5, 45:7, 49:6, 57:1, 57:19, 58:20, 58:24, 60:2, 71:9, 71:19, 113:3, 113:5, 114:20 Conducive - 72:2 Conducting - 16:20, 64:21 Conduit - 29:11, 30:6, 96:21, 96:24 Conduits - 65:1, 67:11, 108:5 Confident - 68:22, 71:24, 73:4 Confidently - 108:21 Conflict - 52:21, 53:14, 53:22 Conflicts - 51:17 Confused - 96:4 Congestion - 40:6 Congratulate - 13:12 Congratulations - 8:13 Conjunction - 100:16 Connect - 17:8, 23:18, 30:19 Connecting - 19:7, 103:16 Connector - 16:13, 16:16, 16:23, 17:6, 45:20, 114:19

Connects - 46:7 Consented - 47:16 Conservation - 40:18. 99:10, 111:8, 111:19, 112:2 Conservative - 52:4, 108:1 Consider - 11:22, 86:2, 99:24, 103:12, 104:12 Consideration - 59:1 Considerations - 35:22. 88.12 Considered - 75:11, 111:22, 111:23, 118:4 **Consist -** 67:4 Consistency - 32:16, 32:18, 38:20, 45:10, 45:11, 48:16, 51:8 Consistent - 11:13, 35:24, 38:22, 61:13, 84:11 Consolidated - 47:19. 47:20 Constantly - 57:6 Constitute - 59:12 Constraints - 29:20 Construct - 47:21 Constructed - 34:16 Construction - 17:5, 25:1, 26:2, 26:17, 29:10, 31:22, 35:8, 40:16, 68:12, 81:15, 82:8, 82:16 Consultations - 31:1 Consulting - 100:23 Contact - 36:7 **Contained - 42:17**, 43:15, 44:6, 44:24, 45:3, 47:5, 102:22, 113:15 Containing - 37:16 Containment - 25:8, 30:13, 34:16, 34:18, 34:24, 37:20, 38:2, 52:5, 56:8, 57:24, 59:17, 92:12, 93:2, 93:5, 94:11, 94:15, 94:21, 94:24, 95:1, 95:20, 100:19, 102:11, 103:4 Contains - 45:6, 93:17 Contemplated - 42:15

Content - 99:16

Context - 21:19 Continental - 21:24 Contingency - 101:8 **Continue - 58:5** Continued - 16:17 Continues - 65:3 Continuing - 58:21 Contours - 71:3 Contractual - 58:14 **Contrary - 43:17** Contribute - 9:4 Contribution - 20:21, 20:22, 21:2 Control - 35:12, 103:3 Conversations - 59:21 Coolant - 34:21, 51:22 Cooling - 91:5, 91:20, 102:23 Cooperating - 74:10 Coordinate - 113:4 Coordinating - 40:10 Copy - 12:9 Corner - 110:20, 110:21 Correct - 66:8, 84:22, 86:15 Correctly - 68:14 Corresponding - 48:1, 48:2 Corridor - 71:22 Cost - 83:21 Council - 99:5, 99:6, 99:12, 109:20 Counsel - 18:6, 98:4, 98:21 Counterparts - 75:4 County - 7:15, 10:3, 13:15, 14:7, 14:8, 17:7, 17:12, 33:4, 45:19, 45:24, 46:4, 73:3 County's - 18:4 Couple - 30:4, 31:21, 69:22, 77:14, 103:15, 106:21, 110:18 Course - 18:20, 20:10, 25:20, 27:17, 50:3, 66:19, 74:14, 81:24, 102:18 Covell - 61:6 Covell's - 17:2, 23:16, 23:17, 25:2, 26:1, 28:21, 46:5, 49:13, 64:12,

64:21, 65:2, 70:9, 106:21, 106:24, 107:6 Cover - 53:12, 67:12, 67:15 Covered - 29:12, 97:9 Covers - 30:5, 34:6, 69:10 Crafted - 24:2 Craigville - 29:24, 106:1 Cranking - 84:3 **Create - 101:15** Credibility - 44:3 **Critical -** 38:14, 38:15 **Crucial - 24:15** Cultivated - 23:5 Cultural - 36:16, 36:20, 89:6, 89:16, 90:3, 90:12 Curious - 76:11, 84:19, 86:5, 86:20 Currently - 14:16, 104:1 **Curve - 5:7 Cutting - 100:20** Cyclone - 83:10

D

Daley - 13:19 Damage - 64:6, 76:12 Dartmouth - 82:17 **Data -** 66:10 Database - 90:20 Date - 10:10, 11:8, 14:23, 43:14, 100:20 David - 7:22, 7:23, 88:19, 88:20, 90:21, 91:1, 110:4, 110:5, 111:2, 117:11, 117:12 Day - 15:13, 15:22, 29:15, 60:8, 100:6 Days - 43:17, 84:3, 110:19 **DCPC -** 38:23 Deal - 23:3, 25:4, 49:24 **Dealing -** 90:15, 103:7 Deals - 58:4, 59:6 **Decades - 76:16** Decent - 74:20 **Decision -** 4:21, 42:11, 42:17, 44:13, 44:20, 45:3, 48:11, 48:13, 49:7, 53:5, 55:1, 55:4, 55:10, 55:19, 57:1, 57:3, 57:15,

57:20, 59:2, 60:1, 60:3, 60:23, 90:24, 114:17, 114:21, 117:17, 117:18 Decisions - 9:4 Dedicate - 98:18 Dedicated - 98:7 Dedication - 14:5, 25:22, 99:15 **Deep -** 67:6, 67:9, 67:11, 76:5 **Deepest - 96:17** Defense - 95:4 **Defer -** 61:9, 61:23 Deferred - 47:14 **Defined - 37:16** Definitely - 56:1 Definitive - 101:16 **DEIS -** 74:5, 74:21 **Demand -** 56:6 **Demands - 83:18** Demographic - 109:15 Dennis - 6:4 Dense - 112:11 **DEP -** 16:1, 31:16, 101:15 Department - 36:20, 39:3, 43:3 **Depending -** 67:6, 68:3, 99:10 Depiction - 96:14 **Depth -** 28:20, 28:24, 64:23, 64:24, 66:12, 67:15, 71:3, 71:5, 72:10, 73:13, 76:4, 77:1, 77:8, 77:9, 77:23, 108:9 **Depths -** 108:8, 108:20 **Deputy - 13:19 Describe -** 72:9, 93:3 Described - 68:9, 71:21, 72:14, 73:6, 73:16, 78:1 Description - 17:4, 101:12 **Design -** 25:7, 35:16, 35:24, 36:1, 53:16, 57:23, 65:11, 92:10, 93:5, 93:23, 94:4, 95:7, 95:12, 103:3 Designate - 111:11

Designated - 37:13

Designation - 37:14

Designed - 65:5, 65:10 **Desire - 88:16 Desktop -** 89:17 Destroyed - 103:1 **Detail -** 48:11, 70:20 **Detailed -** 35:14, 104:22 **Determination - 43:20** Determine - 21:22, 44:3, 110:13 Detriment - 55:6 Detriments - 32:20, 38:22, 39:6, 40:1, 40:3, 40:12, 45:14, 54:24, 55:3, 55:8, 56:10, 56:12, 56:14, 56:17 **Develop -** 52:10, 59:15 Developable - 86:12 Developed - 36:13, 86:5, 93:5 Development - 15:12, 16:20, 18:2, 22:24, 25:13, 27:22, 32:13, 38:12, 38:13, 41:19, 41:20, 45:12, 47:9, 87:19 **Device -** 91:17, 94:17 **Devote -** 99:9 **Devoted -** 31:15, 81:15 **Dialogue - 18:24, 80:8 Didn't - 48:6** Dielectric - 34:19, 34:21, 35:2, 51:21, 59:9, 91:4, 91:8, 91:12, 92:13, 93:12, 93:15, 93:21, 94:12, 94:20, 94:22, 95:5, 95:14, 95:19, 101:4, 101:20, 110:6 **Diesel -** 83:18, 84:2 **Different - 11:15**, 29:17, 29:18, 40:14, 56:22, 57:7, 88:6, 88:11, 101:16, 113:2 Difficult - 6:23, 103:8 **Digest - 60:13 Digging - 65:22** Diminished - 99:8 **Dioxide -** 33:21, 39:11 **DIR -** 10:18, 13:4, 13:9, 14:3 Direct - 43:11, 45:23, 47:22, 52:8, 53:7, 54:15, 55:9, 59:5 Direction - 98:19 Directional - 28:15, 96:14 Directive - 103:4 Directly - 43:22, 52:16, 53:19, 58:17, 85:11, 101:23, 103:13, 108:10, 108:16 Director - 10:16, 13:19 **Director's - 13:1, 13:3 Disagree - 89:5, 90:4** Discovered - 90:19 Discuss - 4:22, 21:10, 32:8, 32:12, 61:11, 62:1, 104:9 **Discussed -** 27:1, 113:1 Discussing - 18:19 Discussion - 25:7, 41:4, 78:11, 98:24, 104:6, 118:5 Discussions - 24:20, 76:4, 94:5 Disruption - 25:6 Distributed - 42:18, 101:22 Distributes - 28:14 Distribution - 83:1 District - 102:5 Disturb - 61:17 Disturbance - 63:8, 63:12 Disturbed - 66:20, 90:16 Disturbing - 66:5 Diversity - 22:7 **Divert -** 83:15 **Divide - 111:17** Division - 31:16 **DMF - 31:16** Docket - 47:20 **Document - 15:18**, 74:23 Documents - 32:19 **DOER - 27:2** Doesn't - 54:6, 84:15, 111:9, 111:11 Dollar - 86:4, 86:6, 88:1 **Dollars - 27:13 Donated - 86:21**

Done - 20:20, 27:19,

28:3, 38:19, 53:5, 63:1, 63:2, 63:5, 63:6, 71:9, 72:1, 79:13, 80:12, 80:18, 84:6, 88:13, 88:14, 88:15, 102:9, 102:13, 103:19 Don't - 5:6, 6:23, 13:18, 29:16, 30:23, 31:13, 49:17, 64:15, 69:18, 98:12, 98:15, 99:20, 106:3, 106:19, 106:20 Door - 104:1 Down - 5:8, 8:18, 14:22, 28:19, 30:18, 31:5, 34:2, 67:14, 67:15, 71:5, 78:22, 83:12, 89:24, 91:23, 92:3, 95:15, 96:6, 96:18, 108:19 Dozen - 30:7 **DPU - 47:14 DPW - 36:14 DR** - 6:22, 7:2, 85:23, 86:14, 86:16, 86:19, 87:20, 116:18 **Draft -** 15:17, 16:6, 42:11, 42:17, 44:13, 45:3, 45:5, 45:6, 49:7, 55:9, 114:17 **Drain - 94:23** Drains - 94:24 Dramatic - 65:6 Draw - 22:22, 81:1 Draws - 84:20 Dredge - 65:21, 72:23 Dredging - 72:14 DRI - 9:8, 21:5, 32:9, 32:13, 41:22, 42:2, 42:17, 45:3, 45:4, 45:8, 47:9, 54:20, 60:5, 114:17, 114:18, 117:16, 117:18 **Drill - 96:15 Drilling - 28:15**, 28:19 **Drinking - 101:10 Drip** - 92:14 Drive - 30:2, 37:6 Dropping - 84:4 **Drops -** 76:21 **Ducks - 40:19** Duct - 17:12, 29:13, 65:3, 67:3, 68:10, 69:4

Ducts - 67:5, 67:10 Due - 83:12, 83:20, 84:11, 101:5, 117:24 Dug - 29:11 Dunes - 72:18 Dynamic - 34:1

E

Each - 10:4, 62:19, 115:9 Earlier - 49:22, 95:7 Early - 13:14, 43:18, 75:2 **Earmarked - 87:17**, 87:18 Earnest - 22:6 Easement - 53:21 Easements - 54:7 Easily - 88:17, 108:4 East - 53:20 Easterly - 54:5 Eastham - 6:6 Easy - 88:9 **Economic - 15:11,** 39:15, 55:15, 55:16, 76:15, 81:1, 82:17 Economics - 79:2 **Economy -** 20:15, 36:16 Edge - 20:10, 27:10, 100:20 **Edges -** 78:8 Education - 36:18, 39:23, 39:24 Effect - 113:15 Effects - 48:24, 51:11 Efficiently - 19:24 Effort - 33:7, 40:9, 93:6, 109:4 Efforts - 10:23, 27:20, 28:15, 51:7, 70:24, 77:8, 113:3 **EFSB -** 31:8, 47:14, 47:19, 47:22, 107:17, 107:24 Eight - 67:4, 68:9 Elaborate - 37:15 **Electric -** 68:12, 108:4 Electrical - 25:12, 83:17, 91:7, 92:18, 107:22 Electricity - 22:13, 27:7, 29:7 **Elements - 18:9, 19:6,** 30:13, 45:23 Elevations - 58:2 Eliminates - 28:24 Elizabeth - 4:15, 5:13, 6:1, 115:24 Elizabeth's - 82:6 **Email - 118:5** Emergency - 27:16. 27:17, 83:20 **Emerging - 37:18**, 39:16 **EMF -** 107:22 Emissions - 21:19, 55:15, 84:1, 106:24, 107:1, 107:5, 107:22 Emit - 106:23 **Emphasis** - 45:15, 49:17, 50:1, 51:5, 55:24 Employed - 100:9 Employment - 79:21 Enabling - 60:4 Encased - 29:11, 67:17 Encompassed - 19:1 Encounter - 69:20 Encourage - 112:14 End - 15:2, 15:4, 16:1, 68:6, 68:7, 73:10, 73:12, 95:2, 96:24 Endangered - 31:15 Endorsements - 24:2 **Ends -** 46:6, 92:15 Endure - 65:12 Energy - 19:10, 20:1, 20:22, 22:7, 27:20, 31:6, 33:17, 35:17, 35:19, 36:21, 39:2, 42:1, 42:9, 42:10, 55:17, 56:2, 56:3, 56:4, 56:5, 84:12 Engaged - 21:20 Engineer - 8:24, 13:22, 62:6. 106:8 Engineering - 71:12 **Engineers - 93:9, 94:7,** 100:23, 102:20 England - 21:1 **Engos - 26:17 Enhance - 27:19** Enhancements - 26:5 **Enhances -** 33:22

Enjoyed - 32:3 Enough - 23:11, 39:14, 76:5, 87:22 Ensure - 36:10 Entered - 52:7 Entire - 33:7, 39:7, 46:7, 70:19, 71:4, 93:16 Entitled - 9:24 Environment - 20:15, 29:4, 33:13, 34:2, 35:3, 39:13, 65:5, 65:13, 79:24, 80:1, 81:14, 84:3 Environmental - 22:16, 31:4, 31:10, 39:10, 46:12, 62:5, 84:1 **EPA - 16:1 Epsilon - 18:7**, 62:6 Equipment - 54:17, 65:9, 73:11, 78:18, 78:22, 78:24, 79:14, 92:10, 92:13 Equivalent - 20:7, 39:13 Ernest - 6:15, 116:11 ERNIE - 6:17, 65:17, 65:18, 69:3, 69:7, 69:11, 69:24, 73:17, 74:3, 74:6, 74:13, 75:15, 116:13 **Eroding - 64:14 Erosion -** 28:22, 35:12 Especially - 20:2, 25:3, 46:16, 51:7, 54:10 Essence - 23:8 Essential - 76:18 Essentially - 23:20, 45:2, 46:1, 47:17, 48:4, 50:20, 51:21, 52:22, 60:1, 91:13, 91:14 Established - 108:13 Establishes - 36:24 Establishing - 24:23, 27:2, 79:10 Estimate - 82:6 Etcetera - 50:9, 50:19, 76:22, 91:18, 98:10 Etsten - 6:13, 6:14, 116:9, 116:10 Europe - 22:24 European - 23:1 Evaluation - 82:18

Even - 40:18, 61:18,

65:12, 76:7, 79:7,

100:23, 102:11, 102:14 Evenly - 101:21 Event - 15:1, 18:10, 92:12, 94:3, 94:10 Events - 27:17, 65:9 Ever - 68:11 Eversource - 23:22, 37:10, 92:6, 103:14, 103:17, 103:23, 104:12 Every - 36:5, 68:4, 77:18, 88:6, 91:14, 91:24 Everybody - 64:11, 106:13, 107:18 Everybody's - 5:1, 8:5 **Everyone - 20:16**, 21:21, 99:23, 106:15 Everything - 31:17, 96:8 Evidence - 61:18, 61:19 **Evolve - 57:5** Exactly - 49:4 **Example - 29:5**, 30:15, 40:6, 51:9, 80:10 Except - 85:24 Excess - 86:13 Exchange - 98:4 Excited - 21:9 **Exciting -** 18:13 **Excuse - 17:6**, 27:6, 27:22 **EXEC -** 10:18, 13:4, 13:9, 14:3 **Executive -** 13:1, 13:3 Exemplifies - 20:20 Exemptions - 47:15 Exigencies - 59:23 Existing - 17:14, 23:22, 30:7, 37:9, 37:11, 112:3 **Expand - 79:9** Expanded - 24:10 Expansion - 22:8 **Expect -** 31:8, 57:20, 73:15, 77:5, 103:22 Expectancy - 76:15 Expectation's - 29:14 Expected - 76:23 Expeditious - 99:14 Experience - 9:3, 13:23, Expertise - 23:3, 50:4 **Experts -** 18:9, 83:8 **Explain -** 83:5, 96:12 Explained - 67:2 Explosion - 103:2 Explosive - 102:16 **Export -** 17:1, 17:2, 17:11, 17:13, 23:14, 46:3, 49:12 Exposed - 96:10 **Express - 118:6** Expressly - 42:6 Extended - 14:14 Extensive - 24:19, 25:6, 28:8, 28:11, 32:24, 62:24, 103:3 Extensively - 51:2, 51:4, 63:6 Extent - 59:14, 87:4, 90:15 Extra - 43:1 Extremely - 100:5

Facebook - 109:16 Facilitating - 55:14 Facilities - 31:6, 35:17, 39:3, 42:1, 42:10 Facility - 20:5, 68:24, 80:3, 92:24 Fact - 46:17, 46:22,

F

FAA - 31:18

61:1, 63:8, 64:5, 64:15, 79:12, 79:23, 85:6, 92:1, 96:8

Factor - 85:13
Failed - 100:7, 100:17
Failure - 102:17
Failures - 92:21
Fair - 75:15, 98:13
Fairly - 98:12
Fall - 40:17, 104:21
Fallmouth - 6:9, 30:11, 116:5

Familiar - 32:15, 37:7, 69:3

Family - 53:24 Far - 40:11 Farm - 23:10, 70:8 Fashion - 11:19, 108:2 Favor - 12:16, 43:12,

58:10, 99:5

Experienced - 22:23

114:3, 115:3, 117:14, 118:17 Favorable - 71:19 Feature - 47:11, 57:2, 58:9, 58:11 Features - 45:18 **February - 31:12** Federal - 18:15, 19:22, 21:16, 21:19, 22:3, 22:11, 30:24, 31:2, 31:17, 49:20, 50:3, 57:9, 62:13, 63:3, 63:15, 63:22, 70:22, 74:8, 74:10, 74:17, 74:19, 74:24, 75:5, 75:12, 77:17, 97:19 Feedback - 15:17, 16:6, 78:4 Feeds - 30:9, 85:11 Feel - 18:23, 37:8, 40:11 Feels - 18:16, 109:24 Feet - 23:9, 28:20, 29:15, 53:24, 61:4, 63:9, 64:17, 64:23, 66:15, 67:12, 67:14, 67:15, 67:16, 68:2, 68:4, 71:6, 72:10, 77:2, 77:14, 92:1, 96:17, 96:18, 96:19, 97:5, 103:15, 106:14, 106:15, 108:20 FEIS - 74:23 Field - 108:10 Fields - 107:23, 108:2, 108:4, 108:6 Figure - 64:16, 71:13 Figures - 50:16 Filed - 10:21, 11:13, 11:19, 22:11 **Filings -** 26:8, 47:3, 109:8 Final - 22:15, 31:8, 31:10, 38:20, 57:20, 57:23, 57:24, 58:1, 59:19, 96:2 Finalized - 31:11, 63:16 Finally - 36:15, 38:20, 39:6, 40:13, 59:8 Financial - 23:2 Find - 48:10, 66:10, 77:22, 98:20, 99:15

Finding - 48:10, 81:5,

90:11 Findings - 44:21, 45:6, 45:9, 45:12, 49:6, 60:3 Fine - 72:4 Fire - 102:4 First - 16:3, 33:17, 34:11, 46:17, 61:23, 62:11, 62:14, 63:7, 64:8, 70:4, 80:16, 82:14, 104:18, 111:20 Fish - 75:16 Fisheries - 31:16, 31:18, 50:8, 59:1, 59:4, 74:9, 81:10 **Fishing -** 76:21, 78:4 Five - 13:16, 33:1, 62:20, 97:5, 98:11 Fix - 88:9 Flag - 90:1 Flashing - 5:14 Flexibility - 73:14, 77:22, 98:20 Flipping - 84:2 Flooding - 65:8 Floor - 66:6, 72:11, 76:8, 108:10 Fluid - 34:19, 34:21, 35:2, 51:21, 59:9, 91:4, 91:6, 91:8, 91:12, 92:14, 93:12, 93:15, 93:17, 93:21, 94:12, 94:20, 94:22, 95:5, 95:14, 95:19, 113:13 Fluidizing - 28:5 Fluids - 101:4, 101:20, 110:6, 110:8 Focus - 10:1 Foley - 18:6 Folks - 81:3, 100:6, 107:17 Follow - 21:10, 21:14, 28:2, 71:24, 82:5 Followed - 107:17 **Following -** 16:19, 27:18 Follows - 96:16 Foot - 29:3, 54:4, 77:19 Footing - 112:4 Forested - 52:20 Form - 16:6, 57:21, 67:6

Formal - 109:8

Former - 37:5 Forms - 106:13 **Formula - 86:8** Forth - 102:1, 103:10 Forums - 24:8, 109:5, 109:10 Forward - 16:15, 21:12, 32:6, 41:4, 100:12, 103:12, 104:4 Found - 66:9 Four - 61:4, 67:6, 67:8, 67:11 Fourth - 102:23 **Fraction - 108:15** Frame - 69:8 Frankly - 43:21 Fred - 5:17, 5:19, 16:11, 16:12, 111:3, 111:4, 112:21, 112:24, 115:17, 115:19 Friday - 15:13 Friendly - 15:6 **Friends - 101:5** Front - 4:12, 73:2, 80:23, 105:1, 114:13 Fuel - 83:16 Full - 40:21, 67:21, 82:12, 105:24 Fully - 25:18 Fund - 25:22, 27:11, 34:15, 39:19, 52:9, 98:7 Fundamentals - 19:5 Funding - 25:23, 26:3, 34:14, 36:17, 39:17, 39:22 Funds - 25:24, 52:8, 55:18, 87:13, 87:15, 98:18 Further - 44:2, 109:17 Furthering - 55:12 Future - 33:11, 37:17,

G

61:2

Gail - 13:20, 115:11, 115:15, 115:17, 115:20, 115:24, 116:3, 116:5, 116:8, 116:11, 116:14, 116:16, 116:19, 116:22, 117:1, 117:4, 117:7, 117:10, 117:13

Gallon - 101:20 Gallons - 101:22 Gamut - 55:20 **Gap -** 19:14 Gas - 55:14, 83:15, 83:16 **Gave -** 43:10 Gear - 78:7 General - 15:16, 47:13, 48:17, 85:7 Generally - 28:22 **Generated -** 82:7, 86:7 Generation - 56:2, 76:18, 83:2, 84:14, 85:4, 85:11, 91:7 Generic - 101:12, 101:17 Gentlemen - 4:3 Geophysical - 70:12, 71:7 Get - 5:9, 10:9, 26:21, 31:14, 61:23, 64:13, 69:12, 69:13, 70:13, 71:18, 71:23, 72:12, 77:7, 77:8, 86:6, 86:11, 90:19, 96:22, 98:21, 101:14, 102:8, 109:15, 109:21, 112:18 Gets - 96:18, 103:5 **Getting -** 5:8, 17:21, 24:14, 47:8, 79:6, 80:15, 101:13, 103:2 Give - 21:11, 43:1, 44:4, 59:11 Given - 22:2, 25:19, 40:14, 41:20, 45:7, 48:9, 48:16, 48:22, 57:3, 57:12, 60:5, 77:20, 103:6, 111:14 **Gives -** 48:13, 99:23 Giving - 18:7, 44:1, 99:13 **Global -** 19:8, 19:12, 21:17, 22:21, 36:3, 55:12 Go - 8:19, 8:20, 11:11, 12:6, 13:2, 13:10, 21:12, 23:6, 25:24, 26:7, 30:22, 33:2, 38:8, 39:19, 46:19, 46:20, 56:24, 63:19,

64:8, 65:4, 67:14, 69:1,

70:2, 72:6, 72:22, 81:6, 86:1, 90:5, 91:23, 95:24, 103:21, 107:10, 109:17 Goal - 31:21, 31:23 Goals - 32:2, 47:24, 48:1, 48:3, 48:5, 48:14 Gone - 18:24, 56:13, 95:10, 110:1 Good - 32:10, 37:18, 48:22, 62:4, 64:3, 75:7, 80:8, 95:12, 97:23, 103:14, 106:17 Google - 109:16 Got - 9:3, 18:11, 27:11, 30:24, 40:19, 57:10, 66:2, 66:21, 96:2, 102:8, 102:18 Government - 21:20, 22:3 Governor's - 7:24 Grab - 63:20 Grant - 45:4, 114:18 Graphic - 96:13 Graphics - 96:5 Grateful - 100:5 Great - 19:13, 23:3, 49:24, 56:6, 58:10, 69:16, 69:19, 85:17, 104:14, 104:19 Greater - 42:22, 55:6, 56:5, 57:21, 58:16 Greatest - 20:18, 54:22 Green - 4:17, 6:23, 115:3 Greenhouse - 55:14 Grid - 22:9, 23:19, 27:5, 27:10, 29:7, 30:19, 35:20, 46:7, 76:19, 82:22, 82:24, 83:6, 84:7, 84:12, 84:20, 85:3, 92:7, 103:17 Ground - 69:22, 92:5, 102:17, 108:2, 112:18 Groundwater - 37:21, 37:24 Group - 108:14 **Groups - 24:4** Growth - 33:4, 33:6, 33:9 **Grunwald -** 7:7, 7:8, 82:5, 82:21, 83:4, 84:18,

84:24, 85:17, 116:23, 116:24 Guard - 31:18 Guess - 48:17 Guest - 44:7 Gulf - 81:6 Guy - 80:11, 84:22

Habitat - 34:8, 35:5,

35:10, 38:18, 61:17,

Н

61:20, 63:15, 63:22, 64:6 Habitation - 89:22 Hair's - 106:18 Half - 18:8, 30:7, 62:8, 67:13, 74:12, 109:7 Hand - 73:8, 73:12, 97:5 Handle - 117:22 Handled - 50:23 Handshake - 102:14 Hanley - 13:20, 115:17, 115:20, 115:24, 116:3, 116:5, 116:8, 116:11, 116:14, 116:16, 116:19, 116:22, 117:1, 117:4, 117:7, 117:10, 117:13 Happen - 29:16, 63:24, 88:4, 110:24 Happens - 40:2, 93:19, 102:15 **Happy -** 18:23, 41:7, 46:24, 60:14, 85:23, 103:7, 103:9, 117:15, 118:7 Hard - 19:20, 97:2 Harris - 7:19, 7:20, 117:8, 117:9 Harwich - 6:12, 14:22, 116:8 Haven't - 65:19, 66:7, 66:8, 89:13 Having - 8:22, 14:9, 14:10, 51:10, 59:21, 81:6, 85:10, 104:24, 109:6 Hazard - 104:9 Hazardous - 51:24, 59:9, 59:12, 59:18 Hazards - 77:4 **HCA -** 25:11

HDD - 29:3, 64:22, 73:11, 73:12, 97:3, 108:19 Health - 108:12 Healthy - 33:12 **Hear -** 47:5, 112:3 Heard - 10:7, 45:17, 55:7, 111:5, 111:23 **HEARING -** 4:1, 10:10, 10:12, 11:20, 11:23, 16:13, 16:16, 16:17, 16:18, 17:18, 41:11, 41:22, 41:23, 41:24, 42:7, 42:13, 43:6, 43:8, 43:11, 44:6, 44:18, 44:19, 44:23, 53:2, 60:9, 87:24, 113:20, 114:10, 114:18 Hearings - 42:8, 60:10, 103:18, 106:10 Heather - 42:24, 86:10 Heating - 83:16 Heavy - 93:10, 93:24 Held - 10:11, 10:13, 14:20, 20:17, 41:22 Help - 86:11, 102:7, 102:24, 104:10 **Helpful - 49:9** Helps - 50:4, 52:20, 85:12, 85:15 **Heritage - 36:16** Hesitant - 89:14 Hi - 9:13 High - 81:5 Higher - 29:20, 39:23, 39:24 **Highest - 109:4** Highlight - 24:5 Highlights - 24:21 **Highway - 37:11** Hill - 30:1, 106:2, 112:10 Hired - 93:8 **Historic -** 50:18, 61:1 Historical - 89:20 Historically - 64:13 **History** - 20:3, 91:8, 92:1 Hit - 5:14, 6:24, 8:18,

Hoag - 18:6 Hold - 38:19, 42:7 Home - 18:3, 83:16 Homes - 23:11, 33:19, 106:1 **Honest -** 50:13, 56:11 **Hope -** 9:4, 49:5, 73:19, 110:12, 112:12 Hopefully - 40:17 Hoping - 40:16 Horizontal - 28:15, 96:14 **Host -** 11:5, 14:7, 24:15, 24:18, 30:14, 31:13, 34:11, 36:23, 39:4, 52:6, 52:24, 53:8, 55:20, 56:7, 58:6, 58:8, 71:9, 87:13, 100:10, 100:11, 104:22, 107:20, 113:1 Hot - 8:20 Hour - 93:24, 117:21 Hours - 24:9, 104:20, 104:21 Householders - 112:3 Households - 109:11 **Houses -** 24:9, 109:5 Housing - 36:16, 48:6 Huge - 41:1, 83:21 **Human - 25:3**, 29:1, Hundred - 53:24, 91:16, 103:15 Hyannis - 17:4, 45:22, 102:4, 102:7, 105:19 **Hydro -** 28:3 **Hydrologist - 13:22**

l'd - 4:3, 8:21, 34:5, 69:13, 112:17, 117:22 Idea - 26:21, 27:15, 33:14, 64:13, 70:13, 71:5, 80:23, 111:17 Ideas - 52:1 Identified - 56:17, 59:18, 98:15, 99:11 Identify - 11:4, 15:10, 110:24 Identifying - 65:21 Idman - 41:11, 41:12, 41:14, 61:7, 61:22, 86:1,

83:11, 98:21

Hits - 18:3, 92:4

86:8, 86:15, 86:18, 87:2, 88:8, 90:7, 90:10, 90:22, 106:6, 106:9, 112:22 IEEE - 92:20, 100:18 Ignorance - 107:9 I'II - 4:22, 4:24, 6:22, 8:7, 12:2, 12:10, 21:5, 21:12, 23:6, 26:7, 37:14, 43:19, 44:2, 55:8, 58:8, 59:5, 59:20, 76:13, 100:15, 109:24, 118:13 **l'm -** 4:6, 4:7, 4:9, 8:9, 8:10, 8:23, 9:18, 10:11, 10:15, 18:1, 32:7, 32:24, 37:6, 42:14, 60:15, 62:5, 65:24, 66:8, 66:18, 69:3, 69:18, 70:1, 76:11, 84:18, 85:23, 87:24, 95:23, 96:4, 97:17, 105:19, 105:24, 106:5, 107:7, 114:11, 114:14, 117:15, 118:7, 118:12 **Image -** 19:3, 28:12 **Imagine -** 31:14, 57:3, 57:10, 84:8 Immediately - 83:12, 95:15 Impact - 16:21, 29:1, 31:10, 32:13, 36:20, 38:9, 38:17, 38:18, 58:24 Impacts - 19:10, 35:4, 35:8, 36:10, 46:22, 48:24, 49:3, 50:7, 50:21, 50:22, 51:11, 54:9, 55:15, 58:17 Implemented - 13:15 Importance - 40:14 **Important -** 20:9, 20:17, 28:14, 31:22, 38:11, 56:1, 57:14, 58:4, 59:1, 81:13, 85:5, 111:12, 112:24 Importantly - 20:21, 35:21, 38:21 Impossible - 77:10 Improve - 56:3, 83:5 Improved - 27:5, 82:22 Incentive - 13:14 Inch - 67:4, 94:3 Inches - 94:1, 94:10,

94:12 inches/6 - 94:1 Incidences - 78:6 Include - 62:18 Included - 16:2 includes - 17:10, 35:9, 36:12 Including - 9:22, 19:18, 22:9, 27:14, 47:4, 59:16, 104:6 Income - 99:8 Incomplete - 11:15 Incredible - 57:7 Incumbent - 49:1 Indeed - 63:22 Independence - 17:3, 23:18, 23:21, 30:2, 30:12, 30:21, 37:6, 45:21, 46:6, 49:16, 49:19, 51:12, 54:4 Indicated - 66:3 Individual - 50:23, 115:9 Individuals - 80:9, 80:10 Industrial - 37:7, 37:13, 37:15, 37:16, 37:17, 51:12, 51:14, 52:14, 53:12, 53:18, 53:23 Industries - 37:18, 81:10 Industry - 26:11, 34:17, 36:19, 38:1, 39:16, 80:19, 81:7, 81:23, 92:18, 93:23, 95:9, 100:21 Inevitably - 100:13 Information - 14:24, 15:5, 15:7, 33:1, 57:21, 60:24, 61:12, 70:15, 73:21, 90:14 Infrastructure - 24:18, 25:13, 26:10, 27:9, 36:11, 55:22, 80:22, 83:17, 113:4 Infrequent - 92:11 Infrequently - 92:2 Inherent - 36:2, 51:17 Inhibition - 94:17

Initial - 60:20, 79:12

Injects - 27:9

Innovation - 39:19 Innovations - 26:20 Input - 24:14, 93:7 Inside - 93:11 Insistent - 67:23 **Install -** 72:17, 79:3 Installation - 28:2, 62:17, 62:23, 63:5, 63:19, 64:20, 65:11, 65:23, 72:1, 72:10, 72:24, 73:15, 108:8, 113:4 Installed - 29:6, 40:7, 62:16, 62:21, 64:5, 68:23, 76:19, 113:12 **Installing -** 26:3, 71:13, 110:17 Installs - 79:5 Instance - 56:18, 73:9, 87:6 Instances - 57:16, 77:6 Institutions - 39:24 Insulating - 91:19 Insulator - 34:22 Integrated - 26:22 Intended - 17:8, 79:14 Intention - 95:18 Interaction - 100:5 Interest - 24:22, 118:6 Interested - 15:17 Interestingly - 56:15 interests - 19:7, 20:17 Interfere - 54:6 Interferences - 67:7 Internally - 11:7 International - 22:22, 108:14 Interpret - 11:16 Interrelated - 34:1 Intersections - 51:1 Intervals - 29:14, 110:10 Into - 5:5, 5:6, 22:9, 23:6, 24:10, 26:22, 27:23, 30:2, 30:19, 30:22, 31:14, 34:2, 35:2, 40:9, 41:2, 46:17, 49:10, 52:7, 54:16, 65:3, 72:12, 73:10, 76:8, 84:3, 84:12, 95:10, 96:6, 96:23, 97:8, 101:21, 106:23, 107:3,

107:6, 109:14, 110:14, 118:8 Introduce - 8:17, 9:15, 32:7 Invasive - 28:5 Inventories - 89:21 Inventory - 59:11, 59:19 Investigation - 87:18 Investment - 81:17 Investments - 26:10 Invitation - 14:13 Involved - 18:4, 18:22, 64:11, 79:6, 84:7, 89:1, Involves - 31:1 Iron - 69:7 Island - 63:1, 63:7, 80:7 Islands - 18:17, 23:13, 26:14, 81:11 Issue - 47:15, 52:13, 87:5, 87:11, 87:22, 112:6, 112:24, 113:6 **Issued -** 14:23, 15:12 **Issues -** 14:10, 20:11, 52:12, 58:23, 78:11, 78:12, 78:13, 111:6 **Issuing -** 16:4 Itself - 47:23, 58:3, 61:20, 64:7, 67:13, 70:8, 90:24, 93:10 I've - 9:3, 53:17, 56:13, 57:4, 62:7, 66:21, 111:23

-1

JACK - 4:5, 7:14, 12:12, 78:17, 100:24, 110:15, 113:22, 117:6, 118:15 Jackie - 118:8 Jacqueline - 6:12, 6:14, 116:8, 116:10 January - 83:10 Jaw - 84:4 **Jessica -** 42:23, 115:6 Jet - 28:3, 62:22, 72:2, 72:4, 72:13, 72:16, 72:20, 72:21, 73:5, 73:16 Jetted - 97:5 Jetting - 65:24, 73:7, 73:8, 73:13 **Job -** 19:13, 39:17,

74:20 **Jobs -** 26:12, 36:19, 39:17, 82:7, 82:12, 82:15 **John -** 7:12, 7:19, 7:20, 113:8, 117:4, 117:8, 117:9 Join - 14:15 Joined - 16:10 Joining - 18:5 Joint - 93:6 Jon - 41:11, 41:14, 60:18, 106:6, 112:21 JONATHAN - 41:12, 61:7, 61:22, 86:8, 86:15, 86:18, 87:2, 88:8, 90:7, 90:10, 90:22, 106:9, 112:22 **Joy -** 6:6, 6:8 **JR -** 4:5, 7:13, 7:14, 12:12, 113:22, 117:5, 117:6, 118:15 July - 14:21, 104:7 Junction - 30:5, 69:4 Junctions - 66:14 June - 75:2 Jurisdiction - 42:2, 44:1, 45:19, 45:23,

K

47:22, 54:22

Kate - 18:6, 32:7, 32:10, 41:10 **Keep -** 5:2, 54:2, 54:3, 86:22 **Kevin -** 7:7, 7:8, 82:4, 82:5, 82:21, 83:4, 84:18, 84:24, 85:17, 85:21, 116:22, 116:24 **Knocks -** 92:3 Knowing - 29:19, 100:21, 115:8 Knowledge - 79:23 **Known -** 74:16, 89:19, 90:12, 90:17, 90:24 Kristen - 43:2 KRISTY - 10:18, 13:3, 13:4, 13:9, 14:3 **Kv** - 68:17, 68:19, 68:21

L

Labor - 82:18 Ladies - 4:2 Lady - 107:7 Laid - 29:11 Lake - 89:24 Land - 25:10, 37:4, 46:5, 46:7, 46:16, 53:7, 56:19, 66:13, 70:5, 76:6, 86:21, 87:5, 87:8, 88:3, 99:15, 106:15, 108:3 Landfall - 18:21, 23:16 **Landing -** 17:1, 49:12 Landowners - 105:21 Lands - 37:16 Landscaping - 54:8, 57:24 Lane - 30:2, 90:2, 112:10 Language - 11:14, 90:23 Large - 44:20, 81:2, 94:24 Largely - 32:5, 50:23, 79:13 Larger - 64:2 Last - 10:7, 11:1, 14:8, 16:1, 53:4, 53:14, 59:6, 62:8, 64:17, 74:12, 77:19, 79:2, 82:19, 83:10, 86:2, 95:24, 98:3, 100:4, 100:17, 102:16, 103:1, 104:21, 109:7, 110:1, 110:3, 110:18, 111:7 **Lasting - 39:10 Lastly -** 15:23, 73:7 Late - 5:3, 117:21 Lately - 98:13 Later - 21:6, 22:8, 23:7, 109:12 Law - 109:9 Laying - 28:13, 80:13 Layout - 90:16, 90:17 Lead - 78:21 **Leading - 103:4 Leads -** 31:5, 86:19 Leak - 95:13

Leaks - 91:8, 92:10

Lean - 83:7

Learned - 100:7 Learning - 5:7 Lease - 21:23, 22:2, 22:4 Least - 19:14, 49:10, 61:12, 64:1, 99:8, 102:20, 111:23, 112:7 **Leave -** 100:1, 115:12 **Leaves -** 62:22 Leaving - 13:16, 96:20, 99:16 Led - 21:7 Left - 28:4, 73:14 Legal - 106:9 Legitimate - 11:13 Len - 6:18, 95:23, 113:8, 116:14 Length - 70:19 Lengthy - 92:20 **LEONARD -** 6:19, 96:3, 97:10, 113:9, 115:1, 116:15 **Less -** 53:9, 65:6 Lesson - 103:11 Lessons - 100:7, 100:8 Let's - 69:24 Letter - 43:24, 74:2, 74:4, 75:13 Letters - 43:16, 44:16, 47:4 **Lev -** 13:21 Level - 13:15, 18:16, 19:15, 27:19, 31:6, 31:17, 40:3, 42:23, 54:22, 57:9, 57:12, 60:24, 61:2, 61:4, 61:5, 64:9, 65:7, 65:13, 70:20, 74:19, 77:16, 99:6, 101:21, 108:2, 108:10 **Levels -** 40:15, 62:12, 101:9, 108:6, 108:16, 108:18 Lieu - 53:6 Life - 25:17, 36:5, 65:14, 68:24, 76:15, 79:17 Lifetime - 79:3 **Light - 115:13 Like -** 4:3, 8:9, 8:16, 8:21, 11:21, 13:5, 18:16, 30:4, 34:5, 34:22, 38:17,

41:17, 47:20, 49:1, 57:23, 59:23, 60:23, 61:9, 61:22, 64:2, 65:9, 66:22, 68:14, 68:20, 69:12, 69:13, 71:3, 71:6, 71:24, 72:23, 74:18, 85:15, 97:21, 98:9, 101:6, 104:8, 106:12, 108:3, 109:2, 110:4, 110:22, 112:12, 112:17, 113:19, 117:22, 118:3 Likely - 79:13, 87:7, 87:9 **Likes - 112:3 Limitation -** 17:11, 45:9 Limited - 61:19, 77:5 Limiting - 25:5 Line - 28:20, 70:12, 83:11, 83:12, 95:4, 103:20 Lines - 69:4 **Lining - 40:19 Link -** 76:18 List - 66:24, 71:16, 77:3, 106:11 **Listed -** 38:7, 71:17, 86:4, 89:20 Lit - 4:17 **Little -** 21:5, 23:6, 29:5, 43:21, 43:23, 60:23, 66:1, 73:18, 96:4, 96:12, 97:2, 109:14, 109:17, 117:22 **Live -** 75:15, 106:18 **LIZ -** 5:17, 5:21, 5:23, 6:1, 6:4, 6:6, 6:9, 6:12, 6:15, 6:18, 6:20, 7:4, 7:7, 7:9, 7:12, 7:15, 7:18, 7:21, 7:24, 8:3, 75:21, 75:22, 76:3, 78:10, 79:1, 82:2, 116:2 LLC - 16:24 Load - 20:6, 80:23 **Loading -** 38:18 Local - 18:15, 19:7, 19:10, 19:11, 19:14, 19:23, 22:17, 22:20, 24:3, 26:9, 31:6, 31:13, 32:23, 38:21, 38:23, 47:11, 57:8, 79:3, 79:16, 79:21, 79:23, 80:1, 80:9, 80:16, 81:18, 81:23, 84:21, 97:21 Locally - 31:24 **Locals -** 79:6 Located - 17:7, 17:11, 17:14, 23:11, 23:21, 37:22, 45:23, 46:3, 47:6, 49:14, 49:16, 50:17, 88:16 Location - 16:24, 71:15 Long - 22:1, 39:9, 49:13, 50:19, 62:19, 62:21, 66:24, 69:20, 70:7, 71:16, 80:4, 82:11, 88:13, 88:23, 98:11 Look - 19:9, 21:12, 30:3, 32:5, 41:4, 48:18, 62:14, 62:15, 64:12, 71:1, 71:19, 89:23, 98:7, 111:21 Looked - 62:24, 64:12, 108:1, 108:8 **Looking - 4**:7, 33:4, 46:2, 49:11, 54:16, 72:19, 98:14, 100:18, **Looks -** 71:6, 72:23, 107:24, 108:14 Lose - 102:7 Loss - 53:11, 83:20 Lost - 25:9, 93:16 **Lot** - 22:20, 23:24, 24:1, 28:18, 29:20, 30:21, 40:9, 41:1, 42:21, 65:3, 78:11, 80:18, 83:17, 89:12, 95:9, 96:15, 100:7, 100:17, 101:14, 103:6, 105:23, 105:24, 106:19 Lots - 70:15, 84:20 **Love -** 75:16, 75:17, 101:7 Low - 108:6 Lower - 108:18

M

Machine - 4:17, 5:1, 5:6, 5:15, 115:12 Made - 4:21, 12:10, 25:21, 42:13, 42:18,

Lunch - 14:9, 14:11

53:1, 53:17, 57:13, 59:3, 67:24, 74:15, 75:1, 80:22, 87:7, 93:19 Magnetic - 107:23, 108:6, 108:10 **Mail - 107:19** Mailed - 109:10 **Mailings - 109:10** Main - 24:18, 30:24, 112:15 Mainland - 27:8 **Maintain - 65:10** Maintenance - 79:6, 79:11, 79:12, 80:4, 81:15, 82:13 Major - 30:24, 85:8 Majority - 72:1, 73:15 Make - 5:1, 8:9, 14:13, 23:16, 24:13, 32:4, 35:1, 35:2, 35:8, 35:20, 37:23, 43:19, 45:15, 48:17, 72:15, 76:16, 77:8, 88:10, 89:15, 95:18, 98:17, 99:24, 100:16, 109:18, 110:4, 112:23, 113:3, 115:14 Making - 18:20, 40:9 Malakhoff - 13:21 Mammal - 26:20 Mammals - 39:18, 50:8 Managed - 40:8 Management - 29:21, 35:7, 35:18, 36:9, 36:13, 48:6, 50:24, 58:23, 59:15, 82:13 Management/ Maintenance - 79:4 Manager - 18:1, 104:20 **Managers - 83:15**, 104:7 Mandating - 21:18, 22:8 Manhole - 30:5, 69:9 Many - 18:16, 24:20, 25:4, 27:18, 35:13, 49:20, 56:12, 57:21, 58:11, 76:16, 82:7, 109:18 Map - 70:15 Mapping - 70:20, 90:14

Margin - 93:18

Marine - 26:15, 26:20,

31:16, 31:18, 35:11, 39:18, 50:8, 74:9, 79:24, 81:13 Maritime - 80:10, 81:4, 81:10, 81:20 Marjorie - 105:7, 105:9, 105:13, 105:18, 106:7, 106:17, 107:4, 107:13, 108:23 **Martha's -** 80:5 Mashpee - 6:15, 116:11 Mass - 26:12, 31:4, 80:9, 80:18, 80:20, 81:4, 81:20, 81:22, 85:7, 89:20 Massachusetts - 20:6, 20:24, 27:4, 27:6, 46:12, 47:12, 55:13, 68:15, 91:9, 91:15, 101:8 Massive - 83:13 Material - 51:24, 59:9, 67:19, 71:11, 103:2 **Materials -** 43:15, 44:7, 44:12, 44:14, 44:24, 47:5, 59:11, 59:12, 59:15, 59:18 Matrix - 19:22, 49:20, 57:7 Matter - 63:11, 88:21, 98:5 Matters - 47:12, 47:13, 47:20, 56:8, 100:22 Mattress - 78:3 Mattresses - 78:6, 78:7 **Maxim -** 8:1, 8:2 Maximum - 64:24, 94:9 **MAYO -** 17:22, 18:1, 79:19, 82:10, 83:3, 83:7, 84:22, 109:2 Mccaffrey - 6:10, 6:11, 60:22, 61:15, 65:15, 116:6, 116:7 MCCORMACK - 4:5, 7:13, 7:14, 12:12, 113:22, 117:5, 117:6, 118:15 Mcelroy - 42:24, 86:10 Mceneaney - 18:7, 32:7, 32:10 MCLAUGHLIN - 97:23, 97:24, 111:24

Mealy - 5:21, 5:22, 5:24, 8:12, 8:14, 8:21, 12:21, 13:6, 13:8, 114:7, 115:21, 115:22 Mean - 61:8, 85:3 Meaningful - 23:5, 24:1, 24:3 Means - 8:6, 8:19, 31:23, 72:11, 77:24, 92:22, 106:14 **Measure -** 25:14, 27:15, 38:15 Measured - 76:15 Measures - 35:7, 35:13, 38:6, 38:7, 38:10, 64:1 Mechanical - 65:20 Media - 24:11, 24:12, 109:14 Medium - 109:21 Meet - 118:2, 118:4 Meeting - 4:4, 4:7, 4:8, 118:3, 118:22 Meetings - 60:10 Meets - 32:14 Megawatt - 17:9, 23:10 Megawatts - 35:19 **Member -** 5:2, 5:3, 5:4, 8:11, 9:1, 43:14 Members - 4:10, 11:21, 12:18, 13:13, 13:16, 14:14, 18:5, 41:13, 114:4, 118:18 Memorandum - 44:22 Memorized - 64:16 Memory - 68:14 **Mention -** 38:11, 69:14, 93:1 Mentioned - 26:10, 33:18, 34:13, 38:1, 39:11, 42:4, 65:19, 66:2, 89:5, 95:7, 109:5, 111:24 **MEPA -** 31:3, 31:9, 40:20, 47:2, 47:3, 57:5, 70:23, 74:17, 74:18, 75:5 Merits - 18:19 Met - 87:12 Meter - 71:14, 108:9 **Meters -** 70:18, 108:9 **Method -** 65:19, 72:14 Methods - 48:2, 53:3,

56:23, 66:3, 69:14, 69:21, 71:16 Mic - 8:19 Michael - 8:1, 8:2 Michaud - 13:22, 42:24 Microphone - 8:7, 14:10, 97:17, 107:3, 109:24 Middle - 50:10 Midst - 93:20 Migration - 25:3 Mile - 77:21, 89:18, 105:20 Miles - 23:9, 23:11, 23:12, 23:19, 62:19, 62:21, 66:20, 70:7, 73:4 Milligauss - 108:12 Million - 20:6, 20:8, 25:14, 25:18, 26:19, 27:13, 33:20, 34:15, 39:11, 52:6, 80:22, 81:16, 101:19, 101:22 Millions - 83:22 Milton - 68:20 Mind - 5:2, 13:18, 64:10, 75:8 Mineral - 34:22, 91:13, 101:6, 113:10, 113:13, 113:15 Minimal - 63:8, 64:6, 102:6 Minimally - 28:4 Minimize - 25:6, 50:7 Minimized - 35:9 Minimizing - 58:19 Minimum - 67:12 Minor - 40:4 **Minority -** 7:18, 117:7 Minute - 5:4, 8:17 Minutes - 4:7, 12:4, 12:6, 12:8, 12:23, 12:24, 39:8 Mission - 33:6 Misspoke - 90:11, 90:23 Mitigate - 50:7, 53:11, 54:9, 61:3 Mitigating - 58:18 Mitigation - 52:2, 54:1, 56:18, 62:2, 98:8 Mix - 22:21, 103:14 Mixed - 94:20

Mobile - 72:12 Mockup - 30:20 Model - 104:3 Modeling - 89:23, 108:1, 108:6 **Modified -** 88:17 Moment - 4:9, 14:19, 37:3, 100:4 Money - 55:23, 83:21 Monitored - 78:20 Monitoring - 26:22, 35:10, 59:4, 63:1, 63:5, 63:16, 110:9, 110:10, 110:13, 110:18, 110:19 **Monitors -** 92:18 Month - 9:20, 15:4, 100:4 Months - 11:2, 19:3, 24:20, 25:2 More - 4:20, 9:22, 10:5, 11:19, 14:23, 15:5, 15:6, 18:18, 19:24, 20:1, 30:9, 32:2, 35:20, 41:6, 60:23, 62:19, 62:24, 69:4, 70:2, 71:20, 72:20, 75:23, 78:21, 82:24, 83:8, 84:8, 85:10, 87:7, 89:3, 92:14, 100:12, 101:14, 101:15 Most - 20:21, 25:10, 38:11, 51:6, 57:2, 58:17, 67:9, 99:14 Motion - 12:10, 12:15, 113:19, 113:24, 114:15, 114:21, 114:24, 117:23, 118:13, 118:16 **Mounted -** 91:23 Mouth - 24:12 Move - 12:12, 16:15, 114:16 Moved - 113:22, 114:22, 118:14, 118:22 **Moves -** 98:22 Moving - 35:15, 54:18, 57:6 Much - 8:5, 8:6, 8:15, 9:5, 19:12, 20:13, 30:24, 31:14, 34:22, 40:22, 44:3, 61:5, 62:12, 64:10, Multi - 53:24

Multiyear - 21:20

Municipal - 32:18, 38:24, 45:11, 47:9, 79:24 Municipalities - 86:24 Municipality - 86:22, 86:23, 88:2, 88:5 Muskeget - 23:15, 70:8, 72:8 Myself - 66:8

Ν Name - 4:15, 5:13, 17:24, 62:5, 105:17, 111:5 Nantucket - 23:15, 30:10, 62:16, 62:18, 68:18, 70:9 Narrow - 28:6, 62:22 Nate - 33:18, 34:12, 39:7, 64:21, 67:2, 79:8, 79:18 NATHANIEL - 17:22, 18:1, 79:19, 82:10, 83:3, 83:7, 84:22, 109:2 National - 19:8, 24:4, 26:17, 31:18, 74:9, 92:6, 101:2, 102:12, 104:3 Nationally - 32:1 Native - 7:21, 117:10 Natural - 33:13, 34:2, 34:3, 34:5, 63:10, 83:15, 83:16 Naturally - 52:20 Nature - 57:4, 57:18 Near - 50:1 Nearby - 95:15 Necessarily - 87:17 Necessary - 34:20, 45:7, 91:18 Necessitate - 95:14 Need - 4:14, 15:8, 29:16, 31:14, 51:17, 51:20, 60:12, 65:5, 69:15, 72:22, 81:11, 98:19, 105:15, 111:16, 111:18 Needed - 12:10, 68:11, 80:7, 83:19, 104:18,

51:10, 115:4 Negotiations - 100:9 Neighboring - 87:6 Neighbors - 108:21 Never - 109:23 New - 4:11, 8:11, 13:6, 15:3, 20:22, 21:1, 22:20, 24:10, 32:18, 34:14, 36:17, 36:18, 36:19, 39:16, 52:11, 52:16, 54:5, 80:24, 98:9, 98:10, 117:22, 118:11 News - 103:14 Next - 16:7, 23:21, 33:23, 54:18, 66:7, 66:12, 68:6, 104:1, 104:6, 118:20 Nice - 20:10, 22:21 Nine - 38:6, 43:9 Nitrogen - 38:18 **NMFS - 74:15** NOAA - 66:9, 73:19, 74:1, 74:7, 74:15, 74:20, 74:21, 75:3 Nobody - 112:3 **Noise -** 54:13, 54:14, 78:11 None - 12:2, 53:9, 97:20, 118:12 Nonprofit - 24:7 **Noon - 14:12** Normal - 72:21, 76:23, 95:9 Normally - 58:12, 78:23, 91:6 North - 26:18, 30:15, 46:5, 52:16, 110:20 Northeasterly - 54:10, 54:12 Northerly - 46:5 **Notch -** 72:15 Note - 31:19, 38:8, 42:6, 56:15, 58:8, 109:10 Nothing - 91:11, 92:23 Notice - 44:7, 72:9, 106:10, 107:16 Notification - 106:13, 107:20 Notified - 105:23, 107:19 Notwithstanding - 28:2

111:18

Needs - 85:14, 99:18

Negative - 48:23, 49:3,

Options - 87:1

Oral - 43:11, 102:21

3 Number - 18:5, 18:9, 21:15, 46:14, 56:24, 58:20, 68:3, 82:14, 86:6 Numerous - 24:7, 31:2

0

O&M - 80:3 Oath - 41:21 **Obeying - 29:18 Objective -** 61:14, 77:18 **Objectives -** 48:1, 48:4, 48:14 Obligation - 98:18 Obligations - 58:6 Observation - 44:18, 100:1, 100:16 Obstructions - 76:9 **Obtain -** 59:24 **Obvious -** 71:3, 88:5 Obviously - 25:1, 51:24, 70:14, 98:6, 103:16 Occasioned - 56:16, 56:17, 56:20 Occur - 87:9 Occurred - 84:7 Ocean - 28:16, 34:6, 48:8, 50:8, 59:5, 66:5, 70:6 Off - 12:2, 17:23, 20:8, 20:16, 23:1, 37:5, 38:13, 38:16, 39:12, 43:21, 80:7, 83:11, 90:14, 94:21, 96:1, 99:7, 112:1, 112:6 **Offer -** 11:5, 75:9 Offering - 41:11 Office - 14:12, 24:9, 88:22, 89:1 Officer - 16:18, 41:14, 41:23, 42:13, 44:18, 114:18 Officers - 42:7 Officials - 97:20, 97:21 Offset - 33:20 Offshore - 17:1, 17:10, 17:11, 20:2, 20:5, 20:23, 21:1, 21:22, 22:10, 22:14, 22:24, 27:24, 29:2, 35:11, 46:3, 49:12,

50:2, 61:17, 70:8, 73:1, 76:18, 81:14 Often - 81:5, 88:14 Oil - 34:22, 91:13, 94:16, 94:20, 94:23, 101:6, 101:18, 113:10, 113:13, 113:15 Once - 97:6, 115:13 Onecape - 14:20 Ones - 111:20 Online - 33:18, 42:19, 43:15, 83:19 Only - 26:12, 33:22, 35:23, 52:23, 55:16, 57:12, 66:1, 71:2, 76:20, 85:13, 89:7, 91:21, 93:21, 99:17, 101:11, 101:24, 105:7 Onshore - 17:2, 17:12, 17:13, 17:15, 24:19, 27:24, 29:8, 76:19 Open - 8:7, 14:18, 15:15, 24:9, 34:8, 48:9, 52:14, 53:2, 53:5, 53:9, 53:10, 56:21, 59:6, 86:2, 86:9, 86:13, 87:4, 87:15, 88:3, 88:7, 88:13, 96:7, 96:23, 97:17, 98:23, 99:16, 109:5, 109:24, 111:8, 112:12, 112:19, 114:12, 115:13 Opened - 29:10 Opening - 8:10, 15:1, 117:24, 118:1, 118:10 Operate - 65:5, 68:23, 84:10 Operating - 78:24 Operation - 17:5, 25:20, 34:20, 73:8 Operational - 82:11 Operations - 78:19, 79:11, 80:13, 82:9, 82:13 Opportunity - 8:11, 20:12, 98:2, 98:9, 98:20, 99:1, 99:14, 104:9, 104:11 Opposed - 12:19, 86:23, 114:5, 118:19

Opposition - 43:19

Option - 67:8, 84:13

Orally - 17:16 Order - 22:13, 49:8, 56:2, 72:13 Ordinance - 10:3, 11:14, 11:17 Ordinary - 65:7 **Organisms** - 63:13, Organizations - 39:23 Organizing - 11:7 Original - 22:4, 94:4, 110:24 Orleans - 6:18, 113:10, 116:14 Other - 18:9, 24:9, 25:12, 35:13, 36:11, 47:8, 47:20, 52:12, 56:4, 56:8, 58:20, 58:23, 59:5, 59:11, 59:17, 65:21, 66:3, 67:7, 68:7, 68:13, 68:15, 69:2, 69:14, 69:21, 70:15, 75:20, 77:24, 84:16, 86:24, 88:19, 99:17, 100:22, 107:12, 107:20, 109:6, 111:22, 112:5, 117:19, 118:11 Others - 30:10, 88:8, 92:20 Ourselves - 28:18, 104:19 Outer - 21:24 Outlet - 94:15 Outreach - 24:5, 109:3 Outside - 25:5, 29:3, 43:24, 45:18, 45:24, 93:9, 100:14 Outweigh - 40:11 Over - 19:2, 23:4, 24:20, 25:17, 29:12, 33:19, 43:16, 45:23, 47:18, 47:22, 54:22, 56:13, 62:20, 64:17, 67:19, 77:4, 77:12, 77:15, 79:17, 83:22, 84:2, 102:19, 109:7, 110:18, 111:14

Own - 44:18, 79:5, 110:22

Р

Panacea - 85:13 **Parallel -** 74:18 Parcel - 37:3, 37:4, 111:9, 111:11 Parcels - 111:17 Park - 17:3, 23:18, 23:21, 30:12, 30:21, 37:8, 45:21, 46:6, 49:16, 49:19, 51:12, 54:4 Parking - 28:17, 30:21, 65:2, 96:15 Parlance - 51:22 Part - 20:12, 26:19, 37:4, 39:1, 44:20, 46:23, 63:17, 70:21, 70:23, 76:6, 83:11, 85:8, 102:24 Participation - 42:23, 65:8 Particular - 55:2, 55:3, 56:4, 57:3, 85:7, 88:15, 98:16, 98:19, 107:23 Particularly - 88:1 **Partner - 27:12** Partners - 22:23, 49:21 Partnership - 24:24 Partnerships - 23:6, 23:23 Parts - 24:10, 27:23, 29:16, 49:10 **Party - 14:7** Pasakarnis - 42:24 Pass - 94:19 Passed - 12:24, 21:17, 22:7, 73:21, 117:18 Passes - 117:17 Past - 19:2, 23:5, 24:6, 43:16 Patch - 67:20 Path - 69:20, 71:23 **Patriot - 109:13** Patty - 13:18 Paved - 49:14, 50:15 **Payment - 52:23** Payments - 25:15, 53:6, 53:8, 55:18 Pays - 92:19

Overhead - 37:12

Overview - 21:13, 22:19

Peak - 25:5 **People -** 9:23, 43:9, 70:24, 79:3, 79:13, 79:16, 81:22, 105:6, 105:23, 105:24, 106:19, 106:22, 109:11, 109:18 Percent - 93:14, 93:18, 94:11 Perfect - 51:9 Perfectly - 33:15, 35:24 Performance - 38:6 Perhaps - 23:9, 80:17 Period - 15:14, 15:22, 60:9, 83:22 Periodically - 80:7 Permanent - 35:4 Permeable - 113:11 Permits - 22:11, 22:18, 31:13, 59:24 Permitting - 18:14, 20:20, 21:6, 30:23, 57:8, 58:10, 58:13, 63:15, 63:17, 75:9 Person - 118:6 Perspective - 36:8, 37:8, 98:6 Pertinent - 35:10 **Petition -** 9:21, 9:24, 10:1, 10:4, 10:9, 10:20, 11:12, 11:18, 11:22 Phase - 57:5 Phinneys - 30:1, 90:2, 112:10 **Physical -** 64:20, 76:15 **Pick -** 71:21 Picture - 21:8, 29:5 Piece - 32:11, 35:11, 38:20, 40:22, 73:3, 76:14, 103:13 Pilgrim - 83:11, 85:9 **Pipe -** 94:15 Pipes - 73:12, 112:18 Place - 33:11, 62:14, 92:7, 97:6, 102:19, 104:6, 108:19 Placed - 64:23, 67:19, 77:15 Places - 68:20 Placing - 77:12, 96:21 Plan - 9:24, 10:2, 11:1, 11:2, 15:19, 26:4, 32:16,

32:17, 32:22, 33:5, 33:7, 33:8, 33:9, 33:24, 35:10, 36:5, 38:7, 38:23, 45:11, 48:15, 51:23, 59:13, 59:16, 63:16, 66:16, 101:8, 110:11 Planned - 38:2, 57:12, 80:5 Planner - 13:20, 14:18 Planning - 9:1, 24:1, 32:19, 33:7, 36:8, 38:21, 118:2 Plans - 22:10, 29:22, 32:23, 35:12, 35:13, 36:13, 50:24, 57:10, 57:16, 57:17, 57:19, 57:22, 57:24, 58:23 Plant - 34:7 **Plants - 85:8** Plastic - 67:4, 67:17, 94:18 **Players -** 31:15 Pleased - 46:14 Pleasure - 32:11 **Plenty - 60:8** Plow - 28:3, 62:22, 65:19, 66:2, 72:2, 72:4, 72:16, 72:20, 72:21, 73:5, 73:16 **Plowing -** 69:21, 72:13 **Plus -** 79:17, 94:12, 114:14 Podium - 105:12, 105:16 Point - 45:15, 48:18, 51:5, 52:21, 53:14, 53:22, 85:9, 96:9, 96:17, 97:3, 97:9, 98:12, 101:5, 103:16 **Pointed -** 63:12 **Points -** 66:14 **Pole -** 92:3 Poles - 91:23 Police - 36:14 **Policies -** 19:21, 19:23 **Policy -** 9:24, 10:1, 11:1, 18:2, 21:16, 31:4, 32:16, 32:17, 32:22,

33:5, 33:6, 33:8, 33:9,

46:12, 48:15, 51:23,

33:24, 36:4, 38:7, 45:11,

59:13 **Pollution - 101:21** Pop - 89:19 Populates - 90:19 Port - 105:19 **Portion -** 17:5, 50:10 **Position -** 11:18, 118:7, 118:9 Positions - 14:17, 14:18, 14:19, 46:21 Positive - 38:9, 38:17, 48:23, 49:3, 51:10, 64:19 Possibility - 29:1 **Possible -** 65:22, 109:19 Possibly - 65:20 Post - 63:4, 110:23 **Posting - 109:16** Postings - 24:12 Potential - 12:7, 40:5, 49:3, 53:3, 56:14, 58:24, 71:16, 76:21, 92:21 Potentially - 59:16, 84:6 Power - 23:11, 27:10, 30:10, 30:17, 33:20, 83:1, 83:2, 83:12, 83:20, 84:14, 84:20, 85:16, 92:18 Powerpoint - 17:21, 44:5 **Powers -** 33:19 **POWICKI - 9:13, 9:17,** 10:17, 11:4, 11:9; 11:12 Practice - 76:24 Practices - 35:7, 36:10 **PRB -** 113:14 Prbs - 113:11 Pre - 65:23, 110:23 Precipitation - 94:9 Predecessor - 48:20 Predictive - 89:23 Preference - 78:9, 88:1 Preliminary - 70:11, 89:17 Premature - 99:22 Preparatory - 71:18 **Prepared - 41:16**, 41:18, 42:11, 44:14, 44:23 Prerogative - 25:23

Prescribed - 28:4 Prescriptive - 87:10 Present - 4:16, 4:19, 5:5, 5:16, 5:22, 6:2, 6:3, 6:5, 6:8, 6:11, 6:14, 6:17, 6:19, 7:6, 7:17, 8:2 Presentation - 17:19, 18:8, 21:11, 21:14, 41:11, 44:5, 49:22, 64:22, 67:2, 95:8 Presented - 98:24 Presents - 35:24 **Preserve -** 58:12 Pressing - 99:18 Pretty - 28:10, 43:7, 56:11, 62:12, 62:24, 63:20, 64:10, 66:24, 67:23, 68:11, 71:19, 92:20 **Prevent -** 92:22, 103:2 **Primarily - 34:18**, 54:14, 63:14, 72:8, 112:9 **Primary -** 93:2, 95:2 Principal - 62:6 Print - 24:12 Prior - 4:7, 100:7 Priorities - 80:15, 109:4 **Priority -** 79:21 Prized - 25:10 Probable - 45:13, 54:23, 54:24, 55:2, 55:3, 55:5, 55:6, 94:9 Probably - 54:21, 58:16, 61:16, 69:15, 75:7, 79:9, 103:23, 104:16 **Problem -** 36:2, 92:13 **Problems - 78:21** Procedural - 42:3 Procedures - 29:22, 92:7 Process - 15:20, 21:21, 22:1, 30:18, 30:23, 31:1, 31:4, 31:5, 31:10, 39:2, 43:18, 46:13, 47:2, 69:12, 69:13, 74:11, 75:12, 75:14, 89:2, 107:16, 107:17 **Processes - 107:20 Produce -** 78:14

Product - 102:18 **Products - 21:24.** 101:17, 101:19 **Program - 13:15 Programs -** 55:18, 55:22 **Progress - 15:24**, 27:23, 29:15 Projects - 19:10, 20:1, 20:18, 27:14, 41:17, 42:9, 55:23, 80:17, 82:18, 100:12, 100:13, Project's - 25:20, 27:21, 27:22. 40:15 Promise - 5:9 Proper - 20:1, 77:7, 92:9 **Properly -** 10:21, 66:17, 68:23, 92:16 Properties - 98:16, 99:7, 99:9, 112:1, 112:5 **Property - 25:16**, 37:5, 99:11 Proponent - 63:2 **Proposal -** 20:4, 46:18 **Propose - 33:21** Proposed - 17:9, 17:15, 37:3, 44:21, 52:19, 53:20, 54:17, 100:13 **Proposes - 54:13 Proposing - 21:8, 35:6** Prospects - 55:16 Protect - 26:17, 34:9, 37:20, 52:20, 58:13, 77:3, 77:11, 77:24, 104:13, 104:18 Protected - 33:13, 37:24, 66:17, 76:20 Protecting - 24:22, 111:19 Protection - 26:16, 26:21, 37:22, 51:15, 52:18, 52:21, 53:11, 53:13, 56:19, 56:22, 76:12, 77:16 Protections - 26:23 Protective - 35:7. 35:13, 108:13

Protects - 33:22

Proud - 104:23

Proves - 77:9 Provide - 26:5, 34:13, 36:17, 52:3, 53:2, 53:10, 54:7, 54:15, 55:23, 56:21, 80:19, 83:8, 83:19 Provided - 43:9, 43:10, 44:17, 46:13, 52:3, 52:9, 61:12, 79:14 Provides - 34:24, 77:15, 79:5 Providing - 13:11, 15:17, 24:22, 42:14, 52:5, 55:22 Provincetown - 6:20, 18:2, 116:16 Provision - 44:9, 67:21 Provisions - 41:17, 42:4 **Public -** 5:5, 8:8, 9:10, 9:12, 10:10, 10:12, 11:5, 11:20, 11:23, 12:3, 15:12, 15:13, 15:16, 15:21, 16:13, 16:16, 29:9, 39:3, 42:19, 43:8, 44:12, 44:15, 50:12, 60:9, 75:1, 97:14, 97:15, 97:18, 113:20, 114:10 Publicity - 98:13, 101:14 Publicized - 24:8 Pulled - 29:12, 68:6, 68:7, 96:24 **Pumping - 84:12** Purpose - 91:20, 95:3 Pursue - 19:24, 20:18, 31:12, 58:6 Push - 4:16 Push/Pull - 103:8 Putnam - 7:10, 7:11, 114:1, 114:22, 117:2, 117:3, 118:14 Puts - 112:2 **Putting -** 28:23, 40:8, 112:1 Puzzle - 21:2, 32:12

Q

Quality - 63:18 Question - 61:8, 61:10, 61:16, 62:10, 64:8,

66:12, 68:12, 79:2, 82:6, 86:20, 88:20, 89:3, 95:24, 96:2, 96:3, 100:3, 102:10, 103:11, 105:10, 106:6, 106:8, 107:21 Questions - 18:11, 21:11, 21:14, 32:6, 41:5, 60:15, 60:20, 66:9, 66:17, 66:21, 69:1, 69:2, 73:20, 74:16, 74:22, 75:18, 75:21, 75:23, 75:24, 85:24, 86:3, 88:19, 96:1, 97:12, 97:13, 105:10, 107:12, 110:3 Quick - 106:8, 107:24, 109:3, 112:23 Quickly - 26:7, 27:21, 30:22, 32:3, 38:5, 63:10, 64:7

R

Quorum - 8:3

Radiation - 107:8 **Radiator - 102:23** Rain - 93:21 Rainfall - 94:2, 94:10 Rainstorm - 93:20 Rainwater - 94:13, 94:19 Raised - 98:4, 113:6 Ran - 76:8 **Range -** 18:14 Ranging - 24:19, 68:17, 99:14 Rapid - 61:4 Ratepayer - 27:1 Ratepayers - 27:4, 36:22, 83:21 **Rather -** 78:5, 101:10 Reach - 24:11 **Reached - 102:20** Reaching - 28:20 Reactive - 91:17, 113:11 Read - 106:19, 114:15 Reading - 66:16, 87:24 Ready - 8:20 Reason - 63:24, 73:19, 75:17, 85:3 Reasonably - 113:16 Reasons - 4:13, 38:10,

48:18, 66:16, 88:6 Recall - 13:14 **Receipt - 10:20 Receive -** 25:16, 57:20 Received - 12:8, 22:15, 31:7, 31:10, 43:14, 43:16, 43:18, 106:10 Recent - 30:9, 117:24 Recently - 62:19, 62:24, Recognize - 13:12, 13:17, 20:12, 20:14, 42:22, 57:14, 105:1 Recognized - 56:10, 57:17, 65:18 Recognizes - 55:2, 103:19 Recognizing - 60:11 Recommend - 105:2 Recommendation - 42: 13, 45:2, 55:1, 55:4 Recommendations - 42 :16, 46:15 Recommended - 94:7, 114:18 Reconcile - 49:2, 51:10, 51:24, 52:12, 52:22 Reconciled - 51:18, 52:23 **Record -** 5:5, 16:10, 32:21, 41:1, 41:14, 64:3, 70:21, 70:22, 90:5, 98:23 Red - 8:19, 115:4 **Reduce - 20:5** Reduction - 55:14 Redundancy - 35:1 Refer - 41:6 Reference - 45:17 Referenced - 44:22, 55:19, 57:19, 58:24, 62:2 **Refine -** 70:17 **Refined - 91:13** Refinements - 21:7 Reflected - 49:6 **Refrain -** 47:6, 53:17 Regarding - 73:22 Region - 20:3, 20:24, 36:19, 39:21, 79:16,

81:2

Regional - 9:24, 10:1, 11:1, 15:19, 16:20, 19:8, 19:15, 19:23, 22:17, 24:4, 31:5, 31:12, 32:13, 32:16, 32:17, 32:22, 33:5, 33:8, 33:9, 33:24, 35:20, 36:4, 38:5, 38:7, 45:10, 51:23, 57:9, 62:13, 82:22, 82:24, 84:20, 85:3, 87:5, 99:19 Regionally - 31:24 Register - 4:18, 5:15 Registered - 5:1 Registration - 15:1 Regulation - 118:2 Regulations - 42:5, 42:6, 42:12, 42:16, 44:10, 45:9, 47:10, 60:5, 106:12 Regulators - 19:1, 19:18 Regulatory - 41:14, 41:16, 43:3 Rehabbing - 26:1 **Relate -** 35:16 Related - 42:9, 57:22, 58:21, 88:2, 103:13 Relates - 32:8, 101:18 Relationship - 58:15 Relationships - 24:2 **Relative - 44:4**, 45:13, 48:10, 48:11, 53:15, 54:23, 61:14 Relatively - 32:17, 51:3, 52:17, 53:23, 54:2, 54:3, 57:11, 72:3, 92:8 Released - 82:19 Reliability - 27:5, 82:24, 85:5, 85:12, 85:15 Reliable - 35:20, 85:14 Reliably - 68:23 Relocate - 71:22 Remember - 5:12, 83:14 Removal - 65:24 **Remove - 97:7** Renderings - 58:2 Renewable - 22:9, 33:17, 35:19, 55:17, 56:2 Repaving - 26:1, 67:22

Repeated - 77:8 Replace - 33:20, 66:19 Replacement - 65:24 Report - 13:1, 13:3, 15:24, 16:2, 31:11, 42:12, 42:15 Reports - 16:3, 16:4, 92:20 Representative - 7:19, 7:22, 8:22, 13:6, 16:11, 117:8, 117:11 Representatives - 9:19 Represents - 45:18 Request - 47:21, 110:21, 110:22 Require - 110:8 Required - 10:10, 11:24, 57:8, 59:10, 59:17, 60:3, 60:4, 88:14, 110:10 Requirement - 60:7, 67:12 Requirements - 113:5 Requiring - 58:5 Research - 39:18 Resemble - 29:9 Resident - 18:3, 105:24 Residential - 53:21. 54:1, 111:16, 112:11 Resiliency - 27:11, 27:14, 35:16, 35:22, 36:1, 48:8, 56:3 Resolved - 74:22 Resort - 14:22 **Resource - 20:23**, 25:10, 84:11 Resources - 22:9, 22:22, 33:23, 34:6, 34:7, 34:9, 34:10, 36:20, 36:21, 37:24, 38:14, 38:15, 46:22, 48:9, 50:8, 50:17, 50:18, 59:5, 80:24, 83:15, 84:8, 89:6, 89:16, 90:24 **Respect -** 11:22, 101:5 Respectful - 102:3 Respectfully - 99:3 Respond - 10:16, 11:9, 90:7

Response - 52:2, 52:3,

54:1, 104:19, 109:16

Responsible - 63:3, 71:12 Responsibly - 21:22 Responsive - 113:6 Restore - 61:20, 64:1, 72:18 Restored - 63:10, 63:23, 67:20 Restores - 64:7 Restrict - 87:15 Restricted - 86:21 Restriction - 53:6, 53:9, 87:8, 88:3, 111:8, 111:9 Restrictions - 25:1, 25:4, 29:19, 99:10, 111:19, 112:2 Result - 23:24, 26:12, 27:3, 28:7, 101:13 Resulted - 100:9 Retention - 95:3 Retirees - 14:8 Retirement - 13:14, 14:7, 14:9, 14:11 Retiring - 13:13 Retroactively - 103:24 Retrofit - 103:24 Revealed - 59:15 Revenue - 26:9, 36:24 Revenues - 25:16 Review - 16:5, 16:21, 20:1, 22:17, 31:3, 42:10, 42:21, 43:20, 44:2, 44:4, 46:11, 47:9, 49:1, 50:5, 51:7, 60:5, 62:12, 70:24, 74:11, 74:18, 74:24, 75:2, 75:5, 75:12, 89:17, 93:9, 101:15 Reviewed - 51:3 Reviewing - 46:10, 50:1, 88:24 Reviews - 47:18, 47:19, 68:13 Richard - 6:4, 6:5 Rights - 17:14, 50:12 Rise - 60:24, 61:3, 61:4, 61:5, 64:9, 65:7, 65:13 Risk - 52:4, 103:19, 103:20, 104:13 **Risks - 105:1** Road - 20:8, 30:1, 39:12, 50:12, 66:18,

90:15, 90:16, 106:2, 112:10 **Roads -** 29:10, 67:19 **Road's -** 112:12, 112:18 Roadway - 40:7, 51:1, 66:21, 89:9, 89:12 Roadways - 49:15, 50:20, 67:1 Robust - 36:9, 65:11, 84:9, 92:10, 95:7 **Rock -** 78:5, 78:9 **Rocks - 77:12 Rocky - 77:7** Roger - 7:9, 7:11, 114:1, 114:22, 117:1, 117:3, 118:14 **Roll** - 4:13, 4:14, 5:10, 5:12, 5:20, 115:7, 115:11, 115:16 **Rolls -** 99:7, 112:1 **Ron -** 7:16 Room - 112:21 Rooney - 13:19 Rotating - 78:24 Roughly - 23:10, 55:11, 62:19, 64:23, 67:4, 68:2, 70:7, 70:18, 82:12, 96:17 **Round -** 89:22, 97:13 Route - 29:24, 46:16, 70:7, 70:10, 70:19, 71:5, 71:15, 106:16, 107:18, 109:11, 112:8, 112:15 Routes - 46:18, 70:17, 112:16 Routing - 28:7 **Roy -** 6:4, 6:5 RPP - 47:23, 47:24, 48:15, 48:20, 48:21, 49:4, 51:8, 61:14 Run - 23:14, 23:17, 72:16, 73:11, 76:6 **Running -** 15:4, 55:20 **Runs - 30:6** Ruptures - 92:5

66:19, 67:10, 67:22,

S

Samples - 63:20, 71:4 **Sand -** 72:8, 72:12, 72:15, 72:22, 96:6

Sandwich - 7:4, 116:19 Save - 14:23 **Savings -** 27:4, 36:22 Saw - 49:20, 49:21, 96:13 **Say -** 4:15, 8:22, 12:16, 20:16, 33:14, 39:14, 40:22, 58:8, 59:20, 61:5, 85:23, 88:22, 89:7, 90:17, 95:1, 103:7, 104:5, 107:7, 111:9, 117:16, 118:7 Saying - 86:22 **Scale -** 33:18 **Scan -** 71:8 Scenario - 61:4, 110:11 Schedule - 40:15 Scheduled - 75:1 Schematic - 30:16 **School - 81:5** Scientific - 39:17, 39:23 **Scope - 57:14** Scott - 13:22, 42:24 Sea - 28:5, 28:8, 60:24, 61:2, 61:4, 61:5, 64:9, 65:7, 65:13, 72:11, 72:18, 76:8, 77:2, 96:20, 108:10 **Seabed -** 62:23, 63:9 Seafloor - 97:4 Seal - 94:21 Search - 98:9 **Season -** 25:6 Seasonal - 24:24, 29:19 Second - 12:14, 12:16, 14:21, 18:8, 61:16, 86:20, 95:4, 106:1, 114:1, 114:2, 114:24, 115:1, 118:15, 118:17 **Secondary - 34:16.** 34:24, 93:2 Secondly - 63:9 **Section -** 55:9, 88:24 **Sections -** 67:10 **Sector -** 55:17 Sediment - 70:14, 71:6, 72:13, 72:17, 97:6, 97:8, 97:9 Sediments - 72:2, 72:6, 77:6 See - 6:23, 28:12, 29:5,

29:24, 30:15, 30:20, 46:15, 46:24, 47:1, 49:5, 50:15, 51:16, 53:4, 53:22, 54:16, 55:19, 60:9, 71:17, 75:13, 78:5, 88:11, 91:24, 94:6, 101:12, 111:7, 112:18, 114:14, 118:20 Seed - 55:23 Seeing - 12:2, 97:20, 117:21, 118:12 Seek - 22:17 Seen - 57:4 Selected - 22:13 Selectmen - 9:2 Selectmen's - 104:8 **Sell -** 22:13 **Selling - 101:5 SENATORI -** 10:18, 13:4, 13:9, 14:3 **Send -** 118:5 Senior - 13:21 Sense - 52:17, 100:21, 100:22 Sensitive - 36:8 Sent - 106:12 Sentence - 11:16 **Separate - 49:10** Separator - 94:23 **Series -** 94:17 Seriously - 75:4, 75:6, 75:10, 95:11 **Serve -** 17:8 Served - 8:24, 41:23, 85:8 **Serves -** 68:14, 91:19, 95:4 Service - 14:1, 14:4, 51:12, 52:15, 53:12, 53:18, 74:9 Services - 80:6 Session - 11:5 **Set -** 14:24, 25:12, 45:8, 77:1, 80:15, 81:9, 102:11, 114:20 **Setting -** 28:18, 100:15 **Settle - 28:7** Seven - 73:4 Several - 13:12, 14:17, 19:2, 23:5, 52:19, 53:24,

74:10, 91:16, 109:19

Severe - 78:21 **Sewering - 112:17 Shallow -** 65:22, 96:16 **Share -** 21:4, 88:8 **Shared -** 14:24, 19:15 **Sharon - 13:19** Sharper - 78:8 **Sheet - 105:7** Shelf - 21:24 Shellfish - 64:2 **Shelters** - 27:16 Shielded - 108:5 **Shore -** 26:13, 28:17, 29:1, 30:17, 50:2, 96:19 Shoreline - 28:21 **Shores - 23:1 Short -** 6:18, 6:19, 63:12, 77:10, 83:22, 84:5, 96:3, 96:11, 97:10, 107:15, 110:16, 113:9, 115:1, 116:14, 116:15 **Shortly - 31:9 Should -** 15:6, 15:7, 66:15, 88:4 Shouldn't - 95:1 **Show -** 16:10, 21:5, 63:7, 63:21 **Showed -** 96:4, 96:5 **Shown -** 117:16 Shows - 64:4 **Shut -** 78:22, 95:15 **Side -** 23:2, 23:3, 29:1, 30:8, 54:5, 54:10, 54:12, 58:8, 102:23 **Sides -** 102:22 **Sign -** 78:20, 103:22, 105:6 **Signatures -** 9:22, 10:6 Significant - 10:24, 27:1, 27:9, 35:18, 36:22, 36:24, 39:9, 43:4, 48:19, 53:15, 54:19, 65:13, 85:10, 89:7, 111:10, 111:14 Significantly - 80:2, 112:11 Similar - 62:16, 62:17, 68:16, 77:15, 107:16, 108:16 Simple - 96:14 **Simply -** 69:21, 100:1

Since - 53:1, 88:1, 98:3 Single - 29:17, 70:12, 111:9 Sinks - 97:8 Site - 21:22, 34:15, 34:20, 34:21, 37:21, 53:20, 95:2, 101:23, 103:3, 103:4 Sited - 37:9, 50:14, 50:20, 52:17 Sites - 89:22, 98:9, 98:10, 98:14 **Siting -** 31:7, 36:7, 37:8, 39:2, 39:3, 40:20, 42:1, 42:10 **Situation -** 61:6, 64:6, 102:16, 103:8 **Six -** 33:1, 68:8, 97:5 **Size -** 77:13 Sized - 93:14, 94:11 Skill - 81:9 Skills - 81:14 **Sleeve - 97:3 Sleeves -** 67:17, 68:9 **Slide -** 39:7, 39:8 Slides - 33:2 Slightly - 17:24 Slow - 92:14 Small - 25:14, 91:14, 92:8, 108:15 **Smaller - 91:22 Smoothly -** 78:23 Snagged - 78:7 **Snap -** 83:13 **Soft -** 72:3 Soil - 67:18, 108:5 **Sole -** 25:8 Solid - 95:12 **Solutions - 21:17**, 55:12 **Solving - 21:3** Somebody - 92:3 **Someone -** 73:23, 112:5 Something - 18:21, 51:20, 64:9, 64:16, 65:6, 68:14, 68:16, 73:7, 76:11, 78:3, 88:12, 92:14, 92:17, 94:6, 94:16, 101:1, 101:13, 102:6, 104:11, 107:23, 108:11

Sometime - 16:7 Sometimes - 57:2, 89:10, 92:5 Somewhat - 68:2 Soon - 11:8, 59:24 Sort - 24:17, 27:22, 31:19, 33:6, 54:19, 55:15, 70:12, 74:18, 76:9, 78:8, 80:14, 83:16 Sound - 23:15, 62:16, 70:9 **Source -** 25:8, 34:14, 35:19, 36:18, 36:24, 85:10, 104:10, 111:1 Sources - 56:5, 84:20, 84:21 South - 23:12, 26:13, 30:8, 37:10, 81:11, 95:2 Southeast - 110:21 Southeastern - 20:24, 26:11, 80:20, 81:22, 85:6 **Southern - 20:24 Southwest - 110:20** Space - 34:8, 48:9, 52:14, 53:3, 53:5, 53:9, 53:10, 56:21, 59:7, 86:2, 86:9, 86:13, 87:4, 87:15, 88:3, 88:7, 88:14, 111:8, 111:15, 111:16 Spacing - 68:1 **Spares - 68:10** Speak - 4:10, 73:24, 74:24, 78:17, 97:22, 99:20, 105:7, 107:3, 109:24, 110:17 Speaking - 9:18 Speaks - 55:10 Special - 42:3, 43:2, 44:9, 94:18 Specialized - 81:12 Species - 31:16, 35:5 Specific - 57:18, 63:20, 73:9, 86:17, 87:3, 108:17 Specifically - 37:2, 39:21, 80:12, 88:2 **Specifics -** 20:4, 32:8 Spent - 10:24, 51:6, 53:15, 100:17, 104:20 Spill - 35:12, 92:1,

101:20 Spinning - 23:1 **Splice -** 68:1, 97:1 **Spliced - 68:8** Spoke - 43:10, 43:12, 55:21 **Spoken - 59:8 Spot -** 77:22 **Spraying - 102:18** Spring - 40:18, 82:19 Stabilization - 25:22, 34:14, 52:9 Stable - 64:14, 72:11, 72:13, 72:17, 77:2 Staff - 13:13, 13:16, 14:12, 18:5, 19:2, 24:20, 32:4, 40:23, 41:10, 42:11, 44:22, 46:10, 46:13, 46:14, 46:24, 49:23, 51:3, 51:6, 53:15, 54:19, 62:1 Staff's - 44:17, 46:11, 46:20, 49:17 Stages - 109:12 Stakeholder - 21:20 Stakeholders - 19:17 Standard - 25:12, 38:2, 93:23, 100:11, 101:2, 101:19, 104:2, 108:13, 108:15 Standards - 25:7, 25:11, 32:12, 32:14, 32:15, 34:17, 36:1, 45:8, 47:8, 54:20, 60:5, 95:9, 100:15, 100:18, 101:16, 102:12, 104:2 Standing - 13:18 Start - 5:12, 9:12, 17:19, 18:12, 33:3, 34:5, 60:19, 62:10, 66:24, 70:16, 76:13, 97:19 Started - 31:20, 70:10 **Starts -** 96:15 State - 18:15, 19:22, 21:16, 22:11, 22:16, 27:19, 31:3, 39:2, 41:15, 49:21, 50:3, 50:6, 57:9, 58:22, 59:3, 62:13,

63:15, 63:17, 63:21,

97:19, 101:2, 102:11,

70:23, 77:17, 85:9,

105:16 Stated - 33:5, 36:4 Statement - 33:6, 41:18, 89:4, 89:15, 90:5 Statements - 110:3 States - 55:24 State's - 42:1, 90:20 Statewide - 32:1 Stating - 90:5 Station - 30:16, 52:16, 103:15 **Stay -** 5:8, 15:5, 115:13 **Stays -** 94:22, 95:19 Stead - 20:18 Steady - 8:5 Steel - 93:11 Stenographer - 115:8 Step - 30:17, 33:3, 100:3 Stephen - 5:21, 5:22, 5:24, 8:12, 8:14, 8:21, 12:21, 13:5, 13:8, 114:7, 115:20, 115:22 **Stepped - 118:8 Steve -** 43:1 Stiff - 77:6 Stiffer - 72:6 Stipulated - 109:9 Stones - 77:13 **Storage - 27:15**, 27:16, 55:23 **Store -** 56:3 Storm - 65:8, 76:12, 83:11, 93:24, 94:3 Storms - 76:20 Stormwater - 95:3 Stoughton - 68:20 Straightforward - 56:11 Strategy - 15:12 Strawberry - 30:1, 106:2, 112:9 Streams - 39:22 **Street -** 27:7, 68:5, 70:5, 91:24, 108:17 **Streets -** 65:4, 68:19 Stretch - 49:14, 50:19, Stretches - 51:1, 77:10 **Strong -** 19:3, 52:1, 52:2, 56:18, 59:3 Struggle - 19:9

Studies - 89:11, 92:18 Study - 27:2, 52:10, 82:19, 108:1 **Stymie -** 109:23 Subject - 41:24, 42:3, 42:9, 45:5, 60:2, 62:11, 92:17, 98:3, 98:13, 99:21, 102:15, 107:22, 108:22, 113:2, 114:20 **Submarine - 96:22**, 108:7 **Submitted -** 9:21, 10:3, 10:5, 10:9, 15:24, 17:18, 22:10, 26:9, 44:15, 70:21, 70:23 Suboptimal - 17:24 Subsequent - 80:17, 102:10 Substantial - 25:15, 32:21, 36:17, 54:2, 54:3, 79:20 Substantially - 61:3 Substantive - 42:8, 61:10, 61:24 Substation - 17:3, 17:15, 23:17, 23:20, 23:22, 28:1, 30:12, 30:20, 37:2, 37:10, 49:15, 49:19, 51:9, 52:13, 52:16, 53:16, 53:18, 53:20, 54:5, 54:11, 54:13, 54:16, 54:17, 56:15, 56:20, 57:23, 58:1, 58:2, 59:10, 91:14, 103:21, 103:24 Substations - 51:19, 91:22, 92:9 Succession - 29:17 **Suffer - 58:16 Suffice -** 17:23, 84:15 **Sufficient - 28:24**, 77:3 Sufficiently - 65:11 Suggest - 99:3 Suggested - 55:8 Suggesting - 56:11 Suggestion - 102:19 **Suitable - 37:17 Suite -** 35:6, 36:9 **Summer - 25:2, 29:20** Summit - 14:20 **Sump -** 92:15, 93:13,

93:22, 95:20 Supplement - 93:2 Supplemental - 25:14 **Supplies - 87:19 Supply -** 52:11 **Support -** 25:18, 26:19, 33:10, 80:6, 80:24, 105:3 Supportive - 104:17 **Supposed -** 69:18 **Surface - 76:5** Surprised - 118:13 Surprises - 49:18 Survey - 28:8, 70:16 Surveyed - 70:18, 77:21 Surveying - 70:10 **Surveys -** 70:12, 70:13, 71:10 Susceptibility - 58:16 Suspenders - 94:8 Sustainable - 33:12 Swath - 71:14, 77:13 Swell - 94:21 Swimming - 29:4 Switching - 30:16, Synthesize - 32:24 System - 4:11, 4:24, 26:22, 34:17, 34:18, 34:24, 38:2, 94:14, 95:18 **Systems -** 34:3, 34:4, 34:6, 35:15, 36:11, 36:12, 36:15

Т

Table - 21:21
Take - 4:9, 8:10, 8:17, 12:10, 58:8, 60:14, 71:7, 71:8, 98:11, 113:19, 115:7, 115:11, 117:23, 118:13
Taken - 9:7, 46:17, 71:4, 75:4, 75:6
Taking - 5:4, 19:11, 20:7, 33:3, 44:8, 88:4, 95:11, 99:7, 111:24
Talent - 22:21, 80:16, 81:18, 81:23
Talents - 84:16
Talked - 30:13

Talking - 23:23, 74:1 **Tap -** 84:15 **Target -** 77:1, 77:23 Task - 19:15 Tax - 25:16, 99:7, 112:1 **TAYLOR -** 5:17, 5:21, 5:23, 6:1, 6:2, 6:4, 6:6, 6:9, 6:12, 6:15, 6:18, 6:20, 7:4, 7:7, 7:9, 7:12, 7:15, 7:18, 7:21, 7:24, 8:3, 75:22, 76:3, 78:10, 79:1, 82:2, 116:1, 116:2 **Team -** 41:5, 41:19, 41:20, 62:8, 71:12, 74:17 Technical - 8:23, 18:20, 23:2, 48:2, 50:4, 59:13, 61:13, 81:9, 83:8, 86:9 Technique - 28:5, 71:21, 72:4, 72:24, 73:5, 78:2 Techniques - 62:17, 71:7 Technology - 28:9, 62:22, 68:16 **Ted -** 62:5 **Tell -** 4:18, 107:10, 108:21 Telling - 51:16, 57:2 Temporarily - 97:7 **Temporary - 40:3**, 40:5, 50:22, 67:20, 72:15 **Tens -** 83:22, 84:4 **Tentative - 31:7, 102:20** Tenth - 105:20 **Term -** 63:12, 80:4, 82:11, 90:12 Terminate - 45:21 Terminates - 65:1 Termination - 66:14 Terminus - 17:3 Terms - 32:1, 34:23, 38:24, 39:15, 40:1, 46:2, 47:9, 47:11, 47:23, 51:5, 51:7, 52:13, 54:20, 56:9, 80:15, 88:6, 91:11, 99:3, 99:13, 99:22, 100:15, 106:9, 106:14, 109:8 Test - 48:22 Tested - 89:13

Testify - 17:16

Testimony - 41:20, 43:9, 43:11, 44:16 **Testing -** 63:20 Thanks - 13:10, 107:13 **Thearle -** 105:8, 105:9, 105:13, 105:18, 105:19, 106:7, 106:17, 107:4, 107:13, 108:23 Then - 15:23, 23:4, 27:17, 29:12, 30:2, 30:18, 30:19, 31:2, 31:5, 31:6, 46:7, 47:14, 49:15, 54:7, 55:18, 56:6, 57:6, 61:10, 61:24, 65:3, 67:18, 67:21, 68:6, 70:17, 72:16, 72:18, 77:10, 79:16, 93:18, 94:23, 96:1, 96:7, 96:21, 96:23, 97:1, 97:4, 97:7, 109:11, 114:13, 117:22, 118:11 **THEODORE - 62:4**, 65:16, 66:23, 69:6, 69:9, 69:23, 70:3, 73:24, 74:4, 74:7, 74:14, 75:19, 76:2, 76:13, 78:16, 79:8, 85:2, 85:19, 91:10, 93:4, 95:17, 95:22, 96:11, 107:15 Thereabouts - 64:18 There's - 4:21, 10:11, 13:14, 22:21, 22:24, 23:3, 29:21, 30:10, 35:1, 35:4, 36:19, 38:1, 38:12, 45:19, 47:10, 48:12, 49:24, 52:18, 57:7, 64:3, 67:8, 67:11, 67:18, 68:4, 68:8, 68:21, 75:11, 80:14, 86:3, 88:13, 89:7, 89:12, 89:18, 91:10, 92:2, 92:23, 93:13, 94:14, 97:1, 99:5, 103:3, 106:24, 107:8, 107:19, 110:9 **These -** 12:6, 20:18, 29:16, 34:9, 34:10, 35:15, 38:10, 38:14, 38:15, 39:19, 39:22, 40:14, 42:6, 42:8, 43:13, 44:10, 50:2, 50:6, 52:1,

58:17, 63:4, 64:4, 66:3, 66:14, 66:17, 69:14, 69:21, 77:13, 80:24, 90:18, 98:18, 100:13, 101:3, 101:4, 104:1, 105:1 They'll - 50:22, 110:19 They're - 16:6, 43:23, 56:16, 57:17, 67:5, 68:8, 68:10, 72:3, 74:9, 75:6, 75:8, 87:16, 87:17, 110:8, 110:17, 112:4 They've - 41:2, 52:7 Thick - 77:14 Thing - 64:19, 78:19, 103:1, 109:3, 109:17, 111:22 Things - 26:21, 40:4, 40:8, 48:7, 55:10, 57:23, 58:11, 63:14, 90:18, 103:21 Thinking - 40:1, 85:6 Third - 20:8 **Thorough -** 101:15 Thought - 46:9, 62:1, 95:9, 103:6, 112:7 Thousand - 29:3, 96:17, 96:19 Thousands - 84:5 **Threads** - 31:3 Three - 27:23, 30:10, 34:3, 49:10, 67:12, 70:11, 102:21, 105:6, 110:19 **Throttle - 40:21** Through - 5:9, 19:22, 21:6, 21:12, 22:5, 23:14, 26:7, 26:16, 29:12, 31:9, 34:11, 38:8, 39:1, 40:17, 46:19, 46:20, 46:21, 47:2, 50:23, 52:6, 52:23, 52:24, 53:3, 53:6, 56:22, 56:24, 57:5, 58:13, 64:21, 65:4, 70:8, 72:7, 72:12, 72:16, 72:22, 87:8, 94:19, 96:6, 96:24 Throughout - 25:19, 30:4, 49:17, 89:1, 91:15 Thunderstorm - 94:1 Thursdays - 118:3 Thus - 42:2

56:12, 56:16, 57:16,

Tide - 28:20 Tim - 42:24 Time - 4:16, 4:20, 4:22, 5:12, 5:13, 8:7, 9:11, 10:24, 12:3, 16:4, 16:15, 17:18, 25:4, 41:3, 41:10, 53:15, 60:9, 60:12, 60:19, 82:12, 83:23, 84:5, 84:11, 88:13, 88:23, 94:13, 97:17, 99:1, 100:18, 105:6, 105:24, 110:1, 110:2, 112:13, 112:19, 113:19, 114:11, 117:21, 118:20 Timeframe - 15:22 **Timeline -** 31:20 Timely - 11:19 **Times -** 29:18, 37:5, 106:20, 109:13 Today - 4:13, 9:18, 10:11, 16:8, 41:21, 42:15, 44:8, 47:6, 56:13, 60:15, 89:3, 98:5, 100:23, 102:14, 102:19, 112:8 Together - 74:23, 97:4 **Told -** 77:17, 113:14 Tom - 6:2, 6:3, 12:14, 91:3, 91:4, 93:1, 95:13, 95:21, 113:9, 113:17, 116:3, 116:4 **Tomorrow** - 103:23 Tons - 20:6, 33:20, 39:11, 84:5 **Took -** 83:11 **Top -** 64:10, 70:1, 93:18, 94:13 Topography - 63:10 Torrential - 93:20 Total - 68:9 Touch - 10:19, 10:22, 36:6, 80:12, 109:18 **Touched - 36:6 Touches - 36:5** Towards - 15:2, 25:22, 39:20, 39:22, 52:4, 59:4, 87:18 Towns - 68:15, 99:18, 109:6 Town's - 24:22, 25:23,

98:6, 100:4, 103:18,

110:21 Track - 64:3, 110:10 **Tractor -** 65:23 **Trade -** 8:24, 38:13, 38:16, 51:13, 52:15, 53:12, 53:19 Traditional - 24:11, 29:9 Traffic - 29:19, 29:21, 36:13, 40:5, 58:22 **Trails -** 28:14 **Train -** 79:7, 79:15 **Training -** 36:18, 39:17, 62:6, 81:12 Transcript - 44:9, 44:11 Transcriptionist - 44:8 Transferred - 78:15 Transferring - 81:13 Transformer - 91:17, 91:20, 92:4, 93:10, 93:16, 93:17, 102:17, 102:24 Transformers - 91:22, 92:22 Transition - 28:16 **Transitioning -** 70:4 Translates - 101:21 Transmission - 28:1. 83:1, 85:4, 85:14 Transparency - 88:21 Transportation - 13:21, 15:19, 35:17, 36:12, 50:22, 50:24, 58:23 Traverses - 46:5 Treatment - 112:17 **Tree -** 53:11 Tremendous - 103:20 Trench - 28:6, 29:10, 62:23, 65:22, 66:20, 67:13, 67:16 Trenching - 61:17, 61:21, 65:20, 65:23 True - 61:7, 85:3, 90:16 Truro - 7:7, 116:22 Trust - 87:5 Trying - 101:15 Tune - 34:15, 64:16 Tuned - 15:5 Tupper - 43:1 Turbine - 76:6, 78:19,

91:6

Turbines - 23:1, 23:20,

78:14, 79:4 **Turn -** 70:16, 94:24 Two - 4:13, 21:6, 22:4, 29:6, 31:3, 48:4, 48:5, 60:22, 62:8, 67:5, 67:9, 67:10, 67:11, 67:13, 68:10, 76:17, 85:7, 86:3, 86:13, 105:10, 108:9, 111:6 **Twofold -** 80:15 **Types -** 101:3, 101:16 Typical - 31:15, 68:11, 108:7 **Typically -** 67:5, 67:9, 68:4, 77:12, 93:22 U Ultimately - 28:17, 28:19, 30:3, 45:21,

52:10, 55:5, 59:10

Unavailability - 111:15

Unbeknown - 89:10,

Under - 10:3, 17:14,

22:12, 40:16, 41:21,

42:4, 42:15, 47:12,

49:14, 50:15, 50:20,

58:6, 59:12, 60:4, 61:4,

65:2, 68:5, 70:5, 87:13,

Umass - 82:17

90:3

88:24, 108:17, 113:1 Undergoing - 24:6 Underground - 23:19, 68:11, 96:9 Underneath - 50:12 Understand - 73:18 Understanding - 82:23, 84:19, 102:21, 104:18, 113:12 Undertaken - 33:8 Undertaking - 54:19 Underwater - 78:12, 108:2 Undeveloped - 86:12 Unfortunately - 10:20, 83:14 **Uniform -** 72:3 Unique - 21:2, 40:24, 41:16, 47:10, 88:10, 91:5, 91:11, 92:23

Universities - 81:21

Unless - 98:21, 101:7 Unlimited - 84:14 Unrestricted - 25:18 Until - 78:22 **Unusual -** 58:9, 65:8 Upcoming - 9:8 **Update - 10:12, 11:1,** 15:11, 15:23 **Updated -** 15:20, 57:21, 66:10, 94:2 **Updates - 13:11 Upper -** 28:4, 29:13 **Upstream -** 101:23 **Use -** 4:20, 42:7, 51:20, 53:23, 54:1, 56:4, 66:4, 68:17, 72:24, 73:5, 73:12, 77:10, 77:20, 78:2, 78:5, 78:9, 79:16, 87:13, 94:9, 109:21, 112:16 Used - 28:16, 34:19, 52:10, 65:21, 70:16, 71:7, 71:11, 73:8, 87:16, 91:5, 91:7, 91:13, 91:16, 91:21, 102:12, 113:13 **User - 15:6 Uses -** 37:16, 64:22, 90:12 Using - 4:12, 62:17, 62:21, 72:1, 77:24, 79:2 **Usually -** 103:1, 118:2 **Utilities -** 39:4, 67:7, 92:6, 112:14 Utility - 37:12, 53:20, 54:7, 68:12 **Utilize - 98:7** Utilizes - 27:8

1

Value - 86:4, 86:6,

86:12, 88:1 Variant - 72:19 Variation - 67:9 Various - 18:9, 29:13, 29:14, 46:22, 55:18, 101:9 Vary - 67:8, 68:2 Vast - 71:24, 73:15 Vault - 65:1, 68:5, 68:8, 97:1 Vaults - 68:1

Venue - 18:13 Venues - 18:15, 18:18 Verbatim - 44:8 **Version -** 72:21, 101:17 Versions - 48:21 Versus - 38:22, 39:6, 48:20, 54:23 Vessel - 28:13, 93:11, 93:12 Via - 63:14 Vibracore - 71:4 Vibrant - 33:11 **Vibration** - 78:12, 78:13, 78:21 Vibrations - 78:14, 78:18 Vicinity - 108:11 View - 88:9 Viewed - 30:21 Vinevard - 4:22, 16:13, 16:16, 16:22, 16:23, 17:6, 17:9, 18:1, 19:16, 19:21, 22:3, 22:12, 24:18, 25:13, 30:11, 34:13, 38:3, 41:19, 62:8, 62:20, 63:6, 79:12, 80:5, 80:13, 80:21, 84:6, 88:23, 98:22, 99:13, 100:6, 101:6, 102:2, 102:21, 104:2, 104:24, 110:16, 113:20, 114:19 Virgilio - 6:16, 6:17, 65:18, 69:3, 69:7, 69:11, 69:24, 73:17, 74:3, 74:6, 74:13, 75:15, 116:12, 116:13 Virtually - 28:24 Vision - 33:10, 33:15 Visual - 17:24, 54:9, 54:14, 54:15 Voltages - 68:17 Volume - 92:8, 93:15 Voluntarily - 103:22 Vote - 5:6, 87:23, 100:2, 114:12, 115:4, 115:5, 115:9, 115:11, 115:14, 115:16 Voted - 8:6, 115:12, 115:13

Votes - 115:3, 117:14

Voting - 4:12, 115:3,

118:9

W Walls - 102:22, 103:5 Want - 14:3, 31:19, 33:3, 40:22, 41:15, 42:21, 43:1, 44:3, 45:15, 48:17, 56:24, 60:6, 76:16, 77:21, 78:17, 88:21, 98:22, 99:4, 99:20, 105:11, 109:23, 115:15 Wanted - 13:12, 13:17, 13:24, 14:13, 15:10, 30:22, 73:17, 90:5, 94:6, 98:5, 98:17, 105:14, 107:9 **Wants -** 99:12 Warming - 21:17, 36:3, 55:12 Waste - 35:17, 48:6 Wastewater - 112:16 Water - 25:22, 34:6, 34:14, 52:8, 52:11, 63:17, 64:24, 65:23, 71:3, 87:18, 93:21, 94:21, 94:23, 96:7, 101:10, 101:22, 104:10, 106:23, 107:6, 110:14 Waters - 17:12, 46:4, 62:16, 64:4, 75:17 Wave - 72:12, 72:15 Waves - 72:8, 72:22 Ways - 11:15, 50:6, 65:22 Website - 15:3, 15:7, 15:15, 45:1, 47:7 We'd - 41:6, 64:20, 71:23, 110:22 Weeden - 7:22, 7:23, 88:20, 90:21, 91:1, 110:5, 111:2, 117:11, 117:12 Week - 10:8, 14:9 Weeks - 16:7, 63:11 Weigh - 99:2, 99:12 Weighing - 32:19, 40:2 Weight - 44:3 **WEILGUS - 115:6**

Welcome - 4:3, 5:23,

8:11, 8:13, 9:7, 13:5,

13:7, 14:15, 17:17, 65:16, 75:19 We'll - 4:20, 5:9, 5:12, 9:12, 12:5, 13:2, 14:9, 14:21, 16:4, 26:6, 41:10, 60:19, 66:24, 67:1, 77:10, 97:12, 97:19, 115:12, 117:23, 118:20 Wellfleet - 7:9, 102:16, 117:1 Wellhead - 37:22, 51:15, 52:18, 52:20, 53:13, 56:19, 98:10 Wellheads - 111:20 Wells - 95:15, 101:10, 101:24, 102:1, 110:9, 110:13, 110:18, 110:19 Went - 64:21, 77:4, 81:4, 109:13 Weguaguet - 30:1 Wequasset - 89:24 Weguassett - 14:22 We're - 4:12, 4:23, 5:7, 13:11, 16:15, 18:12, 18:13, 19:11, 20:10, 21:8, 21:9, 21:15, 22:20, 25:8, 26:2, 40:9, 40:16, 40:19, 40:20, 63:18, 68:22, 70:3, 70:6, 71:24, 81:18, 90:15, 96:1, 98:12, 98:14, 99:16, 100:20, 103:9, 112:16, 113:14 Weren't - 50:18 **West -** 81:6, 105:19 Wet - 65:5 Wetland - 34:7, 35:4 **Wetlands -** 48:8, 50:18 We've - 10:22, 16:10, 19:3, 20:20, 24:6, 25:10, 26:9, 26:24, 27:10, 30:13, 30:24, 31:7, 31:9, 32:3, 32:5, 40:19, 59:8, 63:14, 67:24, 71:2, 71:4, 71:7, 71:9, 71:21, 72:19, 73:5, 73:14, 80:11, 81:15, 100:5, 102:7, 102:20, 103:6, 104:19, 105:6, 109:6 Whale - 26:18, 26:20

What - 4:14, 21:1, 21:8,

22:15, 29:7, 30:3, 42:14, 46:1, 49:4, 51:6, 61:6, 61:8, 61:18, 61:19, 66:12, 69:19, 71:6, 71:8, 75:12, 77:17, 83:9, 87:24, 90:19, 99:10, 100:23, 102:15, 103:19, 104:9, 104:13, 106:22, 111:18, 113:19, 114:11, 115:8, 117:16 What's - 66:13, 103:10 When - 4:14, 4:15, 5:13, 10:10, 10:12, 19:9, 22:6, 43:6, 49:21, 56:4, 79:23, 84:7, 89:5, 89:16, 89:22, 92:4, 96:4, 98:24, 99:9, 111:19 Where - 19:16, 19:18, 21:22, 23:9, 23:18, 25:24, 26:6, 54:6, 67:6, 68:15, 69:13, 71:14, 71:18, 72:5, 72:7, 73:10, 77:6, 77:23, 86:20, 88:15, 97:1, 98:12, 107:17, 110:8, 111:17 Whereupon - 118:21 While - 8:9, 13:11, 25:21, 40:6, 109:12, 112:11, 112:18 **Who -** 13:6, 13:19, 22:23, 42:22, 43:4, 43:10, 43:24, 79:13, 80:9, 80:10, 97:21 Whole - 90:2, 92:17, 95:18 Who's - 43:2, 44:8, 80:12, 100:24 Wide - 67:5, 67:8, 67:11, 67:14, 70:18, 71:14, 77:14, 98:23, 99:14, 104:5 Widely - 24:8 Width - 63:9, 66:13, 67:21 Wielgus - 42:23 Wildlife - 34:7 Wilson - 6:2, 6:3, 12:14, 91:4, 93:1, 95:13, 95:21, 113:17, 116:3, 116:4 Windings - 93:11 Windmills - 69:17

Windward - 81:16 Windyard - 17:6 Winter - 84:9 Wish - 69:16 **Wishing - 17:16** Withhold - 87:23 Within - 16:7, 17:7, 17:12, 17:14, 25:11, 37:7, 37:12, 37:22, 40:7, 44:10, 50:7, 50:10, 53:23, 71:14, 71:22, 74:8, 86:9, 89:19, 90:17, 91:20, 92:9, 93:12, 105:19, 106:13, 106:15 Without - 17:11, 44:1, 45:9, 72:22, 97:2, 100:21 Woefully - 100:19 Woke - 111:5 Wondering - 105:21, 106:3, 110:5 **Won't -** 38:8, 69:17 Word - 24:12, 78:16, 109:21 Work - 17:21, 17:23, 19:17, 19:20, 20:19, 20:20, 25:5, 27:18, 41:2, 43:4, 58:21, 67:1, 72:4, 79:17, 79:23, 80:13, 80:18, 82:16, 87:4, 87:5, 88:22, 90:14, 102:8, 102:13, 104:12 Worked - 25:10, 29:18, 29:22, 31:9, 50:5, 51:2, 59:2, 109:10 Workforce - 81:17, 82:18 Working - 4:11, 13:10, 25:2, 26:6, 32:3, 38:3, 40:23, 53:7, 57:5, 62:7, 74:17, 81:19, 104:21 Works - 29:9, 93:3 Worried - 106:22 Worry - 108:22 Worse - 110:12 Worst - 110:10 Worth - 85:5 Would - 4:21, 8:9, 10:9, 10:10, 11:21, 13:5, 24:5, 31:19, 41:6, 46:19, 46:20, 48:7, 55:22,

59:23, 60:1, 60:14, 60:16, 60:23, 61:9, 61:20, 61:22, 69:12, 73:23, 78:5, 78:9, 78:13, 78:14, 79:19, 81:3, 82:7, 84:10, 86:1, 87:24, 88:5, 89:14, 90:1, 95:14, 97:21, 99:3, 99:7, 99:12, 109:2, 112:12, 113:19, 114:14 Wouldn't - 28:10 Wow - 96:3 Writers - 43:24 Written - 12:11, 12:13, 12:16, 17:17, 19:21, 43:10, 43:13, 44:16, 102:10, 114:17 Wrong - 82:23, 86:11,

Υ

Yarmouth - 7:12, 46:19,

102:6, 103:21, 104:11

Yardsticks - 38:14

101:24, 117:4

Year - 10:5, 14:21, 20:7, 22:8, 22:12, 25:4, 27:14, 31:22, 65:14, 74:12, 79:17, 83:10, 89:22, 102:16, 109:7 Years - 13:23, 14:5, 21:6, 21:18, 23:5, 24:6, 27:18, 28:8, 31:21, 62:9, 70:11, 98:11 Year's - 14:20 Yellow - 6:24, 7:3, 115:3 You'd - 8:16, 66:21, 110:4, 118:3 You'll - 44:7, 47:5, 48:10, 53:4, 55:19, 72:9, 91:24 You're - 4:16, 8:20, 14:14, 37:6, 65:16, 66:4, 66:18, 69:14, 69:19, 70:6, 74:1, 75:19, 76:7, 77:16, 88:3, 89:23, 90:13, 90:18, 96:21, 101:7 Yourself - 8:17, 9:16 You've - 9:7, 18:11,

45:17, 55:7, 66:2, 66:3,

96:2, 102:18, 115:12

Z

Zone - 111:20 **Zoning -** 38:24, 39:1, 47:12, 47:13, 47:15, 47:18, 47:19

\$

\$10 - 80:22 **\$15 -** 27:13 **\$16 -** 25:14, 34:15, 52:6 **\$2 -** 81:15 **\$3 -** 26:19

1

1,000 - 91:24

1,500 - 68:2, 68:4 **1,600** - 82:15 **1.6** - 20:6, 33:20, 39:11 **10** - 67:4, 71:5, 77:14, 93:18, 101:20 **106** - 88:24 **11** - 21:18 **110** - 93:14, 94:11 **115** - 68:21 **12** - 71:6 **127** - 13:23 **14** - 47:24, 117:14 **15** - 13:17, 14:12, 16:3, 16:5, 23:12, 108:20 **150** - 64:17

2

16 - 25:17

2,000 - 108:14

20 - 15:22, 43:7, 108:20 200 - 29:15 2015 - 22:5 2017 - 22:11 2018 - 22:12 2019 - 12:8, 15:11, 16:18, 22:14, 32:17, 47:24, 48:20 2050 - 61:5 208 - 15:24 21 - 15:22 24 - 93:24 25 - 62:19, 64:23 26 - 15:14

3 30 - 14:21, 15:13, 23:9,

28:20, 43:7, 54:4, 64:23, 65:13, 68:14, 79:17, 94:10, 94:12, 96:18, 108:11

30,000 - 23:8

300 - 9:22, 10:5, 11:19, 106:14, 106:15

325,000 - 39:12

345 - 68:19

35 - 23:11

350 - 9:19, 9:20

4

4,000 - 23:1 **40 -** 65:14, 70:7, 77:21, 108:12 **400,000 -** 23:11, 33:19 **401 -** 63:17 **45 -** 39:8 **46 -** 68:17

5

5.3 - 23:19 **5.9** - 53:2, 56:21, 111:11 **5.98** - 111:7 **5:17** - 118:23 **50** - 101:22 **500** - 66:15, 91:24

6

6.3 - 37:3, **600 -** 66:15

80 - 82:12 **800 -** 17:9, 23:10, 35:19, 70:18, 71:14, 106:12

29 - 14:21